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Returning
fo growth

Ashtead rents construction and industrial equipment
to a wide range of customers in the US and UK. We
supply equipment that lifts, powers, generates, moves,
digs, compacts, drills, supports, scrubs, pumps, directs
and ventilates — whatever the job needs.

The increasing number of custarners outsourcing their equipment needs in the

LIS has enabled us to return to growth this year despite continuing weakness in the

US construction market This ongoing structural shift in the US towards increased
rental penetration 1s something we have long anticipated and which we expect to
continue Qur business model ensures we are able to provide our customers with
the right kit at the nght time so that they no longer need to invest in equipment
or Incur maintenance, storage or transportation costs By using our services,
custormers can focus on what they do best and cutscurce their equipment
requirements to us Our wide network, superior staff and commitment to
excellent customer service make us a national leader in both the US and UK
equipment rental markets

Qur core objectives are
* to extend our leadership position in the equipment rental industry

* to delwer supenior returns for our shareholders above our weighted average
cost of capital through the economic cycle

* to offer a progressive dividend based on the availability of both profits and
cash, whilst keeping to a level which 15 sustainable through the cycle
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our 2010/11 performance

Group pre-tax profits of £31m (2010: £5m)

Sunbelt’s rental revenue up 10%; operating profit up 39% to $162m
(2010: 5117m)

A-Plant’s rental revenue up 1% with operating profit of £2.7m
(2010: £1.8m)

Capital expenditure increased to £225m (2010: £63m); £325m planned
for 2011/12

Balance sheet remains strong and our debt well structured with five
year average maturities, net debt of £776m (2010: £829m) and leverage
of 2.7 times EBITDA (2010: 3.2 times)

Proposed final dividend of 2.07p making 3.0p for the year (2010: 2.9p)

Undertying revenue, profit and earrengs per share are stated belore exceptional items, amortisation of acquired intangibles and non-cash far value remeasurements of embedded
denvatives in long-term debt The definiron of exceptional items is set out In note 1to the finanaal statements

Forward looking statements

This report contains forward loolung statements These have been made by the directors in good faith using information avaitable up to the date on which they approved this repart The
directors can give no assurance that these expectations will prove to be correct Due Lo the inherent uncertasnuies including both business and economic risk factors underlying such forward
looking statements actual results may differ matenally from those expressed or impled by these forward loaking statements Except as required by law or regulation the directors undertake
no abligation te update any forward looking statements whether as a result of new information future events or otherwise
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our group
at a glance

Ashtead provides equipment for rent from our nationwide networks in the US and the UK.
We provide solutions for customers who need a quick, efficient and cost effective service.
We are the second largest equipment rental company in the world and operate as Sunbelt
in the US and as A-Plant in the UK. Some 85% of our revenues come from our US business.

UK: 106

Number of stores

A-Plant 1,900

The third largest Employees
equipment rental

company in the UK £166m

with 106 stores Revenue
throughout England,

Scotland and Wales £ 3 m

Profits

1.1%

Return on investrment®*

what we do

Our equipment is rented on flexible terms so that our We locate our stores where they are most needed and we
custorners have no need to own, maintain and service guarantee our service We make sure the right equipment is
equipment they may use only mtermittently Our job is to in place to get the job done whether 1t is a small hand held
ensure that the right equipment 1s there when 1t needs to tool or the [argest aenal work platform

be and 1s ready to work immediately, efficiently and safely

Providing an on-site
Faciitating fit-out hire depot and
and ongoing contractors’ village
maintenance for for a long-term
Providing office blocks. hospital construction
equipment project
for facllities On-site tool hire
management at now and maintenance
shopping centre for new residential
complex construction site
Desligning ond
implamenting
tratfic
Replacing wom management
out sewage systems

Intrastructure
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U S. 316 full service stores and
- 40 Sunbelt al Lowes shops
Number of stores

Sunbelt 6,200

The second largest Employees
equipment rental

business in the US with $1 ,225m

356 stores in 35 states Revenue

Profits

$162m
8.6%

Return on investment*

* Return an mvestment t5 defined as undertying operating profit divided by the weighted average cost of capital employed (tangible and intangible fixed assets plus net working capital but

excluding net debt, deferred taxes and farr value remeasurements)

Equipment types

We supply a full range of industral and construction
equipment such as earthmoving equipment, aerial work
platforms, tugh reach forkhfts and other matenals handling
units, smaller tools, pumps, power generation, portable site
accommodation, scaffolding, formwork and falsework, and
temporary traffic management equipment

Advising on health
and safety aspects
of equipment in Tracking our
use al new sports equipment for
stadlum customers using
mobile fracking
sysfems

Customer base

Our customer base 1s very diverse We serve construction
and industnial markets, disaster relief agencies, sport and
music event organisers, governments, local authonties,
faciities management and homeowners

Renting generators,
poweted accoss
Designing, equipment, lighting
erecting and and temporary
dismantiing accommodation units
scatfolding for an outdoor
systems music festival

Drying out and
cleaning up after
afiash flood at
an indusirial
warehouse
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chairman’s statement

Chris Cole
Chairman

Returning to growth

| am pleased to be able to report that Ashtead returned to growth

in the past year with underlying Group pre-tax profits up from £5m in
2010 to £31m and underlying eamings per share of 4 Op (2010 0 2p)
This recovery is not, as yet, being driven by an improvement in end
construction markets which remained weak all year in both the US and
UK Instead, as we had always expected would be the case at this point
in the cycle, we saw an increase in the demand for our services tn the

US driven by increased rental penetration and also by the gans we made
in market share

The biggest driver of our profit growth was the rise in US rental revenue
which increased 10% in the year as we grew average fleet on rent by

5% and our achieved yield or rate by 3% This growth in rental revenue,
coupled with continued control over operating costs, saw Sunbelt’s
undertying operating profits rise 39% to $162m {2010 $117m} In the UK,
despite difficutt end markets and already high rental penetration, A-Plant
agan performed well relative to its peers However, absolute UK returns
were still low with an operating profit of £3m (2010 £2m)

Looking forward, we are cautiously aptimistic about end construction
markets in the US with leading indicators predicting that we witl see an
end to the declines in 2011, with strengthening growth in 2012 and 2013
We also expect that the twin benefits of the ongoing structural shuft

in the US market to rental combined with gains in our market share, which
helped drive cur performance n the past year, will continue into this year
and beyond In the UK, it 15 likely that end markets will remain tough for
some time but this will, we think, help bring about a reductton in both
fleet size and the number of participants in what has been an over
supplied market We expect there to be consequent positive implications
for returns when end markets recover

Stronger as we enter the upturn

At Ashtead we have long recognised that we operate in a cyclical market
and that, in dealing with the challenges of recession, equally we need to
prepare for recovery

This cycle, despite the depth of the decline in US end construction
markets since 2008, we believe we are much better positioned than we
were when the US last came out of recession post 2001/2 We now have
a far larger national US bustness with the opportunity to capitalise on
renewed growth wherever 1t first anses regionally And whilst we cut costs
dramatically in 2009, we did so in a way which still today leaves us with
the store network and geographical reach required to partiaipate in almost
all the markets we served at the last peak in 2008 We also start the
recovery with stronger US EBITDA margins than we earned back in
2003/4, 32% versus 28%, and believe we have not yet seen the full

profit potential from our acquisition of NationsRent in 2006

Thus we are excited by the opportunities available to us to build
organically on the nationwide store network we created in the US with
the NationsRent acquisition and which we have worked hard to preserve
through the recessionary years We believe we have the opportunity to
add broadly 25% to current fleet size at existing stores n corming years, as
well as having a proven new store opening model to which we can return
selectively as end markets recover

Continued balance sheet strength

Not only are we larger now than in 2003/4, but our financiat position

15 much stronger Our rental fleet 1s not as old and our funding posiion
15 healthy We recently announced that we had renewed the Group's
asset-based senior secured loan facility in the amount of $14bn and
extended its maturity to March 2016 at an interest margin 1% lower than
the 2013 commitments we replaced Over the 2008 to 2010 period the
Group reduced outstanding debt by almost £400m at current exchange
rates or about one-third, principally frem orgamic cash generation Given
this reduction, just before year end, we redeemed $250m of our juntor
debt early which has further lowered future interest costs whilst still
gwing us the funding we need to finance growth We believe that the
Group has now reached a size and scale where cash generation should
largely fund organic growth and hence, before any acquisitions, net debt
can be held broadly to its current level over the next phase of the cycle

Our £776m total net debt now compnises $796m drawn under our senior
loan facility together with the $550m 2016 sensor secured note i1ssue,
and was committed for 51 years on average at year end The $479m
availability on the serior loan facility provides us with the balance sheet
flexibility and strength required to enable our businesses to succeed and
prosper in the years ahead

Acquisitions

Given the organic growth opportunities available to us both within

the existing store network and through green-field openings, our growth
plans do not require acquisitions Nonetheless, we believe there will

be attractive opportunities to enhance the Group through further
diversification into speciabist markets and non-construction activities

Thus, i January 2011, we acquired Empire, a specialist provider of scaffold
rental, erection and dismanilement services principally to the Gulf Coast
petrochemicat industry We paid approximately $39mwith a $15m
earn-out depending on Empire’s profits in the year to 31 August 2011

This acquisition has enabled us to expand our specialty scaffolding services
from the US eastern seaboard into new markets along the Gulf Coast It
has also brought with it a largely industnal customer base into which we
expect, in ttme, to build out our general tool product offering
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We have returned to growth

in the past year with underlying
group pre-tax profits up from
£5min 2010 to £31Im

What about the UK?

This 15 a question we are often asked The Board believes that A-Plant
continues to offer the potential for attractive returns in the future
However, we also recognise that the UK end construction market 1s
challenging and 1s likely to remain so for some time as public investment
15 curtailed

In this environment, after three years of low fleet investment and
matertal cash generation from A-Plant, our strategy 1s now to invest
prudently in the business We aim to ensure the quality of our offering and
to continually re-emphasise to our customers the need for rates to be at
a level necessary to support this investment In our view, the UK rental
market retains too many margnal participants which has perpetuated
low returns Perversely, the extended period of weak end markets which
we believe les ahead may prove to be the catalyst for change as weaker
participants may find it challenging to survive We have already seen
one former top five UK market participant close its business at the end
of 2010

We retain the possibility of accelerating the market consolidation we
believe 13 necessary through acquisition but we would only do so at a
price which offers our shareholders an appropriate return on investment
The past year saw us make a public approach with our Belgian partners,
TVH, for Lavendon under which we would have acquired Lavendon's UK
access equipment business Because we and TVH had a firm view on
value, we withdrew our approach once it became clear that our view of
the challenges ahead was not, at the time, shared by a sufficiently large
proportion of Lavendon’s shareholders for our approach to succeed

Therefore, whilst we reman alert to the portfolic opportunities which
our financial strength offers within the UK market, it 1s important to
emphasise that our central strategy for the UK of prudent selective
investrment coupled with focusing on the value of the service we provide
remains appropriate It will, the Board believes, offer attractive returns
once the cyclical UK construction market recovers

Changes to the Board

As I explained in last year's statement Gary Iceton stood down from
the Board at the September 2070 AGM on the expiry of two full terms
as a non-executive director We were delighted last September to
announce the appomtment of lan Sutcliffe to replace Gary lan has had
awide and vaned career in marketing and general management, latterly
in the house-building and commercial property investment sectors

His experience, including his knowledge of these markets, complements
the Board

Dividend

Consistent with our policy of offering a progressive dvidend having
regard to the avalability of both profits and cash whilst keeping to a level
which 1s sustainable through the cycle, the Board Is recommending an
increased final dividend of 2 O7p per share (2010 2 Op per share) making
3 0p for the year (2010 2 9p} If the proposed final dividend 15 approved at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, it will be paid on S September
2011 to shareholders on the register on 19 August 2011

Our people

We always say that our people are our most important asset and that

has never been truer than through the recent difficult years when the
dedication and loyalty of our staff have been sorely tested Accordingly

I thank them for their commitment to making Ashtead the best in the
equipment rental business regardless of the difficult market conditions
that we faced As we begin the return to growth, we hope they, alongside
our shareholders, will see further rewards for their continued support This
year we have expanded our reporting on employee matters and you can
read more about the initiatives we have in place in our extended corporate
responsibility report on pages 34to 39

Current trading and outlook
The momentum we established throughout the past year has carried
forward into May with encouraging levels of fleet on rent and yield growth

Looking forward we remain cautious over the outlook for end construction
markets in the short term, particularly in the UK However, we continue

to benefit from the structural shift to rental, market share gains and the
improvements we have established in all key areas of our business
Together with our balance sheet strength and strong market positions,

this makes us confident of another year of good progress

Chris Cole
15 June 201
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business and financial review
infroduction

Right

Geoff Drabble
Chief executive
Far nght

lan Robson
Finance director

Ashtead has now traded successfully through the recent economic downturn
retaining its position as the world's second largest equipment rental group More
importantly, we believe that the ability of our model to offer attractive returns to
our Investors over the cycle, as well as interesting and varied careers to our staff
and a valued service to our customers, continues to be demonstrated Given how
difficult end construction markets m the US and UK have been, that 1s a significant
achievement The flextbility of our business model combined with our efficient
financing means that we are well positioned to benefit as end markets, particularly
in the US, begin therr cyclical recovery Leading indicators show the US construction
market reaching the inflection point in summer or autumn 2011 and rebuilding from
there Whilst the UK construction market is likely to be challenging for some years
yet, we are confident that it will follow the US into cyclical recovery in due course

As regular readers of this report will know, ours 1s an inherently cyclical business

and we aim to manage it as such and therefore to plan for both good times and

bad We planned carefully for the recession we just experienced, particularly with
regard to the terms of our debt and to our ability to manage the levels of our capital
expenditure and hence to generate substantial cash flow As a result, we are emerging
from recesston in better shape than many of our competitors, some of whom have
not survived, whilst others have had to materially reduce the size of their business
We have retained the infrastructure necessary to service almost all the markets in
which we traded at peak in 2008 and our US rental fleet 15, at 30 April 2011, only 9%
smaller than it was at that peak

Equipment rental remains a relatively young industry and we are still a comparatively
young company We believe there are significant opportunities to be had, especially in
the US where rental penetration remains at around only 40% but growing compared
to the 70-75% penetration in the more mature UK market We are determined to
take maximum advantage of the next cycle and of the network, fleet, finances and
human capital that we have preserved through the recession
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Returning to growth

* understanding
our markets

* enabling the
structural shift

* creating
opportunities




While we operate in many different sectors, our largest
end market continues to be new build construction
which suffered greatly as a result of the recession
However, we have been through difficult cycles before
and we have learnt some tough lessons which are
helping us now

By applying that knowledge of the market, we look to ensure that we

are stronger than we were when the last recession ended In particular,
our relative financial weakness in 2003/4 meant that some of our peers
were able to invest earlier in renewing and growing their rental fleets than
we were This time, our relative financial strength has seen us already
re-invest at a rate of 122% of depreciation last year with an expectation
of 175% of depreciation In 2011/12 At this stage of the cycle, however, 1t
15 )mportant to note that most of this 1s replacement expenditure with
only modest fleet growth of 1-3% expected on average in 2011/12

understanding

Ths 1s because we need to see recovery in rental rates and yield to help
us drive return on investment back into double digits before we build

too much growth into our model Despite much larger reductions in
construction volumes this time, Sunbelt’s rental rates have followed a
consistent pattern, reaching the bottom of the cycle at a similar level as
during the much milder recession in 2002/3 In addition, second-hand
equipment values, which bniefly fell below previous tows, recovered quickly
to the low point experienced during the last downturn and have since
moved ahead These trends support our early deaision to increase
spending to end the ageing of cur fleet during the recession, and hence
prepare for recovery As we head towards a growing end market, Sunbelt's
EBITDA rmargins at 32% are significantly stronger than its 28% trough
margin of 2002/3 In addition, with around 10% fewer rental companies
trading now than in 2007, we believe Sunbelt 1s well positioned for
expansion Our experience at A-Plant in the more mature UK rental
market also enables us to foresee likely trends as the US rmarket develops

our markets
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“The lessons we learnt about how our
markets reacted during the 2002/3
recession have allowed us to adapt and
perform better through this one We
now need to be prepared to apply the
lessons of the last recovery and be ready
to expand quickly to capitalise on
market opportunities ”
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enabling
the structural

shif

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

“US contractors recognise increasingly
that they don't need to always own
equipment and are becoming
comfortable renting it We and our
large peers now provide a nationwide
network with a large fleet available on
demand to customers as they require
it We're enabling our customers, by
outsourcing their equipment needs to
specialists such as ourselves, to do
business in a more cost effective way
while minimising their risk "




The US market 1s shifting increasingly
towards equipment rental instead of
each contractor owning its own fleet
Estimates are that rental penetration in
the US rose from around 25% in 2000
to about 40% last year We believe

that this growth 1s set to continue

In addition, there 15 a move towards
fewer, bigger players in the market

There are a number of reasons for

these structural shifts

Firstly, renting equiprment rather than owning and
maintaiming 1t reduces contractors’ nisk and helps them
protect their own balance sheet This 1s particularly
impaortant for the smaller contractors whose finances
and potential markets may be more imited Tightening
regulation on health and safety and environmental
1ssues 15 also making 1t more expensive to own fleet
as there 15 a need to always carry out service and
maintenance checks in hine with the equipment
manufacturer’s recommendations and to keep records

showing that this has been done This all means that
rental 1s becorming more attractive

Bigger players in the rental market such as ourselves
benefit from scale, allowing us to move fleet around
our networks to match market demand In addition,
capital can still be hard to access for the smaller
players, making it rnore difficult for them to mvest

in new fleet Long lead times for equipment are also
likely to limit the expansion of those players who have
scaled back too far, as they may be unable to reinvest
quickly Our financial strength gives us the ability to
plan our equipment orders on a longer-term basis
enabling us to absorb the impact of extended lead
times from equipment manufacturers and take
umimpeded advantage of the structural shifts
ongomng in the market
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creating

opportunities
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Our size and scale enables us to fund the
development of leading edge technology
across our business in a way that few of
our competitors can match We are also
able to share these developments across
both our US and UK businesses For
example, we developed our Auto Tool
Hire Unit in the UK and now, following
its successful launch over the past year,
will be launching it in Sunbelt this year
The Auto Tool Hire Unit 1s an unmanned,
automated cabin designed to be located
at customners' sites and provide contractors
with on-site instant access to a range of
tools and other equipment

It 1s delivered direct to site fully stocked with
equiprment and uses RFID {radio-frequency
dentification) technology to record when equipment
15 taken on and off hire The success of the Auto

Tool Hire Unit has already been recogrised by the
industry with the unit being awarded Best New
Product of the Year in the Hire Association Europe's
2011 Awards of Excellence

Other recent examples of the application of
technology to increase efficiency and enhance the
rental process include Sunbelt’s deployment of an
in-house developed logistics system which largely
automates the process of delivery and collection of
equipment it enables our stores to monitor the
location of each of our delivery trucks and direct
them to collect equipment automatically whilst
they are out on the road In the UK, A-Plant has
begun computerising all record keeping regarding
the service and maintenance of its rental fleet Thus
development raises the efficiency of both service
and matntenance It facilitates fleet transfer between
stores, Improves reporting on any Issues and means
that any store 1s able easily to access and work on
any item of equipment
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"We are innovating both our service offering and our product range
to make the most of the opportunities that will come in a growing
market For example, the use of leading edge technology in our Auto
Tool Hire Unit, in logistics and in recording our fleet service and
mamntenance activities 1s set to revolutionise the rental process for
customers, as well as offering an environmentally more responsible
means of delivering our service offering”
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business and financial review i

our strategy

“As we had hoped, the actions we have taken
over the last three years mean that we are well
positioned for growth now that the market is
beginning to improve.”

The key objectives of our long-term strategy are to mamtain our position
as a leader in the global equipment rental business and deliver good
returns for our investors through the cycle We focus our strategy on five
key areas As well as providing opporturities for growth, these strategic
prionities enable us to manage areas of risk within the business They also
form the backbone of our business model We moniter our success
through our key performance indicators (KP1s) {see pages 19to 21)

Our key areas of focus are

* Managing the cycle

* Differentiating our service and fleet

¢ Ensunng operational excellence

* Investing in our people

* Maximising our return on investment

Managing the cycle

All our strategic mitiatives have to be executed in the context of our
position within economic cycles, as these have a profound effect on our
business This 1s because a large proportion of our business comes from
construction markets which are routinely cyclical in nature As the cycles
evolve, 50 do our operational, finanaial and nsk management priorities
This ensures that we manage risk effectively and remain on track with our
KPIs regardless of where we are in the cycle Our prudent management
through the most recent economic downturn has meant that we are now
well positioned to capitalise on the return to growth The chart below
shows how we manage the business through the econormic cycle and
where we are now

Phase 1

When we are in a growth cycle, we use free cash flow to increase
investment in our rental fleet to support revenue, EBITDA and earnings
growth This also reduces the age of our rental fleet We are able to take
advantage of the many growth opportunities available, both organic as
well as selective acquisitions if profitable opportunities anse and can
delver high levels of customer satisfaction We enjoy high utilisation at
good rates and generate strong margins Capital expenditure 1s strong and
debt remains broadly flat Leverage tends to reduce as earnings grow
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Phase 2

In this phase, markets are still strong but we know that it cannot last
forever We need to adapt our strategy and begin to get ready for the
coming downturn Our particular focus is on preparing the balance sheet
for lower levels of income when the cycle turns In this way we manage
the cychical nsk inherent in the business We cornmit our debt for the long
term and structure 1t to remain covenant free This enabtes us to get on
with running the business unimpeded through the cycle We start to
reduce the rate at which we invest in new equipment and begin gently
increasing the age of our rental fleet This in turn increases cash flow

Phase 3

At the beginning of the downturn, if necessary, we may rightsize the
business to ensure that it is best positioned to withstand the worsening
economy In this way we sustained our EBITDA margin (one of our KPIs)
at 30% during the latest cycle

Phase 4

Once Iin recession we focus on running a tight business, reducing capital
expenditure to around half the level of depreciation, further reducing the
fleet i required and, as a result, entering our most cash generative phase
We aim to keep our fleet on rent (another of our KPis} and utilisation high

Typically, we apply the cash we generate to pay down debt, sustaining our
leverage close to our target despite lower earmings At all times, however,
we take care to maintain the optimal flexibility to ensure that we can
bounce back aggressively once the upturn arrives The focus 1s on cost
efficiency while at the same time positioning the business for the recovery
to come

Phase 5

Once the recovery 1s under way, we look for our preparations to pay off
Rental rates begin to recover as does utilisation and consequently we
typically deliver good earnings growth Capital expenditure increases as
the business expands again Leverage reduces as earnings recover and,
once agamn, we begin to invest for organic growth At the same time we
may look for opporturities amongst those in the ndustry who have
struggled to survive the recession and are in a weaker pasition than
ourselves The flexibility of our business model enables us to upgrade
and expand quickly to service increased demand
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business and financial review ...

our sirategy

Where are we now

We believe we are in Phase 5 of the cycdle Qur rental and utilisation rates
are beginning to recover and earnings are improving In the US we are
already working to exploit opportunities in markets or sectors where

we are under-represented Qur focus is on organic growth by adding
equipment to the existing store base, by buillding out immature clusters
(see detail on our operatmg model below) and by entering new markets
where there 15 no existing presence

Of the avallable growth opportunities, increasing the fleet size at existing
stores offers the most immediate return This generates improved revenue
without increasing the cost base proportionately At the same time, we are
planning over the next few years for aggressive expansion of our specialty
businesses The strengtheming of our scaffolding services dvision through
the recent acquisition of Empire Scaffold 1s one example of this strategy

Differentiating our service and fleet

By differentiating our service and fleet we manage the nisk associated
with being overly exposed to a downturn in any one sector of our
business Both our customer base and the fleet itself are highly diversified
Our customers range i size and scale from multinational businesses
which are serviced at a national level, to ndividuals doing up their own
home In addition, we are diversified further by our specialist service
offerings, such as our Pump and Power division in the US which often
assists in emergency situations such as floods, and A-Plant Lux, our
specialist traffic control and management business in the UK We also
service a range of ather applications such as industnal, events, facilities
management and repair and mamntenance

Qur diversified customer base includes construction, industrial and
homeowner customers, as well as government entities and specialist
contractors These are analysed by Standard Industry Classification in the
charts above In the US we seek to run our business with a broad customer
base and a particular focus on the local/rmid-size contractor segment
While we have a broadly similar fleet to that of our peers, we differentiate
our offering by emphasising smaller equipment types which we believe
offer the potential for ligher returns For examiple, small tools and general
equipment accounted for 17% of the overall cost of Sunbelt’s fleet last
year but generated 26% of revenue When we are involved in a major
long-term project we often provide the full range of our equipment from
small hand-held tools to larger dirt moving or aenal equipment For an
example of this see the project lifecycle chart on page 25
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Ensuring operational excellence

We seek to ensure operational excellence through our operating model
Many elements of this mode! are similar tn both the US and the UK, but
we adapt It to surt the different markets

* In the US we achieve nationwide coverage by taking a 'clustered
market’ approach grouping general tool and specialist rentat locations
in each of our man geographical districts, typically covering a large
aty or conurbation Sunbelt has rental operations in 44 of the top 50
metropolitan areas This approach allows us to provide a comprehensive
product offering and convenient service to our customers wherever
their job sites may be within these markets Recent years have seen a
subtle shift away from a store focused approach to a whole market one
— 50 we still deliver locally but we also ensure we gam the benefits of
scale district-wide through imitiatives such as centralised field service
and also coordination across the distnict of our delivery truck fleet

In the UK, our strategy is focused on having sufficient stores to allow
us to offer a full range of equipment nationwide In the last few years,
during the recession, through our store closure programme, we have
completed the migration to fewer, larger locations which are able to
address all the needs of our customers Thus we have reduced A-Plant’s
store count from over 200 to around 100 full service locations today
which we see as about 1deal for a national provider in Great Britain

Across our rental fleet, we aim generally to carry equipment from one
or two suppliers in each product range and to imit the number of
model types of each product Having a standardised fleet results in
lower costs because we obtain greater discounts by purchasing in bulk
and reduce maintenance costs through more focused, and therefore
reduced, tramning requirements for our staff We are able also to share
spare parts between stores which helps to mimimise the nisk of

over-stocking, and to transfer fleet between locations easily which helps

us achieve leading levels of fieet utihisation

We purchase equipment from vendors with good reputations for
product quabty and reliability and maintain close relationships with
these vendors to ensure good after-purchase service and support
However, we alse maintain sufficient alternative sources of supply
for the equipment we purchase in each product category

We aim to offer a full service solution so we hold a full range of
equipment to meet all uses and applications required by our typical
customers

Our sales forces are encouraged to build and reinforce long-term
relationships with customers and to concentrate on strong, whole-life
returns from our rental fleet, rather than on short-term returns from
sales of equipment We work closely with our customers to ensure we
meet their needs In addition we make use of smart phones so that our
sales staff can access real-time fleet availability and pricing information
and respond to changmg dynarmucs rapidly in these critical areas

We guarantee our service standards both in the UK and US and
voluntarily accept financia! penalties if we fail to meet our
commitments to our customers We believe that our focus on customer
service and the guarantees we offer help distingwish our businesses
from competitors and assist us in delivenng supenor financial returns

We invest heavily in the technology required to deliver efficient service
as well as high returns We have developed technology to capture and
record the time of delivery and the customer’s signature electronically
allowng us to monitor and report on on-time deliveries We also use
electronic tracking systems to monitor and secure the location and
usage of large equipment
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bUSineSS and finanCial I'GVieW continued

our strategy

Investing in our people

We are very proud of our superior workforce and invest heavily in therr
training and development We operate a devolved structure so we need
to be sure we have the best people in place in each location

In general, the rental industry suffers from high staff turnover, particularly
within certain job categories such as mechanics and delivery truck dnvers
Turnover tends to be particularly hugh within the first year of employment
However, despite the recent difficult economic envircnment, we have
made generally good progress in improving our staff retention in recent
years as shown in the staff turnover chart above

We aim to attract good people and then invest in therr development
Once peaple have been with us for a few years they tend to stay for along
time and many of our serwor staff started out in front line positions at ane
of our rental stores For example, while we see 13% staff turnover in the
US overall, that falls to close to zero amongst our store management and
more senior staff

Both Sunbelt and A-Plant have extensive programmes in place to ensure
high standards of recruitment, traming, levels of customer service and

the appraisal, review and reward of our employees A-Plant's three-year
apprenticeship scherne, for example, 15 the largest in the rental industry
and 15 always heavily oversubscribed We also have a good record of
retaining our apprentices at the conclusion of the programme In the

US Sunbelt has a well established programme of working with the US
military which delivers a consistent and quality source of potential recruits
to our team

We motivate and reward our people through a combination of
competitive fixed pay and attractive incentive programmes Our sales
force 15 also ncentivised through commussion plans which are based on
sales volume and a broad measure of return on investment determined
by reference to equipment type and discount level We maintain flexibility
in these incentive plans to reflect changes in the economic environment
We believe this has been an important element in retaining the confidence

of our workforce through the recent difficult times You can find out

more about our employees in our corporate responsibility report on

pages 34 to 39

Maximising our return on investment

Return on investment (Rol) is a key performance indicator that we use to
monmtor our business at all levels For the Group as a whole our objective
Is always to ensure that, averaged across the economic cycle, we deliver
Rol well ahead of our cost of capital In recent years returns have been
adversely impacted by recession as shown by the chart above However,
we are already seeing an improvement with Rol for 2011 at 70%
compared with 4 6% in 2010

We maximise our Rol through encouraging effective management of
invested capital by

* maintaining a concentration of higher-return {often specialised)
equipment within the overali rental equipment fleet and being
underweight in those asset classes with high rental penetration,

* promoting the transfer of equpment to locations where maximum
utilisation rates and returns can be obtained,

* monitoring the amount of invested capital at each of our stores, and

= empowering regional and local managers to adapt pricing policies in
response to local demand in order to maxirmise overall returns
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our strategy

vision

To be a leader in the global equipment rental business and deliver superior returns for our investors through the

cycle above our cost of capital

strategy

To manage a differentiated business efficiently in an inherently cyclical industry

our sfrategic priorities
1 2 3

4

5

Efficient Maintain a Ensure operational
management of differentiated service excellence across
business cycles and fleet from the  the business

to take advantage ~ competition
of peaks and
minimise troughs

our business model

Differentiating our

service and fleet:

« Dversified customer base

= Wide variety of applications

« Fleet focus differentiated
from competition

* Broad fleet mix

Managing the cycle

* Planning ahead

* Careful balance sheet
management

* Adapting fleet and cash
position

" * Taking advantage of
Investing in our people: opportunities

* Highly skilled team

* Devolved structure

+ Maintaining significant levels
of experience

« Strong focus on recruitment,
training and incentvisation

Build, train, develop  Maximise our return
and maintain the on Investment
best team in the through the cycle

industry

Maximising our

return on investment:

* Effective management and
monitoring of fleet investment

* Optimusation of utilisation rates
and returns

* Flexability in local pricing structures

Ensuring operational

excellence:

* Nationwide networks in US and UK

* Long-term partnerships with
manufacturers

* Focused service-driven approach

» Strong customer relationships

= ISO accreditation

* Industry-leading application of
technology
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business and financial review cninue
key performance indicators

At Group level, we measure the performance of the business using a number of key performance indicators as
shown in the table below These help to ensure that we are delivering against our stated objectives As discussed
further in the report from the Remuneration Commuttee, we link the remuneration of our executive directors to
the achievement of certain of our KPIs, specifically underlying earnings per share

Certain KPIs are more appropriately measured for each of our two operating businesses, whereas other KPIs are
best measured for the Group as a whole

Physical utilisation (%)

Physical utilisation 1s measured as the daily average of the amount of serialised fleet at cost on rent as a
percentage of the total fleet at cost and for Sunbelt 15 measured only for equipment whose cost 1s over
$7.500 (which comprised 90% of its senalised fleet at 30 April 2011)

It 1s Important to sustain annual average physical utilisation at between 60% and 70% through the cycle
If utibsation fatls below 60% then yield will tend to suffer, whilst above 70% we may not have enough fleet
1n certain stores to meet our custorners’ needs

Uulisation this year In the US reached a five-year high in October 2010 as markets commenced cychical
recovery and we operated with a fleet size 9% below peak because of downsizing during the recession

Fleet on rent ($/£m)

Fleet on rent 1s measured as the daily average of the original cost of our itemised equipment on rent Onginal
cost, rather than net baok value, 1s used because It correlates more directly with rental income as rental rates
vary only shightly with the age of the item being rented

Fleet on rent measures the activity within our business and alse provides an indication of market share In the
US, fleet on rent grew 5% in 2010/11

Change In yield (%)

Yield 15 measured as the change in our rental revenue which 1s not explamned by the change in volume of fieet
on rent Yield 1s therefore an all encompassing measure which captures changes in rental rates, changes in
delvery charges and other ancillary rental revenue, together with changes in both the custorner mix (larger
customners generally pay lower rates) and the rmix of equipment

We were pleased in the past year to have delivered what we believe to be the strongest yield performance in
the US with Sunbelt returing to yield growth year on year in our second quarter, a full quarter ahead of its
large US peers and delivering 3% growth over the year as a whole

Underlying EBITDA margins (%)

Underlying EBITDA margins are measured before exceptional costs Underlying EBITDA correlates closely in
our business with our tap line cash flow and 1s therefore an important measure of our financial health Given
the cyclicality of our revenue, it 1s also important that we adjust our cost base as far as practicable to limit
any reduction in our underlying EBITDA margin when revenues are dechining
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Underlying EPS {p)

Underlying EPS 1s a key measure of financial perforrmance for the Group as a whole It 1s measured before
excephional costs, amortisation of acquired intangibles and fair value remeasurernents This year, as we
generated improved volumes of fleet on rent and growth in yield, EPS improved over the cychical low of 2010
Our balance sheet structure, which involves us incurring a significant interest cost, means that our underlying
EPS varies substantially through the cycle

Return on investment (%)

In a capital ntensive business, profitability is not the only measure of perfarmance as it 1s possible to
generate good margins but poor value for shareholders If assets are not deployed efficiently Return on
investment (Rol) measures both profitability and capital efficiency and is calculated as underlying operating
profit divided by net tangible and intangible fixed assets employed plus net working capital but excluding net
debt, deferred tax and fair value remeasurements

Averaged across the economic cycle we look to deliver Rol well ahead of our cost of capital As with
underlying EPS, the past fiscal year has seen the first stage of recovery in Rol from 2009/10's cyclical low

Net debt and leverage at constant exchange rates

We seek to maintain a conservative balance sheet structure with a target range for net debt to underlying
EBITDA of 2-3 times This year's imitial stage of the expected cyclical recovery in earnings has seen this ratio
quickly return to within our target range

We also aim to sustain significant availability {the difference between the amount we are able to borrow
under our asset-based facility at any time and the amount drawn) through the cycle Availability at 30 April
2011 was $479m which both ensures all our debt remains effectively covenant free and also provides us with
substantial headroom for future mvestment

Staff turnover (%)

We are a service business that differentiates itself by the strength of our service offering Central to this
service offering are our people Whle it was not unexpected that employee turnover declined in a recesston,
we are nonetheless pleased with the reduction given the pressure our people were under to deliver in difficult
market conditions As we move into recovery, we are aiming to keep turnover below historical levels to build
on the skill base we have established

Staff turnover s calculated as the nurnber of leavers in a year (excluding redundancies) dvided by the average
headcount during the year

Safety

Qur business involves frequent movement and maintenance of large and heavy pieces of equipment, often in
confined spaces Rigorous safety processes are essential if we are to avoid accidents which could cause injury
to our people and damage our reputation

In the chart we have plotted the RIDDOR reportable incident rate for A-Plant and also for Sunbelt on the
same basis In each of the past three years While increased pressure on our business during the recession
resulted in an increase in A-Plant in 2010, accident rates have reduced this year and we believe our continued
focus on health and safety will further reduce incident rates in the future

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011




bUSineSS Gnd finanCial EView continued

our markets

Our markets are the US where we operate as
Sunbelt and the UK where we operate as A-Plant

The US

Sunbelt provides nationwide coverage for equipment
rental through a network of 356 stores We now operate
in 44 of the top 50 metropolitan service areas and have
clustered operations In 29 of those markets We have
6,200 employees and $2 2bn in fleet Both our customer
base and fleet are highly diversified to avoid overexposure
to economic cycles in any one area Our customers are
numerous and diverse and we have more of a focus on
local and mid-sized contractors than our competitors We
believe this provides a useful level of diversification into
sectors that offer higher rates of return We are increasing
further our level of diversification through the expansion
of our specialty service offerings pump and power and
scaffold services and through our focus on remediation
and restoration markets We aim to add significantly to
our specialty locations in coming years as these support
valued customer requirements and differentiate us from
our competition

Nonetheless, a majority of our customers still come from the construction
sector which has had a difficult few years but where leading indicators are
now beginning to show signs of improvement We expect US non-
residential construction, our largest end market, to pass the inflection
point in 2011 with growth accelerating in 2012 and 2013 Since 2007

we have seen a much larger decline in construction than during the last
recession and we are now at historically low levels of activity

Again, like last time, most commentators are anticipating a residential

led recovery, particularly in the multi-family apartment sector which
offers proportionately greater opportunity for our services relative

to single farmily home construction While we are optimistic of a return

to growth, we are also aware that continuing 1ssues such as high
unemployment and at times, tight avallability of finance, will mean that

it will lkely be several years before total construction volumes begin to
regain earlier peaks However, as mentioned elsewhere in this report,
Sunbelt 15 1n a much stronger position now than when it came out of the
last recesston to capitalise on a return to growth We believe that because
of this and with the benefit of greater rental penetration and market share
gains, as discussed above, Sunbelt can regain its peak 2007/8 profit levels
on significantly lower levels of end market activity than existed in 2007
and 2008

Competitors

The US rental market remains highly fragmented and has much lower
penetration at 40%, than the 70% seen in the UK However, despite
market consolidation, our main national competitors rernain the same
as In previous years and are as shown below

No of US revenue Approx
stares {Sbn)  market share
United Rentals 445 19 8%
Sunbelt 356 12 5%
RSC 429 12 5%
Hertz Equipment Rental Company 218 09 4%

Source Based on reported results 12 months to 31 March 2011 and Ashtead estimates

All three of our competitors are listed comparies like ourselves and have
similar fleet composition and national reach However, we believe our
model enables us to reach a somewhat broader range of customers than
our other large peers This means that we compete as frequently with
regional and local competitors as we do with the other national networks
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The UK

Our UK business, A-Plant, operates in a market

which currently has different and still recessionary
charactenistics although our range of equipment and
customer base are similar to those Sunbelt enjoys in the
US The UK 1s a much more mature rental market where
rental penetration s estimated to be farrly stable at
around 70% At 30 April 2011 A-Plant had 106 stores
and 1,900 staff

Whlst A-Plant has performed relatively well through the recession,
absolute levels of profitability in the UK remain low and several
competitors are stilt loss making We believe A-Plant 1s well positioned

in the current market, given its emphasis on both the utility and
infrastructure markets (power, water, sewerage and roads} and major
projects such as nuclear decommussioning and the Olympics Fleet on rent
has improved throughout the year and we cantinue to see strong levels of
physical utiisation Yield has also improved but the overall levels of return
throughout the industry remain disappointing

Given the general uncertainty about the path of the UK economic
recovery, there has to be less confidence regarding the iming of a
recovery in UK end construction markets which we believe may not come
about in any meaningful way until 2013 or beyond However, there are
now reasons to be hopeful that we are at or near the bottom of our rental
market Although competitors initially reacted more slowly to recession in
the UK than we saw in the US, the level of reduction in rental fleet size
across the UK rental market 15 now, we believe, greater than in the US
which will undoubtedly help

As discussed in the Charman's statement, we believe that a prolonged
pertod of challenging end markets will also help address the excessive level
of participants which has existed in the UK rental mdustry for at least the
past decade, and will ultimately lead to a position where A-Plant will
deliver an attractive level of return Therefore we rematn committed

to the UK market as we believe that, from beth a market and financial
position, we are well placed In the short term, however, returns are likely
to remain relatively low without structural change

The UK plant and tool market is not well researched but AMA Research
Limited’s most recent market survey Is shown above

Competrtors
A-Plant 1s third largest equipment rental businesses in the UK with its key
peers being shown in the table below

No of Revenue Approx

stores (Em)  market share
Speedy Hire UK 327 304 8%
HSS 222 176 5%
A-Plant 106 166 4%
Hewden 63 121 3%
Lavendon UK 44 112 3%

Source Latest available financial information and Ashtead estimates Speedy UK adjusted for
the sale in Apnl 2011 of its accommodation business
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business and financial review i«
how we work with customers

As mentioned elsewhere, our customers come in all
shapes and sizes and projects are of various durations

In the year to April 2011, Sunbelt dealt with over
480,000 customers, wrote 1 5m rental contracts with
an average value of $570 per contract and issued over
2mnvoices A-Plant, though smaller, 1s almost as diverse
In 2010/11 it dealt with over 24,000 customers, wrote
333,000 rental contracts with an average value of

£385 per contract and 1ssued 764,000 invoices

While many of the sites we work on are large, multi-year, billion dollar
construction projects, our customers will typically be contractors,
subcontractors and even sub-subcontractors, rather than the site
manager or owner We like to build long-term relationships with our
customers, the biggest of whom we service on a national basis whether
in the UK or the US Our excellent customer service means that we
generate a lot of repeat business Here we describe some of the ways
in which we work with our customers

Disaster relief
We are often involved In disaster relief through our specialist Pump and
Power division

* In April 2011, a massive storm system developed in the southern
United States The system forrned fierce tornados that reduced many
neighbourhoods to rubble and killed around 350 people across seven
states Alabama suffered the most with Tuscaloosa being hit by an
extremely large and destructive tornado, one of 226 that occurred
within a 24 hour period according to US Government estimates
We were inundated with calls for help Sunbelt set up a fully functional
call centre as the storms broke, staffed with four customer service
representatives working around the clock We mobilised 55 delvery
trucks in 10 days bnnging equipment into Alabama from as far away
as 1,000 miles These trucks brought in standby power generators
rangmg In size from 20kW-1,500kW which were quickly deployed to
keep the state moving and to factlitate the recovery Our local general
equipment stores were also extrernely busy and the total amount of
fleet managed out of our Birringham, Alabama stores tripled to over
$10m One of our rental stores in Birmingham suffered extensive wind
damage but continued to operate at full capacity throughout

* In May 201, steady rains, added to the seasonal snow melt, resulted in
the Mississippi River nsing tugh enough to reach histonc flood heights
all along the river In an effort to avoid flooding populated areas, the
Army Corps of Engineers intentionally broke a Mississippi River levee
and flooded hundreds of acres of farmland in Missours Sunbelt was
contacted by the Army Corps of Engineers to set up a pumping system
down nver from New Madnd, Missour to pump water from the flooded
farmland back nto the nver Sunbelt mobilised a team consisting of 10
experts who coordinated, delivered and set up a system that included
five 18" Quiet Flow Diesel Trash Purnps, valves and the HDPE piping
used for suction and discharge Forklfts and light towers were also
mncluded in the total package The final system pumped water from
the flooded farmland over the levee and back into the Mississippi
downstream from the populated area at a rate of 45,000 gallons per
rminute The system ran 24 hours per day with monitoring and refuelling
services provided by Sunbelt's staff

Sole supplier contracts

In both the UK and the US, we often work with some of the largest
contractors on an exclusive basis For example, we have recently
negotiated a three-year extension to our sole supplier agreement with
one of the UK's leading contractors The renewed agreement covers our
entire range of UK hrre products including general plant, air powered tools
and specialist products such as falsework and formwork, powered access,
power generation and welding equipment

In the US we recently won a two-year sole supply deal for all Duke
Energy’s rental needs in the US including those of external subcontractors
working on Duke facilities Duke Energy Corporation is the largest energy
holding company in the US operating in franchised electnic and gas
services, generation services, telecommunications, commercial power
and retail services

Support for the US Army

At an army traning centre In Lowsiana, we are working to support the
US Army with troop tratming This facility 1s one of the US Army’s ‘Dirt’
Combat Traning Centres resourced to train infantry brigade task forces
In cenditions as near as possible to those in the field We are providing
all power requirements for the temporary living and trairung structures
built on the base to help acchmatise troops prior to deployment We are
also providing long-term support to the traning centre and, as well as
assigning three full-time staff members to the project, have established
an on-site rental facility to ensure immediate availability of highly
utilised equipment
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project lifecycle

When we work on a large
scale construction project,
such as our work on the 2012
Olympics’ site in east London,
we often provide our full range
of equipment throughout the
duration of the project which
may last for several years.
From our perspective a typical
project passes through five
basic stages which can be
described generically, together
with the equipment provided
at each stage, as follows:

an H W N

Site preparation

Preparing the temporary site area, accommodation units,
traffic management, power and lighting, steel storage units
and secunity fencing

Site clearance, excavation

and groundwork

Providing diggers, dumpers, piling and acrow to support man
structures, trench shoring to deep drainage, potentially an
on-site depot and possibly refuelling services

Construction

Providing formwork and falsework to support concrete
structures, powered access platforms, booms, telehandlers,
survey equipment, dumpers, forklifts and concrete mixers

Fit-out

Smaller tools to finalise site for end user, towers, scissor
Lfts, temporary heating, ar-conditioning and power, forklifts
and telehandlers

Ongoing maintenance

Various equipment for any facility, health and safety
support, aerial work platforms and smaller tools and
equipment for facilities management and ongoing
maintenance
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principal risks and unceriainties

Our risk profile evolves as we move through the economic cycle Set out below are the principal business risks that
impact our business and operations today

Risk description Potential impact Strategy for mitigation
Economic conditions
The construction industry, fromwhich weearn ~ * Prudent management through the different
the majonity of our revenue, 1s cyclical with phases of the cycle
construction industry cycles typically lagging * Flexibility in the business model maintained
the general economic cycle by between six to ensure adaptability whatever the economic
and 18 months Thus, while the US economy P Y
environment
15 showing signs of improvemenit, our end
markets are still dechring and we may not see * Capital structure and debt facilities arranged
a significant improvernent in our demand until in recognition of the cyclical nature of our
markets improve mamn end market
Competition
The already competitive market could become  * Create commercial advantage by providing
even more competitive and we could suffer the highest level of service, consistently and
increased competition from large national at a price which offers value
mpan ratin
competitors or small companies operating at a * Excel in the areas that provide barriers to
local level resulting in reduced market share and
entry to newcomers industry-leading
lower revenue
application of IT, experienced personnel and
@ broad network and equipment fleet
* Regularly estimate and monitor our market
share and track the performance of our
competitors to ensure that we are
performing effectively
Financing

Debt facilities are only ever commutted for a
finite period of time and we need to plan to
renew our facilities before they mature If we
were unable to complete this, there would be
a default at matunity which could give lenders
the night to assume control of our business or
to liquidate our assets in order to recover thewr
loan Our loan agreements also contain
conditions {known as covenants) with which
we must comply

Maintain conservative 2-3 times net debt to
EBITDA leverage which helps rmmimise our
refinancing risk

-

Maintain long debt maturities — currently five
years following March's ABL refinancing

Use of asset-based semsor facility means none
of our debt contains quarterly financial
covenants when excess avalability ($479m at
year end) exceeds $168m

Business continuity

We are heawily dependent on technology for the
smooth running of our business given the large
number of both units of equipment we rent and
of custorners we deal with over the course of a
year A serious uncured failure in our point of
sale IT platforms would have an immediate
tmpact on our bustness, rendering us unable

to record and track our high volume, low
transaction value operations

Robust and well-protected data centres with
multiple data links to protect against the risk
of fallure

Detailed business recovery plans which are
tested periodically

Separate near-live back-up data centres which
are designed to be able to provide the
necessary services in the event of a fallure at
the primary site

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011




Risk description Potential impact Strategy for mitigation
People
Retaining and attracting pood people 15 key *+ Provide well-structured and competitive
to deliverning supenor performance and reward and benefit packages that ensure our
customer service ability to attract and retain the employees
Excessive staff turnover 1s likely to impact on we need
our ability to mantain the appropriate quality of Ensure that our staff have the nght working
service to our customers and would ultimately environment and equipment to enable them
impact our financial performance adversely to do the best job possible and maxirmise their
satisfaction at work
* Invest in opportunities for our people to
enhance their skills and develop their careers
to the mutual benefit of both them and
the Group
Health and safety

Accidents happen which rght result in injury
to an individual, claims against the Group and
damage to our reputation

Maintain appropriate health and safety
policies and procedures to reasonably guard
our employees agamst the nisk of injury

Induction and training programmes reinforce
health and safety policies

Programmes to support our customers
exercising therr responsibility to thewr own
workforces when using our equipment

Compliance with laws and regulations

Fallure to comply with the frequently changing
regulatory environment could result n
reputational damage or financial penalty

Maintaining a legal function to oversee
management of these risks and to achieve
compliance wath relevant legislation

-

Group-wide ethics policy and whistle blowing
arrangements, by which employees may, in
confidence, raise concerns about any alleged
ymproprieties

L

Polioes and practices evolve to take account
of changes in legal obligations

Training and induction programmes ensure
our staff recerve appropriate training and
briefing on the relevant policies Competition
taw and the new UK Bnibery Act were a
particular focus this year

Environmental

We could fail to comply with the numerous
laws governing environmental protection and
occupational health and safety matters

These laws regulate such issues as wastewater,
stormwater, sobd and hazardous wastes and
materials, and air quality Breaches potentially
create hazards to our employees, damage to our
reputation and expase the Group to, amongst
other things, the cost of investigating and
remedrating contamimation at our sites as well
as sites to which we send hazardous wastes for
disposal or treatment regardless of fault, and
also fines and penalties for non-compliance

Policies and procedures in place at all our
stores regarding the need to adhere to local
laws and regulations

* Procurement policies reflect the need for the
latest available emissions management and
fuel efficiency tools in our fleet

* Monitorning and reporting of carbon emissions
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financial review

Trading
Revenue EBITDA Operating profit

2011 2010 201 2010 201 2010
Sunbelt In $m 1,224 7 1,080 5 388 2 3508 162 1 1166
Sunbelt in £m 782.7 6745 2481 2190 1036 727
A-Plant 1658 162 3 431 420 27 18
Croup central costs - - (74) (59) {75) (60)
Continuing operations 948 5 8368 2838 2551 $8.8 685
Net financing costs {67 8) 63 5)
Profit before taxation, exceptionals, remeasurements
and amortisation 310 50
Exceptional items (net} (219) (22)
Fair value remeasurements (57) 55
Amortisation (1.7) (25)
Profit before taxation 17 58
Taxation {0 8} (37
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 09 21
Margins
Sunbelt 317% 32 5% 132% 108%
A-Plant 26.0% 25 9% 16% 11%
Group 29 9% 30 5% 10 4% 82%

These results reflect a significant improvernent in our business despite
continued weakness in end construction markets Group revenue
improved by 13% (11% at constant exchange rates) to £949m

(2010 £837m) reflecting strong growth in fleet on rent and yield n

the US This revenue growth, continued cost control and the business
improvernent programmes initiated over the last two years combined
to generate underlying pre-tax profits of £31m for the year (2010 £5m)

Rental revenue grew 10% in Sunbelt to $1,084m (2010 $989m}
reflecting a 5% increase in average fleet on rent, 3% growth in yield

and a first-time contribution from Emptre Scaffold which was acquired in
January Sunbelt's total revenue growth of 13% was enhanced by higher
used equipment sales revenue as we began the cyclical reinvestment in
our fleets and hence sold more used equipment A-Plant’s total revenue
growth was 2% including 1% growth in rental revenue to £154m

(2010 £152m) Its average fieet on rent grew 2% whilst yield declined
by 1%

Both Sunbelt and A-Plant demonstrated improving trends through the
year which is reflected in fourth quarter performance Sunbelt's Q4 rental
revenue growth was 19% reflecting 6% growth in fleet on rent, 6% yield
improvement and a first-time contribution from Empire A-Plant’s rental
revenue growth in Q4 was 6% reflecting 4% yield growth and 2% growth
n fleet on rent

The improvement i our revenue and profit this year brought about
some one-time cost Increases as sales commussion and staff incentives
recovered from last year’s depressed levels Fuel costs also rose rapidly
with the increasing oil price However, tight cost control was mantaned
throughout the year which ensured that operating costs before
depreciation and used equipment sold rose more slowly than rental
revenue 1n both businesses For the Group as a whole, operating costs
{before depreciation and used equipment sold) rose by 7%, at constant
exchange rates, to £610m

Margins were impacted by significantly hugher, but inherently lower
margin, used equipment sales revenue this year of £61m (2010 £27m)
Despite this, full year EBITDA margins were 32% in Sunbelt (28% at the
low point of the last cycle in 2003) and 26% at A-Plant For the Group
as a whole the full year EBITDA margin was 30% (2010 30%)

Depreciation expense declined 3% at constant rates to £185m reflecting
the smaller average fleet size in the past fiscal year This, and the factors
discussed above meant that the underlying operating profit for the year
rose to $162m (2010 $117m) in Sunbelt and £3m in A-Plant (2010 £2m)

Reflecting these operating results, Group EBITDA before exceptional items
grew by £29m or 9% at constant rates to £284m (2010 £255m) whilst
the Group’s underlying operating profit grew 41% at constant rates to
£99m (2010 £68m}

Following the refinancing of our asset-based senior loan facility (ABL
facility’) in Novemnber 2009, hagher interest margins and an adverse
translation effect from the stronger doltar meant there was an increase in
the net financing cost for the year to £68m (2010 £63m) despite lower
average debt levels After interest, the underlying profit before tax for the
Group increased to £31m (2010 £5m) The tax charge for the year was
agam stable at 35% of the underlying pre-tax profit, with underlying

earmings per share increasing to 4 Op (2010 0 2p)
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Exceptional items and statutory results

There were no exceptional charges relating to operations thss year or last
Instead, as previously reported, the exceptional charges of £22m incurred
this year were all attributable to financing matters and compnised a £15m
non-cash write-off of the unamortised deferred financing costs on the
debt faciliies renewed or redeemed In the year (the ABL facility following
its renewal in March 2011 and the $250m 8 625% senior secured notes
redeemed in April 2011} and an early redemption fee of £7m on the notes

After these exceptional finance charges, a non-cash charge of £6m
relating to the remeasurement to fair value of the early prepayment
option 1n our long-term debt and amortisation of acquired intangibles of
£2m (2010 £2m), the reported profit before tax for the year was £2m
(2010 £5m) whlst basic earnings per share was 0 2p (2010 0 4p)

Dividends

Reflecting our policy of setting dividend levels in light of both profitability
and cash generation at a level that 1s sustainable across the cycle, the
Board Is recommending a final dividend of 2 07p per share {2010 2 0p)
making 3 Op for the year (2010 2 9p)

Payment of the 2010/11 dnvidend will cost £14 9m in total and 15 covered
13 umes by underlying earnings Whilst this coverage ratio s still quite
low, given the cychcality of the Group's earmings, the Board 1s comfortable
that the proposed dividend level 1s appropriate If approved at the
forthcorning Annual General Meeting, the final dwvidend will be paid on

9 Septernber 2011 to shareholders on the register on 19 August 2011

Current trading and outlook

The momentum we established throughout the past year has carried
forward into May with encouraging levels of fleet on rent and yield
growth For the month, rental revenue grew by 21% in Sunbelt, measured
mn dollars, and by 11% in A-Plant

Looking forward we remain cautious over the outlook for end construction
markets in the short term, particularly in the UK However, we continue

to benefit from the structural shift to rental, market share gains and the
improvements we have established in all key areas of our business
Together with our balance sheet strength and strong market positions,

this makes us confident of another year of good progress

Balance sheet

Fixed assets

As we began the cyclical reinvestment 1n our rental fleets, capital
expenditure in the year rose to £225m (2010 £63m} of which £202m
was mvested m the rental fleet (2010 £56m) Disposal proceeds totalled
£65m (2010 £32m) gving net expenditure of £160m (2010 £31m)

Expenditure on rental equipment was 90% of total capital expenditure,
with the balance relating to the delivery vehicle fleet, property
improverments and computer equipment Capital expenditure by division
was as follows

2om 2010
Sunbelt n $m 2950 696
Sunbelt in £m 176 9 455
A-Plant 255 101
Total rental equipment 202 4 556
Delivery vehicles, property improvements

and computers 224 78
Total additions 2248 634

This year capital expenditure was principally for replacernent

The average age of the Group's sentalised rental equipment, which
constitutes the substantial majority of our fleet, at 30 Apnil 2011 was 44
months (2010 44 months) on a net book value basis Sunbelt's fleet had
an average age of 44 months (2010 46 months) comprising 47 months
for aerial work platforms which have a longer bfe and 39 months for the
remainder of its fleet, while A-Plant’s fleet age was sirilar at 42 months
{2010 36 months)

As we continue to prepare for the next phase of the cycle, we expect
next year's capital expenditure to increase further to around 175% of
depreciation or around £325m gross Because most of this expenditure
will be fleet replacement, we anticipate disposal proceeds growing further
and hence expect net expenditure of about £250m in 2011/12, a
significant increase on this year's net £160m We anticipate that
expenditure at these levels will see Sunbelt’s fleet age reduce a littte

next year which we expect to be sufficient to ensure It remains
competitive relative to its larger peers and offers an advantage when

we are competing in local markets

The oniginal cost of the Group's rental fleet and the dollar and physical utdisation for the year ended 30 April 2011 15 shown below

Rental fleet at orginal cost

LTM rental UTMdollar  TM physical

30 April 2011 30April 2010 tTMaverage revenue utilisation utibisation

Sunbelt in $m 2,151 2,094 2121 1,084 51% 68%

Sunbelt n £m 1,289 1,368 1271 693 51% 68%

A-Plant 343 321 330 154 47% 69%
1,632 1,689 1,601 847

Dollar utilisation is defined as rental revenue divided by average fleet at original (or 'first’) cost and, in the year ended 30 Apnl 2011, was 51% at

Sunbelt (2010 47%) and 47% at A-Plant (2010 48%) Physicat utilisation is time-based utilisation, which 15 calculated as the daily average of the onginal
cost of equipment on rent as a percentage of the total value of equipment in the fleet at the measurement date and, in the year ended 30 April 2011,
was 68% at Sunbelt {2010 64%) and 69% at A-Plant {2010 69%) At Sunbelt, physical utilisation 15 measured only for equipment with an original cost

tn excess of 57,500 which compnised 90% of its fleet at 30 April 2011
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Trade receivables

Recevable days at 30 April 2011 were 46 days (2010 45 days) The bad
debt charge for the year ended 30 April 2011 as a percentage of total
revenue was 0 8% (2010 1 2%) Trade receivables at 30 April 2011 of
£132m (2010 £114m) are stated net of provisions for bad debts and credit
notes of £14m (2010 £16m) with the provision representing 9 4% (2010
12 0%) of gross recewables

Trade and other payables

Group payable days were 57 days in 2011 (2010 88 days) with capital
expenditure-related payables, which have longer payment terms totalling
£58m (2010 £28m) Payment periods for purchases other than rental
equipment vary between seven and 45 days and for rental equipment
between 30 and 120 days

Provisions

Provisions of £33m (2010 £41m) relate to the provision for self-insured
retained risk under the Group's self-insurance policies, as well as to vacant
property provisions The Group's business exposes it to claims for personal
injury, death or property damage resulting from the use of the equipment
it rents and from injuries caused in motor vehicle acaidents in which its
vehicles are involved The Group carries msurance covering a wide range of
potential claims at levels it believes are sufficient to cover existing and
future clasms

Cur liability insurance programmes provide that we can recover our
hability related to each and every valid claim in excess of an agreed excess
amount of $500,000 A higher excess existed on our general liability
policies in the amount of $2m until September 2008 and then $650,000
until September 2010 In the UK our self-insured excess per claim is much
lower than in the US and 1s typically £100,000 per clam or less Our
liability insurance coverage ts imited to a maximum of £150m per claim

Pensions

The Group operates a number of pension plans for the benefit of
employees, for which the overall charge included in the financial
statements was £2m (2010 £1m) Amongst these, the Group has one
defined benefit pension plan which covers approximately 125 remaining
active employees in the UK and which was closed to new members in
2001 All our other pension plans are defined contribution plans

The Group's defined benefit pension plan was, measured in accordance
with the accounting standard IAS 19, Employee Benefits, £6m i surplus at
30 April 2011 (2010 £7m in deficit) The investment return on plan assets
exceeded the expected return by £4m and there was an experience gain
on Labilities of £2m In addition, during the year we adopted a number of
‘best estimate’ refinements to the methods used for estimating inputs to
the actuanal calculation such as the proportion of plan members who opt
for cash cornmutation at retirement and more relevant mortality
assumptions These assumption changes were first agreed by the plan
trustees with the plan actuary durning preparation of the triennial valuation
of the plan at 30 April 2010 Also, we moved to CPI for revaluation of
deferred pensions rather than RPI following the change implemented by
the government In aggregate these changes delivered a net reduction in
year end plan abilities of £6m Overall, there was a net actuarial gain of
£13m tn the year which, in accordance with our accounting policy of
immediate recognition, was taken to the statement of comprehensive
incormne for the year

The next tnennial review of the plan’s funding position by the trustees and
the actuary 1s due at 30 Apnil 2013 The Apnl 2010 valuation, which was
completed last October, showed a smiall deficit of £2m which is being
cleared over the five years to Apnl 2015 through additional contnbutions
of £0 4m per annum

Contingent habilities

The Group 1s subject to peniodic legal claims in the ordinary course of its
business, none of which 1s expected to have a sigmficant impact on the
Group’s fiancial position

In spring 2011, following audits of the tax returns of the Group's US
subsidiznies for the four years ended 30 April 2009, the US Internal
Revenue Service ('IRS') 1ssued revised assessments and associated notices
of interest and penalties ansing from its reclassification of certain US
intercormpany debt in those years from debt to equity and its consequent
recharacterisation of US interest payments to the UK as equity-like
distributions The revised assessments would result in additional net tax
payments due of $32m together with interest and penalties of $13m
Detailed protest letters setting out the reasons why we disagree with
these assessments and believe that no adjustment 1s warranted were
submitted to the [RS on 29 March 201

If, contrary to our view, the IRS prevailed in its arguments the Group

has been adwised that application to the UK tax authorities under the
Competent Authority procedure should enable a corresponding
adjustment reducing UK intercompany interest recevable and hence UK
tax to be agreed Taking account of this UK offset, the estimated impact
of the IRS's proposed adjustrnents at 30 April 2011 would be to increase
current tax payable by £27m, current tax receivable by £7m, deferred tax
liabilities by £51m and deferred tax assets by £43m, while shareholders’
equity would reduce by approximately £28m

Having taken external professional advice, the directors consider that the
adjustments proposed by the IRS audit team have no merit and intend to
defend this position vigorously Whilst the procedures that have to be
followed to resolve this sort of tax 1ssue make 1t likely that it will be some
years before the eventual outcome Is known, the Board does not
anticipate this matter having any matenal impact on the Group's results
or financial position

Cash flow
Year to 30 Apnl
2om 2010
Em fm
EBITDA before exceptional items 2838 2551

Cash inflow from operations before exceptional
costs and changes in rental equipment 2797 2656
Cash conversion ratto 98 6% 1041%

Mantenance rental capital expenditure paid {1822) (361)

Payments for non-rental capital expenditure (20 4) 67
Rental equipment disposal proceeds 550 268
Other property, plant and equipment

disposal proceeds 45 40
Tax (paid)/receved — net {4 3) 03
Finanaing costs paid (667) (547)
Cash flow before payment of exceptional costs 656 1992
Exceptional costs paid {1200 (82
Total cash generated from operations 536 1910
Business acquisitions (348 {07
Total cash generated 188 1903
Dvidends paid {146) [(128)
Share buybacks and other equity transactions {net) (04) -
Decrease in net debt 38 1775

* Cash inflow from operations before exceptional items and changes in rental equiprment as a
percentage of EBITDA before exceptional stems
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Cash inflow from operations before exceptional tems and changes in
rental equiprment grew 5% to £280m As end markets recovered leading
to increased profits on sale of fixed assets {which are inctuded in EBITDA

but not in cash inflow from operations) and slightly higher working capital,

the cash conversion ratio reverted to a more normal level of 98 6%
compared to the unusually high ratio of 104 1% achieved last year during
the recession

Total payments in the year for capital expenditure (rental equipment and
other PPE) were £202m, a little below the £225m of capital expenditure
detivered in the year due to the impact of supplier payment terms
Disposal proceeds recewved totalled £59m giving net payments for capital
expenditure of £143m In the year (2010 £12m)

After financing costs paid of £67m, tax paid of £4m and exceptional costs
of £12m {£5m of closed property costs onginally provided tn 2008/9 and
the £7m early redemption fee on the $250m 8 625% senior secured notes
redeemed in April 2011) the Group generated £54m of net cash inflow in
the year (2010 £191m)

£35m of this net inflow was spent on acquisitions whilst £15m was
distributed to shareholders through diwvidends and share purchases by our
ESOT The remaning £4m was applied to tower outstanding debt

Capital structure

The Group's capital structure 1s kept under regular review Our operations
are financed by a combination of debt and equity We seek to mintmise
the cost of capital while recognising the constraimnts of the debt and
equity markets At 30 April 2011 our pre-tax average cost of capital was
around 95%

The Group targets leverage of between two and three times net debt to
EBITDA over the economic cycle

In considering returns to equity holders, the Board aims to provide a
progressive dividend, having regard to both profits and cash generation
while seeking to keep to a level that 1s sustainable over the cycle

Net debt

The chart below shows how, measured at constant Apnl 2011 exchange
rates for comparability, we held debt flat in 2006 and 2007 whilst
investing sigrificantly in fleet reconfiguration and de-ageing following the
NationsRent acquisition Through 2008 to 2010, we significantly lowered
our cap:tal expenditure, taking advantage of our young average fleet age,
and consequently delvered sigmificant reductions in outstanding debt,
paying-off around one third of our debt in this way In the past year, as
we stepped up our net capital expenditure once again in anticipation of
recovery, net debt at constant exchange rates remained broadly flat

In greater detail, closing net debt at 30 April 2011 comprised

2o0m 2070
Em im
First priority senior secured bank debt 4671 3675

Finance lease obligations 30 35

8 625% second prionty senior secured notes, due 2015 - 1602
9% second prionty senior secured notes, due 2016 3244 3526

7945 8838
Cash and cash equivalents (188) (548}
Total net debt 7757 8290

All our debt at both 30 April 2010 and 2011 was drawn i dollars providing
a substantial but partial natural hedge against Sunbelt's dollar-based
net assets

The ratio of net debt to underlying EBITDA at constant rates was 2 9 times
at 30 April 2011 (2010 3 1 times) bringing this ratio back within our 2-3
times target range This calcutation uses Group EBITDA before
exceptionals for the 2010/11 year of £268m calculated at 30 April 2011
exchange rates At actual rates net debt leverage was 2 7 times at 30 Apnl
2011 (2010 3 2 times)

Our debt package remains well structured for the challenges of current
market conditions We retain substantial headroom on facilities which

are committed for the long term, an average of 51 years at 30 Apnl 2011,
with the first maturity being on our asset-based sermior bank faciity which
extends until March 2016 The weighted average interest cost of our debt
facilities (including non-cash amortisation of deferred debt raising costs)
1s approximately 5 5%

Financial performance covenants under the $550m senior secured notes
1ssues are only measured at the time new debt is raised There are two
financial performance covenants under the asset-based first prionty semor
bank faciity

* funded debt to EBITDA before exceptional items not to exceed 4 0
times, and

* a fixed charge ratio {comparing EBITDA before exceptional items less
net capital expenditure paid in cash over the sum of scheduled debt
repayments plus cash interest, cash tax payments and dividends paid)
which 15 required to be equal to or greater than 11 times

These covenants do not, however, apply when availability (the difference
between the borrowing base and facility utilisation) exceeds 12% of the
$14bn facility size or $168m At 30 Apnil 2011 excess avadability under
the bank facility was $479m (2010 $537m} Consequently the Group's
entire debt package 15 expected to remain effectively covenant free, as
has been the case during each year since the current debt structure was
adopted in 2004 Although the covenants were not therefore required to
be measured at 30 Apnil 2011, the Group was in compltance with both of
thern at that date, as it had been throughout the fiscal year
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Debt facilities
The Group's principal debt facilities are as follows

Asset-based first priority secured bank debt

In March 2017, the first prionity asset-based semior secured loan facility
{'ABL facility’) was renewed and now consists of a single $14bn revolving
credit facility commutted until March 2016 The facility 1s non-amertising
Pricing for the renewed facility 1s based on the ratio of funded debt to
EBITDA according to a grid which varies, depending on leverags, from
LIBOR plus 200bp to 250bp At 30 April 2011, the Group's borrowing
rate was LIBOR plus 225bp, 100bp below the rate on the previous

2013 commitments

As the facility 1s asset-based, the maximum amount available to be
borrowed (which includes drawings in the form of standby letters of
credit) depends on asset values {recervables, inventory, rental equipment
and real estate) which are subject to periodic Independent appraisal and
was imited to $1,276m (£765m) at 30 Apnil 2011 $823m was drawn

Minimum contracted debt commitments

under the facility at 30 April 2011 (including letters of credit totalling
$27m) which, including $26m of eligible cash on hand, gave excess
availability of $479m

9% second priority senior secured notes due 2016 having

a nominal value of $550m

On 15 August 2006, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary
Ashtead Capital, Inc, 1ssued $550m of 9% second priority semior secured
notes due 15 August 2016 The notes are secured by secand priority
securty interests over substantially the same assets as the semor secured
credit facility and are also guaranteed by Ashtead Group plc

Under the terms of the notes, the Group 15, subject to important
exceptions, restricted in its ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends,
make investments, sell assets, enter into sale and leaseback transactions
and merge or consolidate with another company Interest 1s payable
serru-annually on 15 February and 15 August each year The notes are
bisted on the Offiaal List of the UK Listing Authonty

The table below summarises the maturity of the Group’s debt and also shows the minimum annual commitments under off balance sheet operating

leases at 30 April 2011 by year of expiry

Payments due by year ended 30 Apnil

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bank and other debt - - - - 474 2 - 474 2
Finance leases 17 10 03 - - - 30
9 0% senior secured notes - - - - - 3297 3297
17 10 03 - 474 2 3297 8069
Deferred costs of raising finance - - - - (77) (53) (124}
Cash at bank and in hand (18 8) - - - - - (18 8)
Net debt (171] 10 03 - 4571 3244 7757
Operating leases' 339 287 243 199 154 616 1838
Total 168 297 246 199 4825 3860 9595

" Represents the minimum payments to which we were committed under operating leases

Operating leases relate pnncipally to properties, which constituted 99%
{£183m) of our total mimmum lease commitments

Except for the off balance sheet operating leases described above, £16m
{$27m) of standby letters of credit 1ssued at 30 Aprit 2011 under the first
priority senior debt facility relating to the Group’s insurance programmes
and $1m of performance bonds granted by Sunbelt, we have no material
commitments that we could be obligated to pay in the future which are
not included in the Group's consolidated balance sheet

Presentation of financial information

Currency translation and interest rate exposure

Qur reporting currency 1s the pound sterting However, a majority of

our assets, habilities, revenue and costs are denominated in US dollars
Fluctuations in the value of the US dollar with respect to the pound
sterling have had, and may continue to have, a significant impact on our
financial condition and results of operations as reported in pounds sterting
due to the majority of our assets, liabilities, revenue and costs being
denorminated in US dollars

We have arranged our financing so that virtually all our debt was
denominated in US dollars at 30 April 2011 At that date, dollar-
denominated debt represented approximately 80% of the value of
dollar-denormmated net assets (other than debt) providing a partial,
but substantial, hedge against the translation effects of changes in the
dollar exchange rate

The dollar interest payable on this debt also Limits the impact of changes
in the dollar exchange rate on our pre-tax profits and earmings Based on

the currency mix of our profits currently prevailing and on current dollar
debt levels and interest rates, every 1% change in the US dollar exchange
rate would impact pre-tax profit by £0 4m

Revenue

Our revenue 15 a function of our rental rates and the size, utilsation and
mix of our equipment rental fleet The rates we charge are affected In
large measure by utilsation and the relative attractiveness of our rental
equipment, while utilisation 1s determined by market size and our market
share, as well as general economic conditions Utilisation 1s time-based
utilisation which 1s calculated as the onginal cost of equipment on rent

as a percentage of the total value of equipment in the fleet at the
measurement date In the US, we measure time utilisation on those items
In our fleet with an ornginal cost of $7,500 or more which constituted 90%
of our US senalised rental equipment at 30 April 2011 In the UK, time
utilisation 1s measured for all our serialised rental equipment The size, mix
and relative attractiveness of our rental equipment fleet is affected
significantly by the level of our capital expenditure

The main components of our revenue are

* revenue from equipment rentals, including related revenue such as the
fees we charge for equipment delivery, erection and dismantling
services for our scaffolding rentals, fuel provided with the equipment
we rent to custorners and loss damage waiver and environmental fees,

» revenue from sales of new merchandise, including sales of parts and
revenue from a lirrited number of sales of new equipment, and

* revenue from the sale of used rental equipment
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Costs
The main components of our total costs are

+ staff costs — staff costs at our stores as well as at our central support

offices represent the largest single component of our total costs Staff

costs consist of salartes, profit share and bonuses, social security costs,

and other pension costs, and comprised 33% of our total operating

costs In the year ended 30 Apnil 2011,

used rental equipment sold which compnises the net book value of

the used equipment sold n the year as It was stated in our accounts

immediately prior to the time at which it was sold and any direct

costs of disposal, compnised 7% of our operating costs in the year

ended 30 Apnl 2011,

other operating costs — comprised 38% of total costs in the year ended

30 Apnl 2011 These costs include

— spare parts, consumables and outside repair costs — costs incurred for
the purchase of spare parts used by our workshop staff to maintain
and repair our rental equipment as well as outside repair costs,

— faclities costs — rental payments on leased facilities as well as utility
costs and local property taxes relating to these facilities,

~ vehicle costs — costs incurred for the maintenance and operation
of our vehicle fleet, which consists of our delivery trucks, the light
commercial vehicles used by our mobile workshop staff and cars used
by our sales force, store managers and cther management staff, and

— other costs — all other costs incurred 1n operating our business,
including the costs of new equipment and merchandise sold,
advertising costs and bad debt expense

depreciation — the depreciation of our property, plant and equipment,

tncluding rental equipment, comprised 22% of total costs in the year

ended 30 April 2011

A large proportion of our costs are fixed in the short to mediurn term,
and matenal adjustments in the size of our cost base typically result only
from openings or closures of one or more of our stores Accordingly, our
business modet 1s such that small increases or reductions in our revenue
can result in little or no change in our costs and often therefore have a
disproportionate imipact on our profits We refer to this feature of our
business as ‘operational leverage’

Critical accounting policies

We prepare and present our financial staternents in accordance with
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) In applying
many accounting principles, we need to make assumptions, estimates and
Judgements These assumptions, estirnates and judgements are often
subjective and may be affected by changing circumstances or changes in
our analysis Changes in these assumptions, estimates and judgements
have the potential to matenally affect our results We have identified
below those of our accounting policies that we believe would most likely
produce matenially different results were we to change underlying
assumptions, estimates and judgements These policies have been
applied consistently

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the total amount recevable for the provision of goods
and services to customers net of returns and value added tax Rental
revenue, ncluding loss damage waiver and environmental fees, 15
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the rental contract
Because rental contracts extend across financial reporting periods, the
Group records unbilled rental revenue and deferred revenue at the
beginning and end of the reporting penods so rental revenue I1s
appropnately stated in the financial statements

Revenue from rental equipment delivery and collection 1s recogrised when
delivery or collection has occurred and is recorded as rental revenue

Revenue from the sale of rental equipment, new equipment, parts and
supplies, retail merchandise and fuel 1s recognised at the time of delivery
to, or collection by, the custorner and when all obligations under the sales
contract have been fulfilled

©) =

Revenue from sates of rental equipment in connection with trade-in
arrangements with certain manufacturers from whom the Group
purchases new equipment are accounted for at the lower of transaction
value or farr value based on independent appraisals if the trade-in price of
a unit of equipment exceeds the fair market value of that unit, the excess
15 accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related purchase of new
rental equipment

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

We record expenditure for property, plant and equipment at cost We
depreciate equipment using the straight-line method over its estimated
useful economic Iife (which ranges from three to 20 years with a weighted
average life of eight years) We use an estimated residual value of 10-15%
of cost in respect of most types of our rental equipment, although the
range of residual values used vares between zero and 30% We establish
our estimates of useful life and residual value with the objective of
allocating most appropriately the cost of property, plant and equipment
to our incame statement, over the period we anticipate it will be used

in our bustniess

We may need to change these estimates iIf experience shows that the
current estimates are not achieving this objective If these estimates
change in the future, we may then need to recogrise increased or
decreased depreciation expense Our total depreciation expense in the
year ended 30 April 2011 was £185m

Impairment of assets

Goodwill 1s not amortised but is tested annually for imparment at

30 April Assets that are subject to armortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment
loss 15 recogrised in the income staternent for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identifiabte and independent cash flows for the asset
being tested for impairment In the case of goodwill, imparrment s
assessed at the level of the Group's reporting units The recoverable
amount 1s the hugher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value

In use

Management necessarily applies its judgement in estimating the tirming
and value of underlying cash flows within the value i use calculation as
well as determining the appropriate discount rate Subsequent changes to
the magritude and tirming of cash flows could impact the carrying value of
the respective assets

Self-insurance

We establish provistons at the end of each financial year to cover our
estimate of the discounted Liability for uninsured retamed nisks on unpaid
claims ansing out of events occurming up to the end of the financal year
The estimate includes events incurred but not reported at the balance
sheet date The provision 1s established using advice received from
external actuaries who help us extrapolate historical trends and estimate
the most likely level of future expense which we will incur on outstanding
claims These estimates may however change, based on varying
crcumstances, including changes tn our experience of the costs we incur
in setthing claums over ime  Accordingly, we may be required to increase
or decrease the provision held for self-insured retained nisk At 30 April
2011, the total provision for self-insurance recorded in our consobdated

batance sheet was £19m
< \QQ@#

Geoff Drabble lan Robson
Chief executive Finance director
15 June 201
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At Ashtead we are committed to running our business in a responsible and
sustainable way. We have an obligation to ensure that our employees are
safe and well looked after and that our business adheres to the highest
ethical standards.

We also look to offer assistance to our customers in fulfilling their responsibility to ensure their own
employees are safe when using the equipment they rent from us Alongside our equipment suppliers,

we invest in providing information and training on the safe usage of our equipment Qur employees are
our greatest asset and we seek to provide them with access to mdustry leading traming and development
programmes, as well as competitive pay and benefits and a rewarding work environment In addition,

we work hard to ensure that any negative impact of our operations on the envirenment 1s imited and
we endeavour to contribute positively to the communities in which we operate our stores
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corporate responsibility report

We are committed to running
our business in a responsible
and sustainable way

How we manage corporate responsibility

We manage our Group environmental, health and safety
and risk management processes through our Group Risk
Commuittee which reports to the Group chief executive
and the Audit Committee This committee ensures that
the efforts of Sunbelt and A-Plant are coordinated so
that best practice in one business can be shared and
adopted by the other

The Committee is chaired by an executive director of Ashtead Group plc,
currently our Finance Director, lan Robson, with its other members being

* the heads of Sunbelt's and A-Plant's nsk and safety teams,
* UK and US legal counsel,

* the heads of Sunbelt's and A-Plant’s performance standards (internal
operational audit) teams, and

* the Sunbelt board member to wham its legat counsel and safety
director report

The Group Risk Committee provides the Audit Commuttee, and through
themn the Board, with a comprehensive annual report on its activities
including details of the areas identified in the year as requiring
improvement and the status of actions being taken to make the necessary
improvements In this way we are able to ensure that there is an effective
‘chain of command’ within the business in relation to environmental,
health and safety and risk management issues

Health and safety

Because of the nature of our business, health and safety
concerns need to be at the heart of how we operate
Our business involves frequent moverment and
maintenance of large and heavy pieces of equipment
Rigorous safety processes are essential if we are to avoid
accidents which could cause injury to our people and
damage our reputation

Our industry 1s subject to many legislative and regulatory obligations
Some of these, as they relate to stricter health and safety requirements,
help change the way equipment 15 procured on construction sites to

our advantage This 1s because what may quickly becorne onerous for
contractors, where mamntenance and safe operation of equipment may
not be their prime or even secondary focus, 1s a fundamentat part of our
business We take our health and safety commitments extremely seriously
and belteve that if our stores were to fail to adhere to the tugh standards
we set in our policies and procedures, we might lose our competitive
advantage as a leader in the equpment rental industry

Therefore, we have extensive programmes in place to develop and
maintain safe working practices across the Group and to rermind our
employees of the need to be safe at all imes We also spend significant
time drawing our custorners’ attention to the importance of these issues
for their own employees A copy of the relevant formal statement of
Sunbelt’s and A-Plant’s policies on health and safety is required to be
displayed at each store We make a considerable annual investment in
ensuring that our rental equipment meets or exceeds the latest safety
standards, as well as providing health and safety advice and materials,

as and when required, along with each rental

A-Plant has 150 9001 (the Quality Standard) accreditation across all
its operations as well as ISO 14001 (Environmental managerment)

and OHSAS 18001 {Occupational Health & Safety management)
accreditations These certifications give confidence to the UK’s largest
custorners {who we find are most focused on site safety) that we have
in place the appropnate policies, traiming programmes, feedback and
auditing and monitoring processes to munimise our impact on the
environment and ensure the safety of our workforce
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We mamtain stzeable internal health and safety teams to ensure that

the appropriate health and safety precautions are in place throughout
our business We track and analyse any incidents which occur to enable
us to identify recurrent 1ssues and implement preventative impravements
across our UK and US networks

The main way that we track health and safety across the business 1s by the
number of reported incidents that occur duning the course of our work As
reported above, this is also one of our key performance indicators Over
the last year, Sunbelt (excluding Empire) had 388 reported nadents
relative to an average workforce of 5,348 (2010 414 incidents relative to a
workforce of 5,675) whilst the UK had 281 ncidents relative to an average
workfarce of 1,921 (2010 318 incidents relative to an average workforce
of 1976) Anincident for this purpose does not necessarily mean that an
employee was hurt or injured Rather, it represents an event that we track
and report for monitoring and remedsal purposes under our health and
safety management policies

Legislation in the US and UK defines reportable incidents under rules
which differ between the two countries Under these definitions which
generally encompass more incidents in the US than in the UK, Sunbelt
{excluding Empire) had 184 OSHA (Occupatianal Safety and Health
Adrinistration) recordable incidents (2010 231 incidents) which, relative
to total employee hours worked, gave a Total Inaident Rate of 2 72

{2010 3 21) Inthe UK, A-Plant had 40 RIDDOR (Reporting of Injuries,
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995) reportable
cidents (2010 63) which, relative to total employee hours worked,
gave a RIDDOR reportable rate of 0 95 (2010 152)

In the US, an OSHA recordable incident is one where medical attention
more extensive than simple first aid 1s required whereas in the UK a
RIDDOR reportable incident (as defined by the UK Health and Safety
Executive) 1s an incident which results in the injured employee being
unable to complete his normat duties or being off work for more than
three days In order to compare accident rates between the US and UK,
Sunbelt also applies the UK RIDDOR definition to its accident population
whuch gave a figure this year of 115 RIDDOR recordable accidents in the
US On a bke-for-like basis in the year ended April 2011, Sunbelt therefore
had a RIDDOR recordable accident rate of 0 85, slightly better than
A-Plant’s rate of 0 95

We are pleased to report that this year our UK incident rate has decreased
to levels consistent with previous experience As we reported at the time,
the increase in UK incidents last year did not reflect a reduced focus on
health and safety matters, however it 15 reassuring that previous norms
have now been regatned

Regular employee education and awareness training 1s, n our view, the
most effective way of improving and sustaining safety standards across
our businesses and both businesses continue to invest in providing these
programmes We also seek continually to educate our employees and our
customers about new and improved methods to ensure employees
operate in a safe environment

For example, over the last few years Sunbelt has sought to reduce
employee incidents and imunes through a cormprehensive combination
of proactive leadership training, enhanced safety programmes/training,
and improved ncident response/investigation Duning the latter part of
2010/11, the third instalment of the *Safety Leadership Tramntng Senes’
was delivered to all store managers, district managers, regional vice
presidents, and setect members of management from other departments
such as, but not imited to, equipment service and transportation
dispatch The purpose of this traiming was to renforce the role our
operational leaders hold in establishing and enhancing a 'Culture of Safety
and to ensure they are equipped to fulfil this role In addition, a refresher
course on Decision Driving has been rolled out to all Sunbelt drivers and
store managers to reinforce safe driving practices

¥

In the UK, we concentrated this year on impraving safety particularly
amongst our delivery truck drivers, by monitoring speeds remotely

and fitting speed limeters to all newly acquired vehicles We monitor
weekly reports on driver behaviour and are working to Increase awareness
of the importance of safe driving within legal speed imits in addition, all
new drivers are required to attend a 4V day training programme at our
own driver traiming centre in Nottingham The work done so far has
significantly reduced accidents leading to lower repair and insurance costs
as well as reducing the nisk of serious on-road accident and injury

Vehicle Fall Protection System

Another initiative In recent years in the UK was the development
and launch of our Vehicle Fall Protection System ("VFPS') to
protect our drivers when loading and unloading equipment from
our delivery trucks The need for this arises because in the UK it1s
typical to use raised bed delivery trucks whereas, in the US, low
loaders are more typically used for equipment deliveries VFPS
comprises a walkway down each side of the vehicle, allowing the
driver to safely load equipment when it 1s of similar wdth to the
vehicle and 15 simple to deploy VFPS is already getting a good
respanse within the industry and 15 further evidence of our
comrmitment to the health and safety of our staff
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Ethics

Ashtead aims to have the highest ethical standards in its
operations and has a Group-wide ethics policy which 1s
communicated though Sunbelt’s and A-Plant’s employee
communicatton programmes to all employees

In addition we have a Group entertainment policy which sets out
expectations in this area Both businesses have n place whistle blowing
arrangements, by which employees may, in confidence, raise concerns
about any alleged improprieties We have extensive training and induction
programmes to ensure our staff receve the appropnate training and
briefing on relevant ethics-related policies

This year we have completed extensive traming in preparation for the new
UK Bribery Act We rolled out our Competing Farrly training in December
2010 in both our UK and US businesses and we believe that all relevant
staff (airca 2,000 employees) undertook the traming All new refevant
employees will be required to undertake the training and it 15 ikely that
there will be annual refresher training for all those who have taken the
traning to date

Building the Ronald McDonald House in Charlotte, NC
There are more than 280 Ronald McDonald Houses operating
worldwide offering support and care to farmlies struggling with
sick children With two major children’s hospitals within a few
miles of each other, Charlotte, the headquarters of Sunbelt in
the US, was an ideal place for a new Ronald McDonald House
Sunbelt has been the sole rental equipment provider for the new
centre and has donated more than $164,000 of equipment
rentals to date

Sunbelt Employee Relief Fund

The Sunbelt Rentals Employee Relief Fund originated as a
NationsRent inihiative and was set up in 2004 after Hurricane
Charley severely affected a number of NationsRent employees
and therr families It has now become part of our long-term
strategy to assist our people through catastrophic financial
hardship The Fund Is a public charity so contrtbutions from
employees, other indviduals and businesses are tax deductible
Any employee who has been affected by a natural disaster or who
15 affected by any other catastrophic event such as terminal illness
within their farmily, severe accident, traurna, fire or other loss that
has caused financial hardship can apply for assistance from the
Fund Applications are then assessed by the Fund Awards Adwisory
Panel which makes an award recornmendation based on the loss
sustained and the funds available

Employees

We are a service business and we differentiate ourselves
by the strength of our service offering Our employees
are a key component of our competitive advantage
because they provide our high levels of customer
service At 30 Apnl 2011, we had 8,100 employees
across the Group, 6,200 in the US and 1,900 in the UK

Reward and benefits

We place enormous value on the welfare and job sabisfaction of our
employees Our staff are rewarded through a combination of competitive
pay and attractive incentive programmes These help us attract and retain
good people In addition to therr core benefits, including pension and life
Insurance arrangements, our UK staff enjoy a wide range of personal
benefits known as the Advantages programme through which they can
get discounts on a wide range of products and services Both businesses
have an employee assistance helpline which offers free confidential
support and advice to those in need
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Our employees benefit from extensive on-the-job traiming schemes and
are incentivised to deliver supenor performance and customer service We
prde ourselves on many of our staff rematning with us throughout their
careers, something which 15 increasingly uncommon Several of our most
senior staff started out at entry level within our stores and thetr continuity
of employment 1s testament to our focus on employee development We
continue to take action consistently through the year to maintain and
develop arrangements aimed at involving employees in the Group's affairs
For example, regular meetings are held at stores to discuss performance
and enable employees to input into ways of improving performance and
service levels

Recruitment

The recession of the last few years has meant that our recruitment levels
have been lower than before, except for our UK apprenticeship programme
which 15 discussed further below That situation 15 now changing both in
the US and in the UK and we anticipate recruitment levels nsing once
again as it 1s probably inewitable that we shall see some increase in staff
turnover as the economy improves In the UK we are now able to recruit
extensively through http./fwww aplant jobs whilst similar web-based
application routes are being evaluated for the US

Diversity and equal opportunities

We are committed to ensuring equal opportunities for all our staff, as
well as to priontising employment diversity We use numerous recruiting
sources including, but not limited to, locat community agencies and
contacts, minority and wornen’s orgamsations, colleges and job fairs

In the UK, we predominantly recruit from the areas immediately around
our faclities This meant that we were well prepared to meet the local
recruitment requirements that we signed up to when we were appointed
a rental prowder to the Olympic site in east London

We make every reasonable effort to give disabled applicants and existing
employees becoming disabled, opportunities for work, training and career
development in keeping with therr aptitudes and abilities We do not
discriminate aganst any individual on the basis of a protected status, such
as sex, colour, race, religion, native onigin or age Qurs 1s by its nature still a
predommantly male workforce given that work at our rental stores often
involves Lftng heavy equipment, but nonetheless, we have women at all
levels in both the US and UK For example, we have 10 female store
managers and 12 female sales executives in the UK, as well as three
women on our apprenticeship programme In the US, amengst our
management team, our finance director, HR director, head of nsk and our
legal counsel are all women We also have eight female store managers
and 106 female sales executives We are committed to providing excellent
training and career paths for all employees who work at Ashtead

In the US we are required by law to momtor ethnicity in our workforce
every year and maintain a diverse workforce This year, in the UK, as part
of our move towards online recruitment, we are also beginning to gather
ethmicity data as part of the recruitment process We are committed to
providing opportunities for people from all ethnic groups and in both
geographies we have good representation from ethntc minonties across
the organisation In the UK, both A-Plant’s chief executive and its
marketing director are of Asian descent

In addition, before the recent change in UK law which removes the default
retrement age of 65 comes into full effect, we already by agreement have
a number of staff working beyond 65 and expect that to increase in the
future In the US, there 1s already no set retirement age

Training

Having a skilled and qualified workforce provides us with differential
advantages in the equipment rental business We pnde ourselves on
having a highly skilled workforce with particular emphasis placed on

the responsibilities of our store managers and workshop foremen to
facilitate on-the-job training There are also each year a number of more
formal initratives, some of which have already been referred to earlier In
this report

Apprenticeship programme

We believe that A-Plant’s apprenticeship programme is one of the
most successful in our industry and it is one which we have
protected in the last three years of cost reduction This year

we recruited 24 apprentices, split into three categories — plant
maintenance apprentices, customer service apprentices and
driver apprentices and now have 57 apprentices in all During
the programme the plant maintenance apprentices undertake
some residential training in modules offered by A-Plant’s training
partner, Reaseheath College in Cheshire We believe we have
one of the highest apprentice retention rates in the industry with
typicalty over 85% of those graduating from the programme

still employed one year after completing therr traiming

Sunbelt University

In the U5, while we do not have an apprenticeship programme, we have
very broad-based ongoing traiming for staff For example, our "Sunbelt
University” offers over 150 different online training modules for staff to
complete In the US this year we began implementing a Sales Leadership
Foundation programme for senior store and distnct leadership to improve
the consistency in our sales processes and encourage mare open dialogue
and communication to increase sales The programme includes a series of
five key sales management sessions following which the participants
extend what they have learned across the whole sales team in therr distnct
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Environment

The Group 1s committed to taking reasonable acttons to
mmimise the risk of adverse impact on the environment
from our business We achieve this by a policy of
investing 1n

= the regular renewal of our rental fleets to ensure that the equipment we
provide to our customers incorporates the latest environmental design
available from our chosen manufacturers,
= our network of stores to ensure that they are adequately equipped to
operate In a safe and secure way, protective of the environment Key
matters which are addressed in this programme are wash-down bays
to collect and safely dispose of materials released when we inspect and
clean equipment returned from rent, enclosed pant booths and spray
shops to ensure that repainting of equipment can be conducted safely
and securely, bunded fuel tanks and designated spill areas to ensure
secure fuelling of our fleet and, where relevant, vehicles We also seek
to ensure proper arrangements are made, through the use of reputable
vendors, for the collection and disposal of waste fuels and oils, tyres
and other old or broken parts released as we service and maintain our
rental fleets,
a rmodern and efficient delivery truck fleet which enables us to ensure
that our vehicles are purchased with regard for good emissions
management and fuel efficiency, and
ensunng, wherever practicable, that we control noise tn and around
our depots so as not to unduly impact the cornmunities immediately
surrounding them

We also support the initiatives of the Carbon Disclosure Project in the
management of harmful carbon dioxide ermissions We participate in its
annual survey and report on our carbon dioxide emissions in ine with
Defra guidelines Across the Group our estmated total CO. emissions in
the year to 30 Apnl 2011 were 165,000 tonnes (2010 181,000 tonnes)
This compnised 141,000 tonnes at Sunbelt {2010 155,000 tonnes) and
24,000 tonnes for A-Plant {2010 26,000 tonnes)

Whilst these emussion levels are low relative to our revenue and employee
numbers, we recognise that most of our emissions are generated by our
delivery truck fleet in transporting our equipment to customers’ job sites
Our customers expect and pay for this delivery but we are working on a
number of initiatives to help us cut our emissicon levels, such as the vehicle
speed reduction measures mentioned earlier In addition, on big, fong-term
construction sites, we are increasingly placing pools of our equpment at
the job site enabling equipment to be sourced on site and thereby
reducing the site’s overall transportation needs We have also invested In
developing the Auto Tool Hire Uit described on page 12, which allows the
storage of smaller tools at the job site Both these on-site initratives
reduce the need for item-by-item delivery to the job site thereby helping
to cut distribution emissions

We have also made good progress this year in the UK on reduang our
waste to landfill by sigmificantly mcreasmg the amount of waste that goes
to recycling

O\

Geoff Drabble
Chief executive
15 June 20M
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1 Chris Cole

Non-executive chairman @@

Chnis Cole has been a director since January 2002 and was appointed as
non-executive chairman in March 2007 Chris 1s chairman of the Normunation
Committee and a member of the Finance and Administration Committee
He is chief executive of WSP Group pl¢

Executive directors

2 Geoff Drabble

Chief executive ® @

Geoff Drabble was appointed as chief executive in [anuary 2007, having
served as chief executive designate from October 2006 and as a non-
executive director since April 2005 Geoff was previously an executive
director of The Laird Group PLC where he was responsible for its Buillding
Products dwision Prior to joining The Laird Group, he held a number of
senor management positions at Black & Decker Geoff is chairman of
the Finance and Admimistration Commuttee and a member of the
Nomination Committee

3 lanRobson

Finance director ®

lan Robseon has been finance director since June 2000 Prior to June
2000, 1an held a series of senior financial positions at Reuters Group plc
for four years Before joining Reuters Group plc, he was a partner at Price
Waterhouse (now PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP) lan 1s a member of the
Finance and Administration Committee

4 Brendan Horgan

Chuef executive officer, Sunbelt

Brendan Horgan was appointed a director in January 2011 Brendan
Jjoined Sunbelt in 1986 and, in recent years, has held a number of semor
management positions including chief sales officer and chief operating
officer Brendan 1s a US citizen and lves in Charlotte, North Carolina

5 Sat Dhaiwal

Chief executive officer, A-Plant

Sat Dhaiwal has been chief executive officer of A-Plant and a director
stnce March 2002 Sat was managing director of A-Plant East, one of
A-Plant’s four operational regions, from May 1998 to March 2002 Before
that he was an A-Plant trading director from 1995 and, prior to 1995,
managed one of A-Plant’s stores

Non-executive directors

6 Hugh Etheridge

Senior independent non-executive director ® 8

Hugh Ethenidge has been a director, chaimnan of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees since
January 2004 Hugh was appointed as serwor independent non-executive
director in March 2007 With effect from June 2011, he was appointed
a non-executive director of Willam Sinclarr Holdings ple Hugh was
formerty chief financial officer of the Waste and Resources Action
Programme ("WRAP'), a non-profit organisation established by the

UK Government to promote sustamable waste management Before
Joining WRAP, he was finance director of Waste Recycling Group plc
and prior to that, of Matthew Clark plc

7 Michael Burrow

Independent non-executive director ®® @

Michael Burrow was appointed as a non-executive director and member
of the Audit, Remuneration and Nemination Commuittees effective from
March 2007 and chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee in September
2070 Michael was formerly managing director of the Investment Banking
Group of Lehman Brothers Europe Lirmited

8 Bruce Edwards

Independent non-executive director ® @

Bruce Edwards was appomnted as a non-executive director in June 2007
and a member of the Nomunation Committee and Remuneration
Committee effective from February 2009 and September 2010
respectively Bruce is the global chief executive officer for Exel Supply
Chain at Deutsche Post World Net, and a member of its board of
managernent He joined PPWN following its acquisition of Exel PLC in
Decemnber 2005 Prior to the acquisition, he was a director of Exel PLC and
chief executive of Its Amernicas businesses Bruce 1s also a non-executive
director of Grelf inc, a NYSE-listed packaging and container manufacturer
He 15 a US aitizen and tives in Columbus, Chio

9 lan Sutcliffe

Independent non-executive director ®® ®

lan Sutcliffe was appointed as a non-executive director and member of the
Audit, Remuneration and Nomnation Committees in September 2010 1an
was formerly managing director, UK Property, at Segro plc where he had
been a director since June 2008 Prior to joining Segro he held senior
executive positions with Taylor Wimpey ple and Royal Dutch Shell plc

Details of the directors’ contracts, emoluments and share interests can be
found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Key:

& Audit Committee

® Remuneration Committee

o Nomnation Committee

o Finance and Admimistration Comrmittes

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2017




direclors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited accounts for the
financial year ended 30 Apnl 2011

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company 15 that of an investment holding
and management company The principal activity of the Group 15 the
rental of equipment to industrial and commercial users mainly in the
non-residential construction sectors of the US and the UK

Trading results and dividends

The Group's consolidated profit before taxation for the year was £17m
(2010 £4 8m) A review of the Group's performance and future
development, including the princtpal nisks and uncertainties facing the
Group, 1s given in the Business and Financial Review on pages 6 to 33 and
in note 23 to the financial statements These disclosures form part of this
report The Company paid an interim dividend of 0 93p per ordinary share
in February and the directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of 2 07p per ordinary share, to be paid on 9 September 2011 to those
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 19 August 2011,
making a total dwvidend for the year of 30p {2010 2 9p)

Share capital and major shareholders
Details of the Company's share capital are given in note 19 to the financial
statements

Voting nghts

Subject to the Articles of Association, every member who s present in
person at a general meeting shall have one vote and on a poll every
member who 1s present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for
every share of which he or she is the holder The Trustees of the Employee
Share Ownership Trust ordinanly follow the guidelines 1ssued by the
Association of Brntish Insurers and do not exercise their right to vote at
general meetings

Under the Companies Act 2006, mernbers are entitled to appoint a proxy,
who need not be a member of the Company, to exercise all or any of their
nghts to attend and speak and vote on their behalf at a general meeting or
any class of meeting A member may appoint more than one proxy
provided that each proxy Is appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a
different share or shares held by that member A corporate member may
appoint one or more individuals to act on its behalf at a general meeting
or any class of meeting as a corporate representative The deadline for the
exercise of voting rights 15 as stated in the notice of the relevant meeting

Transfer of shares

Certified shares

{1) Transfers may be in favour of more than four jont holders, but the
directors can refuse to register such a transfer

{u) The share transfer form must be delivered to the registered office, or
any other place decided on by the directors The transfer form must
be accompanied by the share certificate relating to the shares being
transferred, unless the transfer 1s being made by a person to whom
the Company was not required to, and did not send, a certificate
The directors can also ask {acung reasonably) for any other evidence to
show that the person wishing to transfer the shares is entitled to do so

CREST shares
(1} Registration of CREST shares can be refused in the circumstances set
out in the Uncertified Securities Regulations

(1) Transfers cannot be in favaur of more than four jont holders

Based on notifications received, the holdings of 3% or more of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company as at 14 June 2011 (the latest practicable
date before approval of the financial statements) are as follows

#

AEGON Asset Management
BlackRock, In¢

Aviva plc

Amerprise Financial, Inc
Baillie Gifford

Legal & General

-

BAAA

Details of directors’ interests in the Company’s ordinary share capital and
In options over that share capital are given in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 47 to 51 Details of all shares subject to option are given

in the notes to the financial statements on page 72
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Change of control provisions in loan agreements

A change in control of the Company (defined, inter alia, as a person or a
group of persons acting in concert gaining control of more than 30% of
the Company's voting nghts) leads to an immediate event of default under
the Company's asset-based semior lending facility n such circumstances,
the agent for the lending group may. and if so directed by rmore than 50%
of the lenders shall, declare the amounts outstanding under the faality
immediately due and payable

Such a change of control also leads to an obligation, within 30 days of the
change in control, for the Group to make an offer to the holders of the
Group's $550m senior secured notes, due 2016, to redeem them at 101%
of therr face value

Directors and directors’ insurance

Details of the directors of the Company are given on pages 40 and 41

The policies related to their appomtment and replacement are detailed

on pages 44 and 45 Each of the directors as at the date of approval of this
report confirms, as required by section 418 of the Comparies Act 2006
that to the best of their knowledge and belief

(1) there is no relevant audit Information of which the Company’s auditor
1s unaware, and

(2) each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken to
make himself aware of such information and to establish that the
Company's auditor 15 aware of it

The Company has maintained insurance throughout the year to cover all
directors against Liabilities in relation to the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings

Policy on payment of suppliers
Suppliers are paid in accordanice with the indvidual payment terms agreed
with each of them The number of Group creditor days at 30 April 2011
was 57 days (30 April 2010 88 days) which reflects the terms agreed with
individual suppliers There were no trade creditors in the Company's
balance sheet at any time during the past two years

Political and charitable donations
Charitable donations m the year amounted to £50,007 in total {2010
£138,991) No political donations were made i either year

Auditor

Deloitte LLP has indicated its willingness to continue in office and in
accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution
concerning its reappointment and authorising the directors to fixits
rernuneration, will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 2 30pm on Tuesday,

6 September 2011 Notice of the meeting 1s set out in the document
accompanying this Report and Accounts

In addition to the adoption of the 2010/11 Report and Accounts, the
declaration of a final dividend, resolutions dealing with the appomntment
and re-election of directors and the resolution dealing with the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report, there are six other matters which
wilt be considered at the Annual Generat Meeting These relate to the
reappointment and remuneration of Deloitte LLP as auditor, the ability
for the directors to unconditionally allot shares up to approximately
two-thirds of the Company's share capital, the disapplication of pre-
emption rnights in relation to the previous resolution, empowering the
Company to buy back up to 15% of its issued share capital and the ability
to call a meeting other than a general meeting on not less than 14 days’
clear notice The majority of these resolutions update for a further year
simitar resolutions approved by shareholders in previcus years

Erfc Watkins
Company secretary
15 June 2071
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corporate governance report

The revised Combined Code on corporate governance was published in
June 2006 following a review by the Financial Reporting Council ('the
Code'} The Company complied throughout the year with the provisions
of the Code

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (‘Corporate
Governance Code’} published by the Financial Reporting Council In May
2010, the entire Board of directors will retire and offer themselves for
election or re-election, as appropriate, at this year's Annual General
Meeting The remaining provisions of the Corperate Governance Code
apply to financial years beginning after 29 June 2010 and are therefore
not applicable to the Company unti the year ending 30 April 2012

The Company 1s committed to maintairing high standards of corporate
governance The Board recognises that 1t Is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for corporate governance and this statement describes how
the Company has applied the relevant principles of the Code

The Board

The Company's Board comprises the non-executive chairman, the chref
executive, the finance director, the executive heads of Sunbelt and A-Plant,
the senior independent non-executive director and three other
independent non-executive directors Short biographies of the directors
are given on page 41

The chairman undertakes leadership of the Board by agreeing Board
agendas and ensures its effectiveness by requiring the provision of timely,
accurate and clear information on all aspects of the Group's business,

to enable the Board to take sound deasions and promote the success

of the business The chairman, assisted by other directors, reviews the
effectiveness of each member of the Board no less than annually and
facilitates constructive relationships between the executive and non-
executive directors through both formal and informal meetings

The chairman ensures that all directors are briefed properly to enable
themn to discharge their duties effectively All newly appointed directors
undertake an induction to all parts of the Group's business Additionally,
detailed management accounts are sent monthly to all Board members
and, in advance of all Board meetings, an agenda and appropriate
docurnentation in respect of each item to be discussed 15 circulated

The chairman facilitates effective communication with shareholders
through both the annual general meeting and by indwvidual meetings
with major shareholders, to develop an understanding of the views of the
investors in the business He also ensures that shareholders have access
to other directors, mcludmg non-executive directors, as approprate

The chief executive’s role s to provide entrepreneunal leadership of the
Group within a framework of prudent and effective controls, which
enables risk to be assessed and managed The chief executive undertakes
the leadership and responsibility for the direction and managernent of
the day-to-day business and conduct of the Group In doing so, the chief
executwve’s rale includes, but 1§ not restncted to, implementing Board
decisions, delegating responstbility, and reporting to the Board regarding
the conduct, activities and performance of the Group The chief executive
chairs the Sunbelt and A-Plant board meetings and sets policies and
direction to maximise returns to shareholders

All directors are responsible under the law for the proper conduct of

the Company’s affairs The directors are also responsible for ensuring that
the strategies proposed by the executive directors are discussed in detail
and assessed critically to ensure they are aligned with the long-term
nterests of shareholders and are compatible with the interests of
employees, customers and suppliers The Board has reserved to itself
those matters which remnforce its control of the Company These include
treasury policy, acquisitions and disposals, appointment and removal of
directors or the company secretary, appeintrnent and removal of the
auditor and approval of the annual accounts and the quarterly financial
reports to shareholders

Regular reports and briefings are provided to the Board, by the executive
directors and the company secretary, to ensure the directors are suitably
briefed to fulfit their roles The Board normally meets six times a year
and there 1s contact between meetings to advance the Company's
activities 1tis the Board's usual practice to meet regularly with the senior
executives of Sunbelt and A-Plant The directors also have access to the
company secretary and are able to seek independent advice at the
Company’s expense

As this 15 the first Annual General Meeting since their appomtment,
Brendan Horgan and lan Sutcliffe will offer themselves for election The
remaining directors, in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code,
will retire at this year's Annual General Meeting and will offer themselves
for re-election

New Sunbelt chief executive

Brendan Horgan was appointed as the new chief executive of Sunbelt and
as a director of Ashtead Group plc on 26 January 2011 In view of
Brendan's experience of the US plant hure industry in general, and the
Sunbelt operation in particular, the Normination Comimittee considered
that Brendan was best suited for the position as Sunbelt's chief executive

Non-executive directors

In the recrutment of non-executive directors, it 15 the Company's practice
to utilise the services of an external search consultancy Before appointment,
non-executive directors are required to assure the Board that they can give
the time commitment necessary to fulfil property their duties, both in terms
of availability to attend meetings and discuss matters on the telephone and
meeting preparation time The non-executives’ letters of appointment will
be available for nspection at the Annual General Meeting

The non-executive directors {including the chairman) meet as and when
required in the absence of the executive directors to discuss and appraise
the performance of the Board as a whole and the performance of the
executive directors In accordance with the Code, the non-executive
directors, led by the senior independent non-executive director, alse meet
at least annually in the absence of the chairman to discuss and appraise
his performance

Non-executive directors are appointed for specified terms not exceeding
three years and are subject to re-election and the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 relating to the removal of a director

Performance evaluation

The performance of the chairman, the chief executive, the Board and its
commuttees 15 evaluated, amongst other things, against their respective
role profiles and terms of reference The executive directors are evaluated
addimionally against the agreed budget for the generation of revenue,
profit and value to shareholders

The evaluation of the chairman, the Board and its committees was
conducted by way of a questionnaire completed by all of the directors,
the results of which were collated by the company secretary and
presented to the entire Board Based on this evaluation, the Board
concluded that performance in the past year had been satisfactory

Board committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Comnmittee comprises Hugh Etheridge (chairman), who has
relevant financial experience, Michael Burrow and lan Sutchiffe By
Invitation, the Group's finanice director, lan Robson, and its director of
financial reporting, Michael Pratt, normally attend the Committee’s
meetings, as do the chairman and chief executive, together with
representatives of our internal and external auditors

The Audit Committee met on four occasions during the year The principal
areas considered by the committee since the last annual report meluded

= the results for the periods ended 31 July 2010, 31 October 2010 and
31 January 2011 and for the year ended 30 Apnil 2011,
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* the external audit plan and key areas of audit focus for the year ended
30 Apnil 2017,

reports from the external auditor, Deloitte, related to the results for the
six months ended 31 October 2010 and the year ended 30 Apnil 2011
The Commuttee considered the work done and the key accounting
estimates and prinaipal judgemental accounting and reporting issues,
the independence, objectivity and effectiveness of Deloitte and, in that
context, the level of audit and non-audit fees The Committee was
satisfied as to the auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness,
the internal audit plans for, and reports on, the programme of work for
the year ended 30 Apnl 2011,

audit plans and reports from the internal operational auditars
responsible for auditing detailed operational controls at a store level,
the Group risk register and reports on the work of the Group Risk
Committee,

the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and financial reporting
pohicies, and

reports on matters referred through the Group’s whistle blowing
procedures and any actions taken following appropriate investigation

The principal non-audit fees paid to the Company's auditor, Deloitte LLP,
for the year relate to their review of the Company's intenim results and tax
advice The Audit Commuttee is satisfied that the nature of work undertaken
and the level of non-audit fees did not impair the auditor's independence

Delortte LLP was apponted external auditor in 2004 The Commuttee is
recommending to the Board that a proposal be put to shareholders at the
2011 Annual General Meeting for the reappointment of Deloitte There are
no contractual restrictions on the Company’s choice of external auditor
and in making 1ts recommendation the Committee took into account,
amongst other matters, the objectivity and independence of Deloitte,

as noted above, and its continuing effectiveness and cost

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference will be available for inspection
at the Annual General Meeting

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Comrrittee comprises Michael Burrow (chairman),
Hugh Ethendge, Bruce Edwards and lan Sutchffe The Committee meets as
and when required during the year to set the compensation packages for
the executive directors, to establish the terms and conditions of the
executive directors’ employment and to set remuneration policy generally

Chris Cole and Geoff Drabble normally attend the meetings of the
Committee to assist it in its work The Committee also engages
remuneration consultants to advise 1t in its work as and when required
External professional advice was obtained in the year from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ('PwC’} PwC also provides internal audst
and due diligence services to the Company but has confirmed to the
Committee that this other work has no influence on its recommendations
regarding remuneration matters

None of the members of the Remuneration Committee 1s currently or
has been at any time one of the Company’s executive directors or an
employee None of the executive directors currently serves, or has served,
as a member of the board of directors of any other company which has
one or more of its executive directors serving on the Company’s Board or
Remuneration Comrmittee

The Rermuneration Comimuttee’s terms of reference will be available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Normunation Committee compnses Chris Cole (chasrman), Geoff
Drabble, Hugh Ethendge, Michael Burrow, Bruce Edwards and lan Sutcliffe
The Normunation Committee meets as and when required to consider the
structure, the size and composition of the Board of directors

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference will be available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting

Attendance at Board and Committee meetings held between
1 May 2010 and 30 Aprid 2011

Board Audit  Remuneration  Nomenation
Number of meetings held 6 4 2 3
Chns Cole 6 - - 3
Sat Dhawal 6 - - -
Geoff Drabble 6 - - 3
Brendan Horgar’ 2 - - -
Joe Phelan? 4 - - -
lan Robson 6 - - -
Michael Burrow 6 4 P 3
Bruce Edwards? 6 - 1 3
Hugh Etheridge 6 4 2 3
Gary Iceton! 2 2 1 2
lan Sutchffe’ 5 2 1 L

1 Brendan Horgan was appointed a director by the Board on 26 January 2011

2 Joe Phelan s appointment as a director was termunated on 25 January 2011
Bruce Edwards was appointed to the Remuneration Committee with effect from
7 September 2010

Gary Iceton ceased to be a director of the Company on 7 September 2010

lan Sutchffe was appointed a director by the Board on 7 September 2010

w
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Finance and Administration Committee

The Finance and Administration Committee compnses Chris Cole, Geoff
Drabble {chasrman) and lan Robson The Board of directors has delegated
authorty to this comnmuttee to deal with routine financial and
admimstrative matters between Board meetings The Committee meets
as necessary to perform its role and has a quorum requirement of two
members with certain matters requiring the participation of Chris Cole,
non-executive chairman, including, for example, the approval of material
announcements to the London Stock Exchange

Internal controt

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group's system

of internal control and confirm they have reviewed its effectiveness In
doing so, the Group has taken note of the retevant guidance for directors,
namely Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code
(‘the Turnbull Guidance’)

The Board confirms that there is a process for identifying, evaluating and
managing significant nsks faced by the Group This process has been in
place for the full financial year and 1s ongomg Under its terms of reference
the Group Risk Management Commuittee meets semi-annually or more
frequently if required, with the objective of encouraging best nisk
management practice across the Group and a culture of regulatory
complance and ethical behaviour The Group Risk Management
Committee reports annually to the Audit Comruttee These processes
accord with the Turnbull Guidance

The Board considers that the Group's internal control system 1s designed
appropriately to manage, rather than eltminate, the nsk of fallure to
achieve business objectives Any such contro! system, however, can

only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
mis-staternent or loss

The Group reviews the risks it faces in 1its business and how these nisks
are managed These reviews are conducted in conjunction with the
management teams of each of the Group's businesses and are
documented in an annual report The reviews consider whether any
matters have arisen since the last report was prepared which might
indicate omissions or inadequacies in that assessment It also considers
whether, as a result of changes in either the internal cor external
environment, any new significant nsks have arisen The Group Risk
Commuttee reviewed the draft report for 2011, which was then presented
to, discussed by the Audit Committee on 12 May 2011 and approved by
the Audit Committee and the Group Board on 13 June 2011
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Before producing the statement on internal control for the annual report
and accounts for the year ended 30 April 2011, the Board reconsidered
the operational effectiveness of the Group's internal control systems

In particular, through the Audit Commuttee, it received reports from the
operational audit teams and considered the status of implementation

of internal control improvement recommendations made by the Group's
mternal auditors and its external auditor The control system includes
wntten policies and control procedures, clearly drawn lines of accountability
and delegation of authority, and comprehensive reparting and analysis
against budgets and latest forecasts

In a group of the size, complexity and geographical diversity of Ashtead,
rmunor breakdowns in established control procedures can occur There are
supporting policies and procedures for investigation and management of
control breakdowns at any of the Group’s stores or elsewhere The Audit
Commuttee also meets regularly with the external auditor to discuss
their work

In relation to internal financial control, the Group's control and monitoring
procedures include

*+ the maintenance and production of accurate and timely financial
management informatton, including a monthly profit and loss account
and selected balance sheet data for each store,

the control of key financial nisks through clearly laid down authonity
tevels and proper segregation of accounting duties at the Group's
accounting support centres,

the preparation of a monthly financial report to the Board, including
income statements for the Group and each subsidiary, balance sheet
and cash flow statement,

the preparation of an annual budget and penodic update forecasts
which are reviewed by the executive directors and then by the Board,
a programme of rental equipment inventortes and full inventory counts
conducted at each profit centre by equipment type independently checked
on a sample basis by our operational auditors and extemal auditor;
detailed internal audits at the Group's major accounting centres
undertaken periodically by internal audit specialists from a major
international accounting firm,

comprehensive audits at the stores generally carried out annually by
internal operational audit A summary of this work)s provided annually
to the Audit Committee, and

a review of arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting
or other matters

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable {aw and regulations
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
the Group 1n accordance with Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards
{'IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulations and have also elected to prepare financial statements for the
Company in accordance with IFRS Company law requires the directors
to prepare such financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the
Companies Act

Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, requires that financial
statements present farrly for each financial year the Company’s financial
position, financal performance and cash flows This requires the
representation of the effects of transactions, as well as other events and
conditions, in accordance with the definiions and recognition critena
for assets, hiabilities, income and expenses set out 1n the International
Accounting Standards Board's Framewaork for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financiat Statements In wirtually all arcumstances,

a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards Directors are also required to

* properly select and apply accounting policies,

* present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information,

* provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements Iin IFRS 15 insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial positon and financial performance, and

* rnake an assessment of the Cormpany’s ability to continue as a
going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records

that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties and for the preparation of a directors’ report
and directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

The Board confirms to the best of its knowledge

* the consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and IFRS as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, hiabilites,
financial position and profit of the Group, and

* the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and
perforrnance of the business and the position of the Group, together
with a descnption of the principal nisks and uncertainties that it faces

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Shareholders should note that legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

Going concern

The Group's operations and financial condition, together with factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and condition are set
out in the Business and Financial Review on pages 6 to 33 In particular,
the Group's financial management and cash flow, including details of the
Group's banking facilities are set out on pages 30 to 32 In addition,

note 23 to the financial statements describes the Group’s financial nsk
management policies and processes, including its exposure to interest rate
risk, currency exchange risk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk

The Group's debt facilities are committed for a weighted average

penod of 51 years as of 30 April 2011 with the earliest significant matunity
being the renewed ABL facility which continues until March 2016 The
Group finances its day-to-day activity via the ABL facility under which
excess avatlability totalled $479m at year end Taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, used equipment
values and the other factors that might impact availability, the Group
expects to maintain significant headroom under the ABL facility for the
forthcoming year

After making enquiries, the directors therefore have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and consequently
that it 1s appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Board

By order of

Eric Watkins
Company secretary
15 June 2071
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directors’ remuneration report

Introduction

Thus report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of the
Large and Medivm-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 {'the Regulations’) The report also meets the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and
describes how the Board has applied the Pnnciples of Good Governance
relating to directors’' remuneration As required by the Regulations, a
resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Act requires the auditor to report to the Company’s members on
elements of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and to state whether,
in their opinion, that part of the report has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Regulations The report has therefore been divided
Into separate sections for audited and unaudited information

Unaudited information

Remuneration Commuttee

The Company has established a Remuneration Commuttee ('the
Committee’) in accordance with the recommendations of the Combined
Code The members of the Committee are Michael Burrow (chairman),
Hugh Etheridge, Bruce Edwards and lan Sutclffe None of the Committee
members has any personal financial interests, other than as shareholders,
i the matters to be decided

The Group's chief executive, Geoff Drabble, normally attends the meetings
of the Committee to advise on operational aspects of the implementation
of existing policies and policy proposals, except where his own
remuneration 1s concerned, as does the non-executive chairman, Chris
Cole The company secretary acts as secretary to the Committee Under
Michael Burrow's direction, the company secretary and Geoff Drabble
have responsibility for ensuring the Commuittee has the information
relevant to 1ts delberations In formulating its policies, the Committee

has access to professional advice from outside the Company, as required,
and to publicly available reports and statistics

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motivate

and retain directors of the high calibre needed to achieve the Group's
objectives and to reward thern for enhancing value to shareholders The
main elements of the remuneration package for executive directors and
senior management are

* basic annual salary and benefits in kind,
* annual performance related bonus plan,
* Perforrmance Share Plan awards, and

* pension arrangements

In assessing all aspects of pay and benefits, the Company compares
packages offered by similar companies, which are chosen having regard to

* the size of the company (enterprise value, revenue, profit and number
of employees),

* the diversity and complexity of its businesses,

» the geographical spread of its businesses, and

* their growth, expansion and change profile

In making the comparsons, the Company also takes into cansideration
the Group's significant operations i the US where the Company has a
number of large, successful competitors who compete with it for top
management talent

The Commuttee implements its remuneration policies by the design of
reward packages for executive directors comprising the appropriate mix
of satary, performance related annual cash incentive bonuses and share
related incentives A significant proportion of the overall package
compnises performance related elements

None of the executive directors hold any outside appointments

Basic salary

An executive director’s basic salary 1s normally determined by the
Committee before the start of the year and when an indmidual changes
position or respansibility In deciding appropnate levels, the Committee
considers the experience and performance of individuals and relationships
across the Board and seeks to be competitive, but farr, using information
drawn from both internat and external sources and taking account of

pay and conditions elsewhere in the Company In November 2010, after
18 months of pay freezes, the Group implemented a 2% pay increase

for all staff other than those, including the executive directors, who
participate In 1ts management incentive or sales CoMMmISSIon programmes
The Group plans to review pay levels again across the business at the

end of the first quarter of 2011 taking account not anly the Group's
performance but also the macroeconomic outlook

Annual performance related bonus plan

Under the annual performance related bonus plan for executive directors,
payouts for the year to 30 April 2011 were related directly to profitability
and cash flow and were subject to a cap of 100% of salary The
Committee establishes the objectives that must be met for each financial
year If a cash incentive bonus for that year is to be paid In determining
bonus parameters, the Cornmittee’s objective 1s to set targets that reflect
appropriately challenging financial performance

The targets for Geoff Drabble, Brendan Horgan and lan Robson relating
to profitability and cash flow were fully achieved As a result they earned
their maximum bonus entitlement for the year, equivalent to 100% of
base salary The target for Sat Dhaiwal relating to profitability was not
achieved whilst that relating to cash flow was parttally achieved and
accordingly he earned a bonus of 15% of base salary

The Company 1s currently consulting with its major shareholders on
its proposals for executive directors’ remuneration for the year ending
30 April 2012

Share-based incentives and dilution limits

The Company observes an overall dilution limit of 10% i 10 years for
all Company share schemes, together with a imit of 5% in 10 years for
discretionary schemes

Details of the Company’s share-based incentives are set out below

Previous plans

Executive share option schemes

No awards have been granted under this plan since February 2002
Shareholder approval for this plan had been granted in 1996 and
accordingly the plan formally lapsed in October 2006 All awards hetd by
executive directors have now vested or lapsed with the final exercises
under this ptan occurring dunng the past year

Investment Incentive Plan

The Commuttee has not made any awards under this plan since 2004/5
and the Company does not intend to make further awards under this plan,
which lapses in October 2011

Current plan — Perfermance Share Plan

Under the Perfermance Share Plan, which was adopted in 2004, executive
directors and other members of the semior management team may
annually be awarded a conditional right to acquire shares (‘performance
shares’) the vesting of which depends on the satisfaction of demanding
performance conditions Performance conditions are based on Total
Shareholder Return {TSR') andfor Earmings Per Share ('EPS’)

In recent years, the policy has been to grant awards of shares with a
market value at the date of grant equal to between 20% and 100% of the
partiaipant’s base salary with the executive directors typically receiving
the upper end of this range and the chief executive recewving an award
equivalent to 150% of his base salary as at the date of grant
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The performance critenia vary by year of award and are as follows

Performance criteria (measured over 3 years)

Award date Financial year  EPS (% of award)

TSR (% of award) Status

6/10/04  2004/5 2006/7 EPS between 5p (12 5% vested)  From award date versus FTSE Small Cap  Vested in full in October 2007
and 8p (50% vested) (12 5% at median, 50% at upper quartile)
17/8/05  2005/6  2007/8 EPS between 7 7p {12 5% vested) From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index EPS target met in full and 50% of the
t0 91p (50% vested) (12 5% at median, 50% at upper quartile) award vested The remamning 50% lapsed
12/10/06  2006/7 _ 2008/5 EPS — 16 2p (12 5% vested) — 19p (100% vested) Lapsed
30/7/07  2007/8  2009/10 EPS - RPI+4% pa (30% vested) — RPI+10% pa (100% vested) Lapsed
14/10/08 2008/9  2010/11 EPS—RPl + 0% pa (12 5% From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index EPS targets not met and will lapse TSR not
vested) —RPI + 5% pa (50% vested) {12 5% at median, 50% at upper quartile) completed
13/7/09  2009/10  2011/12 EPS — RPI + 0% (25% vested) From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index Not completed
(37 5% at median, 75% at upper quartile)
29/6/10  2010/11  2012/13 EPS between 1p (12 5% vested) From date of grant versus FTSE 250 Index Not completed

and 2 5p (50% vested)

(12 5% at median, S0% at upper quartile)

For performance between the lower and upper EPS and TSR ranges, vesting of the award 1s scaled on a straight-line basis

EPS for the purpose of the outstanding awards 1s based on the profit before
tax, exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles less the tax
charge included in the accounts The Remuneration Committee considers it
most appropriate to measure TSR performance relative to the FTSE 250
{excluding mvestment trusts) rather than a specific comparator group of
companies because there are few direct comparators to the Company
listed in London and because the Company 1s a FTSE 250 company

Given the cychical nature of our business, the Commuttee intends to vary
the proportion of the performance critenia represented by EPS and TSR
over the cycle between 50%/50%, 75%/25% and 25%/75% For the
forthcoming 2011/12 PSP awards, the Committee intends that vesting
will be based 25% on TSR and 75% on EPS

Shareholding guidelines

Executive directors are required to retain no fewer than 50% of shares that
vest under the Performance Share Plan {net of taxes) until such time as a
shareholding equivalent to 100% of salary 15 achieved and thereafter
maintained

Employee Share Ownership Trust

The Group has established an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to
acquire and hold shares in the Company to satisfy potential awards under
the Performance Share Plan At 30 April 2011, the ESOT held a beneficial
interest in 5,630,628 shares

Relative performance

The following graph cormpares the Company’'s TSR performance with
the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts) over the five years
ended 30 April 2011 The FTSE 250 15 the Stock Exchange index the
Commuittee considers to be the most appropriate to the size and scale
of the Company's operations
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Directors’ pension arrangements

The Company makes a payment of 40% of tus base salary to Geoff
Drabble in lieu of providing him with any pension arrangements This
provision was agreed prior to his joining the Company 1n 2006 and
reflected the fact that he was leaving a generous defined benefit
arrangement at his previous employer Geoff 1s entitled to retire, under
his contract, on or at any time after his sixtieth birthday

Under the terms of his contract, lan Robson 1s entitled to retire at a

date of his choosing and draw a pension equal to one-thirtieth of his

final satary for each year of pensionable service, but without deduction
for early payment These provisions became effective from May 2010
when he completed 10 years’ service with the Company lan Robson
made contributions equal to 7 5% of his salary to the Retirernent Benefits
Plan Both the accrual rate and the early retirernent provisions were
agreed prior to Mr Robson joining the Company in 2000 and reflected
the need to be competitive with similar arrangements he enjoyed with
his previous employer

In view of recent changes in the taxation of defined benefit pensions, the
Company and lan Robson agreed that his contributory membership of the
defined benefit plan would cease at the end of March 2011 and that the
Company would, from Apnl 2011, make a payment to bim of 40% of base
salary in lieu of the Company making any further pension contnbutions
lan Robson retains all his previous nights, including his early retirement
nights, relating to the pension benefits he accrued up to March 2011

Sat Dhawal’s pension benefits are also provided entirely through the
Ashtead Group plc Retirement Benefits Plan His pension rights accrue at
the rate of one-sixtieth of salary for each year of pensionable service and
his normal retwrement date is at age 65 Sat Dhaiwal pays contributions
equal to 7 5% of his salary to the Retirement Benefits Plan

The Retirement Benefits Plan also provides for

in the event of death in service or death between leaving service and
retirement while retaining membershup of the plan, a spouse’s pension
equal to 50% of the member's deferred pension, calculated at the date
of death plus a return of his contrnbutions,

tn the event of death in retirement, a spouse’s pension equal to 50% of
the member's pension at the date of death,

an option to retire at any time after age 55 with the Company’s
consent Early retirement benefits are reduced by an amount agreed
between the actuary and the trustees as reflecting the cost to the plan
of the early retirement, and

* penston increases in line with the mcrease n retail price inflation up to
a limit of currently 5% a year in respect of service since 1997
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Brendan Horgan 15 a member of the Sunbelt 401K defined contnbution
pension plan and deferred compensation plan Dunng the year, under the
401K defined contribution pension plan, Sunbelt provided a co-match of
10% of the employee’s contribution on contributions up to 6% of salary
in the past year, there was no co-match under the deferred compensation
plan but Brendan's deferred compensation account s credited annually
with a deemed ‘investment return’ equivalent to that earned on
equivalent investments held by members in the 401K plan

Executive directors’ service agreements

The service agreements between the Company and Geoff Drabble (dated
6 July 2006), ian Robson (dated 4 August 2000}, Sat Dhawal (dated 8 July
2002) and between Sunbelt and Brendan Horgan (dated 25 January 2011)
are all terminable by either party giving the other 12 months’ notice The
service agreements for each of the executive directors all contain
non-compete provisions appropriate to their roles

Audited information
Directors’ remuneration

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors

The remuneration of the non-executive directors 1s deterrmined by the
Board within imits set out in the Articles of Association None of the
non-executive directors has a service contract with the Company and
their appomtment 1s therefore terminable by the Board at any time

An ordinary resolution concerning the Group’'s remuneration policies will
be put to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The total amount of directors’ remuneration was £3,175,000 (2010 £2,998,000) and consisted of emoluments of £3,036,000 (2010 £2,919,000), gains
on exercise of share options of £143,000 (2010 £79,000) and £nil (2010 £nil) recevable under long-term ncentive plans

The emoluments of the directors, excluding pension benefits, which are included in staff costs in note 3 to the financial staterments, were as follows

Performance Benekits Total Total
related n Other emoluments emoluments
Salary Fees bonus king® allowances! 20M 2010
Name £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Executive
Sat Dhaiwal 220 - 33 9 5 267 345
Geoff Drabble 456 - 456 33 215 1,160 1,037
Brendan Horgan 75 - 75 5 - 155 -
lan Robson 328 - 328 1 22 679 586
Non-executive
Chris Cole - 110 - - - 110 10
Michael Burrow - 43 - - - 43 40
Bruce Edwards - 40 - - - 40 40
Hugh Etheridge - 55 - - - 55 55
lan Sutchffe - 26 - - - 26 -
Former directors
Joe Phelanf® 241 - 186 14 44 485 661
Gary Iceton - 16 - — - 16 45
1,320 290 1,078 62 285 3,036 2919
2010 1,329 290 860 44 396 2919

(i} Benefits in kend comprise the taxable benefit of company owned cars prvate medical insurance and subscnptions.
(i) Other allowances include car allowances travel and accommadatton allowances and the payment of 40% of salary in keu of pension contnibutions for Geoff Drabble 40% of salary in lieu

of pension contnbutions from 1 Apnl 2011 for lan Robson and 14% for Joe Phelan

() In aceordance with the terms and conditions of kus servce contract and the Company having recerved an executed severance and release agreement and conditional on s observing the
non-compete and non-solict provisions in hus service contract Joe Phelan wall contnue to be paid his base salary allowance in liew of pension contributions and certam benefits for a period
of 12 months from the termination of s employment In the pened from 26 January 2011 to 30 Apnik 2011, he was paid £99,000 in salary and pension contributions and recerved benefits
with a value of £3 000 In accordance with the rules of the plan he remams a partiapant in the Performance Share Plan in respect of previous awards on a pro rata basis up 1o s date of
departure He also received a pro rata bonus in respect of the penod until his employment terminated

Key management

In accordance with IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly The Group’s key management comprise the Company's executive and

non-executive directors

Cormpensation for key management was as follows

20m 200
£ 000 £000

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 3,036 2,919
Post-employment benefits 95 101
National msurance and social securnity 293 253
Share-based payments 552 265
3,976 3,538
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directors’ remuneration report ...

Directors’ pension benefits

Increase in annual Transfer Transfer Increase/
Accrued Accrued pensian during the year value of value (decrease)
pensionable  Contributions annual accrued of accrued n transfer
Age at service at paid by the pension at Excluding Total pension at pension at value aver
30Apnl 2017 30 Aprd 201 director 30 April 2011 nflation increase 30 Apnl 2011 30 Apnl 200 the year
Years Years £000 £000 £000 £00D £000 £000 £000
Sat Dhaiwal 42 7 7 62 3 5 416 448 {49}
lan Robson 52 1 23 113 6 g 1,820 1,790 7

Notes

(1) The transfer values represent the amount which would have been paid to another pension scheme had the director elected to take a transfer of his accrued pension entitiement at that date
and have been calculated by the schemne’s actuaries in accordance with Actuanial Guidance Note GN11 published by the Institute of Actuaries and the Faculty of Actuaries They are not sums

paid or due to the directors concerned
(2) The increase in transfer value in the year 1s stated net of the members contributions

At 30 April 2011, the total amount available to Brendan Horgan but deferred under the Sunbelt deferred compensation plan was $110,470 or £66,229

This includes an allocated investment return of $7,302 or £4,667 since the date of his appointment as a director

Directors’ interests in shares

The directors of the Company are shown below together with their beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company

30 Apnl 2011 30 Apnit 2010
Number of Number of
oardinary shares  ordinary shares
of 10p wach of 10p each
Michael Burrow 100,000 100,000
Chns Cole 102,082 77,082
Sat Dhaiwal 365,849 365,849
Geoff Drabble 361,357 361,357
Bruce Edwards 40,000 40,000
Hugh Etheridge 20,000 20,000
Brendan Horgan 221,528 221,258
lan Robson 1,552,034 1,514,829
lan Sutcliffe - n/a
The directors had no non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the Company
Performance Share Plan awards
Shares held by executive directors and by a former director, Joe Phelan, under the PSP are shown tn the table below
Held at Cranted/
30 April 2010 {lapsed)
oraon during Held at
Yearof grant  appontment the year 30 Apnl 2011
Sat Dhaiwal 2007/8 116,418 (116,418} -
2008/9 384,279 - 384,279
2009/10 405,530 — 405,530
2010/11 — 223,350 223,350
Geoff Drabble 2007/8 320,896 (320,896) -
2008/9 1,194,760 - 1,194,760
2009/10 1,260,829 - 1,260,829
2010/ - 694,416 694,416
Brendan Horgan 2008/9 290,000 - 290,000
2009/10 297,259 - 297,259
2010/11 171,017 - 17,017
lan Robson 2007/8 235075  (235,075) -
2008/9 572,052 - 572,052
2009/10 603,687 - 603,687
2010/11 - 322487 322,487
Former director
Joe Phelan 2009/10 686,735 - 351,207
2010/11 — 340,593 65,320

* The PSP awards for Joe Phelan have been pro-rated in accordance wath the PSP rules

The performance conditions attaching to the Performance Share Plan referred to above are detailed on pages 47 and 48 No awards were exercised

during the year
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Directors’ interests in share options

Earbest

Cplions at Exeraised Optiens at normal
1May duning 30 April Exercise exercise
2010 year 20 price date Expiry
Discretionary schemes
Sat Dhaiwal 37941 37,941 - 1153p Feb2004  Feb 2011
lan Robson 249,332 249,332 - 1153p Feb 2004  Feb 2011
Details of share options exercised by the executive directors in the year are as follows
Market price
Mumber Option at date of Gan
exercised Exercise date price exercise £ 000
Discretionary schemes
Sat Dhawal 37941 10 December 2010 115 3p 159 0p 7
lan Robson 249,332 16 December 2010 115 3p 165 8p 126

On exeraise of the share options anginally awarded to hum in February 2001, $at Dhawal sold all of the shares receved from the options he exeraised
lan Robson sold 212,127 of the shares he received to generate net proceeds equal to the exercise price, Income tax and national insurance on the
exercise He retained the remaiming 37,205 shares

The market price of the Company’s shares at the end of the financial year was 202p and the highest and lowest closing prices during the financial year
were 208p and 77p respectively

This report hars been approved by the Rernuneration Committee and 15 signed on its behalf by

2

Chairman, Remuneration Commuttee
15 June 2011
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independent auditor’s report fo the
members of Ashtead Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Ashtead Group plc for
the year ended 30 April 2011 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and
Company Cash Flow Statements, and the related notes 1to 31

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their
preparation 15 applicable law and International Financiai Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion and, as regards
the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
i an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility
15 to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the Company's
crcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial iInformation in the
annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for

our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the parent Company's affairs as at 30 April 2011 and
of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

*+ the consolidated financial staternents have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

* the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with |FRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied
in accordance with the provisions of the Cornparues Act 2006, and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financiat statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued
by the IASB

As explamed in note 1 to the financial statements, the Group in addition
to complying with its legal obligation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board {IASB)

In our opinion the financial statements comply with IFRSs as 1ssued
by the IASB

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opirion

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

* the nformation given in the Directors’ Report for the finanaial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothing to report i respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If,
11 oUr OpHICN

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches
not visited by us, or

* the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

* the directors’ statement contained within the Corporate Governance
Report in refation to going concern,

* the part of the Corporate Governance Report relating to the Company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of the June 2008 Combmed Code
specified for our review, and

» certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on
directors’ remuneration

[~ (aille~

lan Waller (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

15 June 2011
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consolidated income statement

for the year ended 30 April 2011

20m 2010
Before Before
exceptionals, Exceptionals excepticnals Exceptionals
amortisattonand  amortisation and amortisation and  amortisatoon and
refm it Total remeasurements remeasurements Total
Notes £Em £m £m fm im £m
Continuing operations
Revenue
Rental revenue 846 5 - B465 7696 - 7696
Sale of new equipment, merchandise and consumables 414 - 414 406 - 406
Sale of used rental equipment 60 6 -  ©606 266 16 282
948 5 - 9485 8368 16 8384
Operating costs
Staff costs 3 (2510} - (2910) (266 3) - (2663)
Used rental equipment sold 3 (55 0} - {550) (246) (16) (262)
Other operating costs 3 (318 7) - (3187) (290 8) - (2908
(664 7} — (6647) {5817) (16) (5833)
EBITDA 2838 - 2838 2551 - 2551
Depreciation 3 (185 0} - (1850) (186 6) - [1866)
Amortisation 3 - 7 (7 - (25) (25)
Operating profit 23 98 8 7)) 97 685 (25) 660
Investment income 5 37 - a7 32 55 87
Interest expense 5 (71.5) (276) {991) {66 7) (32) (699)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 310 {29 3) 17 50 ©2 48
Taxation
— current 6 (60} 29 31 22 - (22)
— deferred 618 (4.9) 72 23 (17) 02 {15)
{10 9} 101 (08) (39) 0z 37
Profit from continuing operations 201 (192) 09 11 - 1
Profit from discontinued operations - - - - 10 10
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 201 (19 2) 09 11 10 21
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 8 40p {(38p) 0O2p 02p - 02p
Diluted earnings per share 8 40p {(38p) o0.2p 02zp - 02p
Total continuing and discontinued operations
Basic earnings per share 8 40p {(38p) O2p 02p 02p 04p
Diluted earmngs per share 8 40p (38p) 0O2p 02p 02p O4p
* EBITDA 1s presented here as an additional performance measure as it 1s commonly used by investors and lenders
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 Apnl 2011
20m 2010
£m £m
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the financial year 09 ra
Foreign currency translation differences (175) (90)
Actuanial gain/{loss) on defined benefit pension scheme 129 (92)
Tax on defined benefit pension scheme (34) 26
Tax on share-based payments - 01
Total comprehensive income for the year (71) (134)
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consolidated balance sheet

at 30 April 2011
20m 2010
Notes Em £m
Current assets
Inventones 9 ns 99
Trade and other receivables 10 1553 1347
Current tax asset 23 11
Cash and cash equivalents 1 188 548
1879 2005
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
— rental equipment 12 9145 9697
— other assets 12 1217 1319
1,036 2 11016
Intangible assets — brand names and other acquired intangibles 13 123 33
Goodwill 1B 3549 3736
Deferred tax asset 18 11 78
Defined benefit pension fund surplus 22 61 -
Other financial assets — dervatives 23 - 57
14106 1,492 0
Total assets 1,598 5 1,692 5
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 14 174 6 1306
Current tax lability 24 21
Debt due within one year 15 17 31
Prowvisions 7 96 120
188 3 1478
Non-current liabibties
Debt due after more than one year 15 792 8 8807
Provisions 7 233 294
Deferred tax liabilities 18 27z 1266
Defined benefit penston fund deficit 22 - 77
928 8 1044 4
Total Liabilities 11171 1192 2
Equity
Share capital 19 553 553
Share prermium account 36 36
Capital redemnption reserve 09 09
Non-distrtbutable reserve 907 907
Own shares held by the Company (331) (331)
Own shares held through the ESOT {67) (63)
Cumulative foreign exchange translation differences 26 201
Retained reserves 3681 3691
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 4814 5003
Total Liabilrties and equity 1,598 5 1,692 5

These finanoal statements were approved by the Board on 15 June 2011

Geoff Drabble lan Robson
Chief executive Finance director

Ashtead Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011




consolidated statement
of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 Apnl 2011

Cumulative
Own Own foreign
Share Caprtal Non shares shares exchange
Share premium redemption distributable held by the held by translation Retaned
<aptal account feserve reserve Comparny the £50T differences reseoves Tatal
fm £Em £m fm £m fm im £m fm
At 1 May 2009 553 36 09 907 {331) (63) 291 3858 5260
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 21 21
Other comprehensive iIncome
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - - - (90) - (90)
Actuanial loss on defined benefit
pension scheme - - - - - - - (82) (52)
Tax on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - - 26 26
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - - - 01 01
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (90) {(44) (134)
Dividends pad - - - - - - - (12 8) (128)
Share-based payments - - - - - - - 05 05
At 30 April 2010 553 36 09 907 (331) (63) 201 3691 5003
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 09 09
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation differences - - - - - - (175) - (175)
Actuarial gan on defined benefit
pension scheme - - - - - - - 129 129
Tax on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - - (34) (34)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - (175) 104 {71)
Dridends paid - - - - - - - (146) (46}
Own shares purchased by the ESOT - - - - - 04) - - (04
Share-based payments - - - - - - - 16 16
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - - - 16 16
At 30 Apnil 2011 553 36 09 207 {331) 67) 26 3681 4814
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consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 April 2011

20m 2010
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items and changes in rental equipment 24y 2797 2656
Exceptional operating costs pard (55) (82)
Payments for rental property, plant and equipment (182 2) (361)
Proceeds from disposal of rental property, plant and equipment before exceptional disposals S50 252
Exceptional proceeds from disposal of rental property, plant and equipment - 16
Cash generated from operations 1470 2481
Financing costs paid {66.7) (547)
Exceptional financing costs pard (65) -
Tax {paid)/received {net) (4 3) 03
Net cash from operating activities 695 1937
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of businesses 24[d) {34 8) (02)
Disposal of business costs - (0s)
Payments for non-rental property, plant and equipment (204) 67
Proceeds from disposal of non-rental property, plant and equipment 45 40
Net cash used in investing activities (507) (34)
Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of loans 5978 2907
Redemption of loans (634 5) (4108)
Capital element of finance lease payments (30) (4 3)
Purchase of awn shares by the ESOT (04) -
Dvidends paid (14 6) {12 8)
Net cash used in financing activities {547) (1372)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (359) 531
Opening cash and cash equivalents 548 17
Effect of exchange rate differences {01} -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 188 548
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been applied
consistently to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

These finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS') and with those parts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS
Accordingly, the Group complies with all IFRS, including those adopted for
use in the European Union The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, modified for certain items carried at
fair value, as stated in the accounting policies A summary of the more
important accounting policies 1s set out below

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations
are effective for the Group's accounting period begmning on 1 May 2010
and, where relevant, have been adopted They have not had a material
impact on the consolidated results or financial position of the Group

* Amendments to IFRS 1 — Additional exemptions for first-time adopters,

* Amendment to IFRS 1 - Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters,

* |AS 24 {revised} — Refated party disclosures,

* Amendment to IFRIC 14 — Prepayments of minmum funding
requirement,

* IFRIC 19 — Extinguishing finanaial liabilitsies with equity instruments, and

= Improvements to IFRSs (2010}

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to use estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period A more detailed discussion of
the principal accounting policies and management estimates and
assumptions i1s included in the Business and Financial Review on pages 32
and 33 and forms part of these financial statements Actual results could
differ from these estimates

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidianies for the year to 30 April each year The
results of businesses acquired or sold during the year are incorporated for
the periods from or to the date on which control passed and acquisitions
are accounted for under the acquisition method Control is achieved when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain the benefits from 1ts activities

Fareign currency translation

Assets and liabilitres in foreign currencies are translated into pounds
sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Income
statements and cash flows of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated into pounds sterling at average rates of exchange for the year
The exchange rates used in respect of the US dollar are

20m 2010
Average for year 156 160
Year end 167 153

Exchange differences ansing from the retranslation of the opening net
nvestment of overseas subsidiaries and the difference between the
inclusion of therr profits at average rates of exchange i the Group income
statement and the closing rate used for the balance sheet are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity Other exchange differences
are dealt with in the income statement

Revenue

Revenue represents the total amount recevable for the provision of goods
and services including the sale of used rental plant and equipment to
customers net of returns and sales tax/VAT Rental revenue, including loss
damage watver and environmentat fees, 1s recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the rental contract Because a rental contract can
extend across financial reporting period ends, the Group records unbilled
rental revenue and deferred revenue at the beginning and end of each
reporting period so that rental revenue is appropriately stated in the
financial statements

Revenue from rental equipment delivery and collection 15 recognised when
delvery or collection has occurred and 1s reported as rental revenue

Revenue from the sale of rental equipment, new equipment, parts and
supplies, retail merchandise and fuel 15 recogrised at the time of delivery
to, or collection by, the customer and when all obligations under the sales
cantract have been fulfilled

Revenue from sales of rental equipment in connection with trade-in
arrangernents with certain manufacturers from whem the Group
purchases new equipment i1s accounted for at the lower of transaction
value or fair value based on independent appraisals If the trade-in price of
aunit of equipment exceeds the fair market value of that unit, the excess
I1s accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the related purchase of new
rental equipment

Current/non-current distinction

Current assets include assets held pnmarily for trading purposes, cash and
cash equivalents and assets expected to be realised in, or intended for sale
or consumption in, the course of the Group's operating cycle and those
assets recervable within one year from the reporting date All other assets
are classified as non-current assets

Current babilities include liabilities held pnimarily for trading purposes,
Liabilities expected to be settled in the course of the Group's operating
cycle and those babilities due within one year from the reporting date
All other liabilitres are classified as non-current liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment s stated at cost (including transportation
costs from the manufacturer to the initial rental location) less
accumulated depreciation and any provisions for impairment In respect of
aerial work platforms, cost includes rebuild costs when the rebuild extends
the asset’s useful economic life and 1t 1s probable that incremental
economic benefits will accrue to the Group Rebuild costs include the cost
of transporting the equipmenit to and from the rebuild supplier
Additionally, depreciation 1s not charged while the asset is not in use
during the rebuild period

Leased assets

Finance leases are those leases which transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee Assets held under finance leases
are caprtalised within property, plant and equipment at the fair value of
the leased assets at inception of the lease and depreciated in accordance
with the Group's depreciation policy Qutstanding finance lease
obligations are included within debt The finance element of the
agreements 1s charged to the income statement on a systematic basis
over the term of the lease

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged
to the incorne staterment on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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Depreciation

Leasehold properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the life
of each lease Other fixed assets, including those held under finance leases,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis applied to the opening cost to
write down each asset to its residual value over its useful econormic lfe
The rates in use are as follows

Per annum
Freehold property 2%
Motor vehicles 7% to 25%
Rental equipment 5% to 33%
Office and workshop equipment 20%

Residual values are estimated at 10-15% of cost in respect of most types
of rental equiprnent, although the range of residual values used vanies
between zero and 30%

Repairs and maintenance
Costs incurred in the repair and maintenance of rental and other
equipment are charged to the income statement as incurred

Intangible assets

Business combinations and goodwill

Acquisitions are accounted for using the purchase method Goodwill
represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the
fair value of the net dentifiable assets acquired, including any intangible
assets other than goodwill

Goodwill 15 stated at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses and
15 allocated to the Group's two reporting units, Sunbelt and A-Plant

The profit or loss on the disposal of a previously acquired business
includes the attnbutable amount of any purchased goodwill relating
to that business

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are
capitabised at fair value as at the date of acquisition Internally generated
intangible assets are not capitalised Amortisation is charged on a
strarght-line basis over the expected useful life of each asset Contract
related intangible assets are amortised over the life of the contract
Amortisation rates for other intangible assets are as follows

Per annum
Brand names 8% to 15%
Customer lists 10% to 20%
Impairment of assets

Goodwill 1s not amortised but is tested annually for impairment as at

30 Apnl each year Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Animpairment
toss is recogmised in the incomne statement for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable and independent cash flows for the asset
being tested for imparrment In the case of goodwill, impairment 1s
assessed at the level of the Group's two reporting units

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and value in use In assessing value in use, estmated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset

tn respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determme the
recoverable amount An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recogmised Impairment losses in respect
of goodwill are not reversed

Taxation

The tax charge for the period comprises both current and deferred tax
Taxation 1s recognised in the income statement except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the related
tax 15 also recogrised in equity

Current tax s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet lability method on any
temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes Deferred tax habilities
are generally recognised for all taxabte temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences anse from the initial recognition of goodwilt

Deferred tax liabilities are not recogrused for temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiartes where the Group 1s able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax is
calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply i the period when
the Liability 1s settled or the asset 15 realised Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and abilities on a net basis

Inventories
Inventories, which compnse new equipment, fuel, merchandise and spare
parts, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Employee benefits

Defined contribution pension plans

Obligations under the Group's defined contribution plans are recognised
as an expense in the income statement as incurred

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group's abligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned n return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
beneht 1s discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of
plan assets 1s deducted The discount rate used is the yield at the balance
sheet date on AA-rated corporate bonds The calculation is performed by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Actuaral gains and losses are recognised in futl in the period in which they
anise through the statement of comprehensive income The increase in the
present value of plan liabilities anising from employee service during the
period 1s charged to operating profit The expected return on plan assets
and the expected increase dunng the period in the present value of plan
liabilities due to unwind of the discount are included in investment income
and interest expense, respectively

The defined pension surplus or deficit represents the fair value of the plan
assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation A surplus is
recognised in the balance sheet to the extent that the Group has an
unconditional nght to the surplus, either through a refund or reduction in
future contnbutions A deficit is recognised in full

Share-based compensation

The fair value of awards made under share-based compensation plans 15
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period through the
income statement with a corresponding increase in equity The far value
of share options and awards 1s measured using an appropriate valuation
model taking into account the terms and conditrons of the indviduat
award The amount recognised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the
actual awards vesting except where any change in the awards vesting
relates only to market-based criteria not being achieved
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Insurance

Insurance costs include insurance premiums which are written off to the
income statement over the penod to which they relate and an estimate
of the discounted liabibity for uninsured retained risks on unpaid claims
incurred up to the balance sheet date The estimate includes events
incurred but not reperted at the balance sheet date This estimate (s
discounted and included in provisions in the balance sheet

Investment ncome and interest expense

Investment income comprises interest recevable on funds invested, fair
value gains on derivative financtal instruments and the expected return
on plan assets in respect of defined benefit pension plans

Interest expense comprises interest payable on borrowings, amortisation
of deferred finance costs, fair value losses on derwative financial
instruments and the expected increase in plan liabilities in respect of
defined benefit pension schemes

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Trade recevables do not carry interest and are stated at face value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances and call deposits with
maturity of less than, or equal to, three months

Financal liabilities and equity

Equity Instruments

An equity nstrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its labilities Equity
nstruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds recewed,
net of direct 1ssue costs

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at face vatue

Borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
recerved, net of direct transaction costs Finance charges, including
amortisation of direct transaction costs, are charged to the income
statement using the effective interest rate method

Tranches of borrowings and overdrafts which mature on a regular basis are
classified as current or non-current liabilities based on the maturnity of the
facility so long as the committed facility exceeds the drawn debt

Dervative financial instruments

The Group may use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations 1n interest and foreign exchange rates These are principally
swap agreements used to manage the balance between fixed and floating
rate finance on long-term debt and forward contracts for known future
foreign currency cash flows The Group does not hold or 1ssue denvative
instruments for speculative purposes

All derivatves are held at fair value in the balance sheet within trade

and other recevables or trade and other payables Changes in the far
value of derivative financiat instruments that are designated and effective
as hedges of future cash flows are recogmised directly in equity The gain
or loss relating to any meffective portion 1s recognised immediately in
the income statement Amounts deferred in equity are recognised in

the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged item
affects profit or loss Changes in the farr value of any dervative
instruments that are not hedge accounted are recognised mmediately

In the income statement

Secured notes

The Group's secured notes contain early prepayment options, which
constitute embedded derivatives in accordance with 'IAS 38, Financial
Instrurnents Recogrution and Measurement’ At the date of issue the
liabiity component of the notes 15 estimated using prevailing market
interest rates for simiar debt with no prepayment option and s recorded
within borrowings, net of direct transaction costs The difference between
the proceeds of the note 1ssue and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option to prepay the notes 1s
included within ‘Other financial assets — derivatives’ The interest expense
on the liability component 15 calculated by applying the effective interest
rate method The ermbedded option to prepay is fair valued using an
appropriate valuation model and fair value remeasurement gains and
losses are included in investrment incorne and interest expense respectively

Exceptional tems

Exceptional items are those items that are non-recurring in nature that
the Group believes should be disclosed separately to assist in the
understanding of the financial performance of the Group

Earnings per share

Earmings per share 15 calculated based on the profit for the financial year
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the
year For this purpose the number of ardinary shares in 1ssue excludes
shares held in treasury or by the ESOT in respect of which dividends have
been waived Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated using the profit for
the financial year and the weighted average diluted number of shares
{ignonng any patential 1ssue of ardinary shares which would be anti-
dilutive} during the year

Underlying earnings per share comprises basic earnings per share adjusted
to exclude earnings relating to exceptional items, amortisation of acquired
intangibles and fair value remeasurements of embedded dervatives in
long-term debt Cash tax earnings per share comprises underlying earnings
per share adjusted to exclude deferred taxation

Pravisions

Provisions are recogrused when the Group has a present cbligation as

a result of a past event, and 1t 15 probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation Provistons are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the effect
Is matenal

Employee Share Ownership Trust

Shares in the Cornpany acquired by the Employee Share Ownership Trust
(ESOT) 1n the open market for use in connection with employee share
plans are presented as a deduction from shareholders’ funds When the
shares vest to satisfy share-based payments, a transfer 1s made from own
shares held through the ESOT to retamed earmungs

Treasury shares

The cost of treasury shares (s deducted from shareholders’ funds The
proceeds from the reissue of treasury shares are added to shareholders’
funds with any gains in excess of the average cost of the shares being
recognised in the share premium account

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Such assets are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use Such assets
are not depreciated Assets are regarded as held for sale only when the
sale 1s highly probable and the asset Is available for sale n its present
condition Management must be commutted to the sale which must be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification
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2 Segmental analysis
Business segments

The Group operates one ¢lass of business, rental of equipment Operationally, the Group 15 split into two business units, Sunbelt and A-Plant which \
report separately to, and are managed by, the chief executive and align with the geographies in which they operate, being the US and UK, respectively ‘
These business units are the basis on which the Group reports its segment information The Group manages debt and taxation centrally, rather than by

business unit Accordingly, segmental results are stated before interest and taxation which are reported as central Group items This 1s consistent with

the way the chief executive reviews the business

Corporats

Sunbelt A-Plant itams Group
Year ended 30 Apnl 2011 Em £m £m £m
Revenue 7827 1658 - 948 5
Qperating costs {534 6) (122 7) {74) {664 7)
EBITDA 2481 431 (74) 2838
Depreciation {144 5) {40 4) (01) (185 0)
Segment result before amortisation 1036 27 {75) 98.8 |
Amortisation {0 8} {09) - {17) ‘
Segment result 102 8 18 {75) 971 ‘
Net financing costs {95 4)
Profit before taxation 1.7
Taxation {0 8)
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 09
Segment assets 1,284 4 2918 01 1,576 3
Cash 188
Taxation assets 34
Total assets 1598 §
Segment Liabilities 1515 454 33 2002
Corporate barrowings and accrued interest 8018
Taxation liabilities 1151
Total hiabilities 11171
Other non-cash expenditure
~ share-based payments 08 03 05 16
Capital expenditure 1999 37.0 - 2369
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 Segmental analysis continued

Corporate Contmuing  Discontinued

Sunbelt A Plant iterns operations operations Group
Year ended 30 April 2010 fm £m £m Em Em Em
Revenue 6745 1623 - 8368 - 8368
Operating costs (455 5) (120 3) (59) (5817) - (5817)
EBITDA 2150 420 (59) 2551 - 2551
Depreciation {146 3) (40 2) {01 (186 6) - (186 6)
Segment result before exceptional items and amortisation 727 18 (60} 685 - 685
Exceptional items - - - - 10 10
Amortisation (19) (06) - (25) - (25)
Segment result 708 12 (6 0} 660 10 670
Net financing costs (612) - 612
Profit before taxation 48 10 58
Taxation (37 - (37
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 11 10 21
S_egment assets 1,3320 290 9 02 16231 - 1,6231
Cash 548 - 548
Taxation assets 89 - 89
Other financial assets — derivatives 57 - 57
Total assets 1,692 5 - 1,692 5
Segment liabilities 1196 445 17 1658 - 1658
Corporate borrowings and accrued interest 8977 - 8977
Taxation habilies 1287 — 1287
Total hiabilities 1192 2 - 1192 2
Qther non-cash expenditure
— share-based payments 02 01 02 05 - 05
Capital expenditure 483 153 - 636 - 636

There are no sales between the business segments Segment assets include property, ptant and equipment, goodwill, acquired intangibles, inventory
and recervables Segment Labilities compnise operating liabilities and exclude taxation balances, corporate borrawings and accrued interest Capital
expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and includes additions through the acquisition of bustnesses

Segmental analysis by geography

The Group's operations are located in North America and the Unsted Kingdom The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue, segment
assets and capital expenditure, including acquisiions, by country of domicile Segment assets by geography inctude property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets but exclude inventory and recevables

Revenure Segment assets Capital expenditure

2m 2010 201 2010 20n 2010

Em im £m £m £m Em

North Amenca 7827 6745 1.156.9 12221 1999 483
United Kingdom 1658 162 3 2526 256 4 37.0 153
948 5 8368 1,409 5 1,478 5 2369 636
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3 Operating costs and other income

201 2010
Before Before
exceptional  Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
items and items and ntems and items and
amortisation amortisation Total  amorusaton  amortisation Total
£m £m £m im £ Em
Staff costs
Salaries, bonuses and commissions 2661 - 2661 2447 - 2447
Social security costs 226 - 226 202 - 202
Other penston costs 23 - 23 14 — 14
291.0 - 2910 2663 - 2663
Used rental equipment sold 550 - 550 246 16 262
Other operating costs
Vehicle costs 756 - 756 662 - 662
Spares, consurnables and external reparrs 588 - 588 489 - 489
Faality costs 454 - 454 449 - 449
Other external charges 1389 - 1389 1308 - 1308
3187 - 3187 2908 - 2908
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of owned assets 1840 - 1840 1849 - 1849
Depreciation of leased assets 10 - 10 17 - 17
Amartisation of acquired intangibles - 17 17 - 25 25
1850 17 1867 186 6 25 1891
8497 17 8514 7683 41 7724
Proceeds from the disposal of non-rental property, plant and equipment amounted to £4 5m (2010 £4 Om)
The costs shown in the above table include
201 2010
Em im
Operating lease rentals payable
Plant and equipment 17 17
Property 344 339
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 404 376
Bad debt expense 7 97
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (01) 01
Remuneration payable to the Company's auditor, Deloitte LLP, in the year 15 given below
20m 2010
£m Em
Audit services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
- Group audit 285 291
— UK statutory audits of subsidianes 13 13
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
— overseas subsidiary audits 290 303
588 607
Other services
Fees payable to Deloitte UK
- half-year review 48 47
- other assurance services 10 10
Fees payable to other Deloitte firms
— half-year review 15 14
—tax services 152 44
813 722
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notes 1o the consolidated financial statements

continued

4 Exceptional items, amortisation and fair value remeasurements

20M

2010

£m fm

Wirite-off of deferred financing costs 154 32
Earty redemption fee 65 -
Fair value rermeasurements 57 (55)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 17 25
Sale of Ashtead Technology - (19)
293 8

Taxation (101) {02
192 (10)

The write-off of deferred financing costs consists of the unamortised balance of costs relating to both the 2006 ABL facility, which was renewed n
March 2011 and to the $250m 8 625% senior secured notes redeemed in April 2011 In addition, an early redemption fee of £6 5m was paid on

settlement of these notes Fair value remeasurements relate to the changes in the fair value of the embedded call options in our senior secured note issues

Exceptional items, amortisation and fair value remeasurerments are presented in the incorne statement as follows

20m 200
£m im

Sale of used rental equipment - (16)
Used rental equipment sold - 16
Amortisatton 17 25
Charged in arnving at operating profit 17 25
Investment income - (55)
Interest expense 276 32
Charged in arrving at profit before tax 293 02
Taxation (101) (02)

192 -
Profit after taxation from discontinued operations - (10}

192 {10}
5 Net financing costs

201 2070

£Em im

Investment income
Expected return on assets of defined benefit pension plan 37} (32
Interest expense
Bank interest payable 157 134
Interest payable on second priority senior secured notes 453 44 4
Interest payable on finance leases 02 03
Non-cash unwind of discount on defined benefit pension plan liabiities 35 30
Non-cash unwind of discount on self-insurance provisions 14 15
Amortisation of deferred costs of debt raising 54 41
Total interest expense 715 667
Net financing costs before exceptional items 678 635
Exceptional items 219 32
Fair value remeasurements 57 (55
Net financing costs 954 612
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6 Taxation
2011 2010
£m fm
Analysis of tax charge
Current tax
— current tax on income for the year 44 39
- adjustments to prior year (13) (17)
31 22
Deferred tax
- origination and reversal of temporary differences (4 4) (23)
— adjustments to prior year 21 g
(23) 15
Total taxation 08 37
Comprising
— UK tax 78 02
— US tax (70) 65)
[+F ] 37

The tax charge comprises a charge of £109m (2010 £3 9m} relating to tax on the profit before exceptional items, amortisation and fair value
remeasurements, together with a credit of £10 1m (2010 £0 2m) compnising a tax credit of £0 4m (2010 £0 9m) on the amortisation expense and a tax
credit of £9 7rm on exceptional tems and far value remeasurernents

The tax charge for the period 15 higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 27 8% for the year The differences are explained below

2on 2010
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 17 48
Profit on ordinary actrvities multiplied by the rate of corporation tax in the UK of 27 8% (2010 28%) 0Ss 13
Effects of
Use of foreign tax rates on overseas incorme (2 3) (08
Other 18 11
Adjustments to prior year 08 21
Total taxation charge 08 37
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued
7 Dividends
2om 2010
£m £m
Final dvidend paid on 10 September 2010 of 2 Op {2010 1675p) per 10p ordinary share 100 83
Intenim davidend pard en 9 February 2011 of 0 93p (2010 0 9p) per 10p ordinary share 46 45
146 128
In addition, the directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 April 2011 of 2 07p per share which will absorb
£10 3m of shareholders’ funds based on the 497 7m shares ranking for dividend at 15 June 2011 Subject to approval by shareholders, it will be paid
on 9 September 2011 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 19 August 2011
8 Earnings per share
20m 2010
Weighted Per Weighted Per
average na share average no share
Earmngs of shares amount Earrungs of shares amount
£m million pence Em million pence
Continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 09 4977 02 11 4976 02
Share options and share plan awards - 65 - = 38 =
Diluted earnings per share 09 504 2 02 11 5014 02
Discontnued operations
Basic earnings per share - - - i0 4976 02
Share options and share plan awards - - - - 38
Diluted earnings per share - - - 10 5014 02
Total Group
Basic earnings per share 09 4977 0.2 21 4976 04
Share options and share plan awards - 65 - - 38 -
Diluted earnings per share 09 504.2 0.2 21 5014 04
Underlying and cash tax earnings per share rnay be reconciled to the basic earruings per share as follows
201 2010
pence pence
Total Group
Basic earnings per share 0z 04
Exceptional items and amortisation of acquired intangibles 59 ©2)
Tax on exceptional items and amortisation (21) -
Underlying earnings per share 49 02
Other deferred tax 10 04
Cash tax earnings per share 50 06
9 Inventories
20m 2010
£m im
Raw materials, consumables and spares 68 57
Goods for resale 47 42
115 99
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10 Trade and other receivables

2011 2010

£m tm

Trade recevables 1459 1298
Less allowance for bad and doubtful receivables {137) {156)
1322 1142

Other receivables 231 205
1553 1347

The farr values of trade and other recevables are not matenally different to the carrying values presented

a) Trade receivables credit risk

The Group's exposure to the credit nsk inherent 1n its trade recewvables and the associated risk management techmiques that the Group deploys in order
to mitigate this risk are discussed in note 23 The credit periods offered to customers vary according to the credit nsk profiles of, and the invoicing
conventions established in, the Group’s markets The contractual terms on invoices Issued to customers vary between the US and the UK in that,
mvoices ssued by A-Plant are payable within 30-60 days whereas, invoices issued by Sunbelt are payable on receipt Therefore, on this basss, a significant
proportion of the Group's trade recevables are contractually past due The allowance for bad and doubtful recevables 1s calculated based on prior
experience reflecting the level of uncollected recewables over the last year within each business Accordingly, this cannot be attributed to specific
recervables so the aged analysis of trade recewvables, including those past due, 1s shown gross of the allowance for bad and doubtful receivables

On this basis, the ageing analysis of trade recewables, including those past due, Is as follows

Trade recesvables past due by
Less than 30-60 60 -90 More than
Current 30 days days days 90 days Towal
£m im fm £m £m £m
Carrying value at 30 April 2011 196 €685 335 103 140 1459
Carrying value at 30 Aprl 2010 178 630 267 78 145 1298

In practice, Sunbelt operates on 30 day terms and considers receivables past due if they are unpaid after 30 days On this basis, the Group's ageing of
trade recevables, including those past due, 15 as follows

Trade recervables past due by
Less than 30-60 &0-90 More than
Current 30 days days days 90 days Total
£m £m fm im fm im
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2011 753 430 ne6 55 105 1459
Carrying value at 30 Apnl 2010 694 351 93 43 117 1298
b) Movement in the ailowance account for bad and doubtful receivables
20m 2010
£m im
At 1 May 156 176
Amounts written off and recovered during the year (82) (113)
Increase in allowance recognised in incorne statement 7 a7
Currency movements {0 8} (04)
At 30 Apnil 137 156
11 Cash and cash equivalents
201 2010
£Em Im
Cash and cash equivalents 188 548

Cash and cash equivalents comprise principally cash held by the Group with a major UK financial institution The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents approximates their fair value
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notes 1o the consolidated financial statements

continued

12 Property, plant and equipment

Rental equipment

Held under

Office and

Moator vehicles

Held under

Lard and finance workshop finance
buildings Owned leases equipment Owned leases Total
£m £m £m £m fm m fm

Cost or valuation
At 1 May 2009 868 1,7979 03 452 1169 170 2,0641
Exchange differences {16} 46 1) - (11) (34) (04) {52 6}
Acquisitions - c1 - - - - 01
Reclassifications 04 {19 8) {0})] 71 168 (44} -
Additions 35 556 - 06 35 02 634
Disposals (45) {86 6) - (6 8) (71 (30) {108 0}
At 30 Apnil 2010 846 17011 02 450 1267 94 1,9670
Exchange differences 41) (113 4) - (29) (86) (05} (129 5)
Acquisitions 02 M7 - 01 01 - 121
Reclassifications - (10) 02 12 57 (57) -
Additons 33 202 4 - 27 138 26 2248
Disposals (30) (179 2) - (23) (116) (16) (1977)
At 30 Apnil 2011 810 16216 - 4338 1261 42 18767
Depreciation
At 1 May 2009 274 6576 01 356 401 93 7701
Exchange differences (0 3) {m7y - 09) (08) (02} (133)
Reclassifications 04 (16 2) - 66 122 (29} 01
Charge for the period 38 1627 - 39 145 17 1866
Disposals 24 {615) - (66) (54 22 {781)
At 30 April 2010 289 7315 01 386 606 57 865 4
Exchange differences (15) {(575) - (26} (50 (04} (670)
Reclassifications - (06) (O3] o7 39 (39 -
Charge for the period 37 1620 - 30 153 10 1850
Disposals (22) (1283) - 22 (0) 2) (1429
At 30 Apnl 2011 289 7071 - 375 658 12 8405
Net book value
At 30 April 2011 521 9145 - 63 603 30 1,036 2
At 30 Apnt 2010 557 9696 01 64 661 37 11016

No rebuild costs were capitalised in the year (2010 £nil}
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13 Intangible assets including goodwill

Other intangible assets

Brand Custemer Contract
Goodwill names lists related Totat Total
Em Em Em £m Em £m

Cost or valuation
At 1May 2009 3854 137 17 108 262 4116
Recognised on acquisstion - - - 01 01 o1
Exchange differences {18 (04) - (03) (07 (125)
At 30 April 2010 3736 33 17 106 256 3992
Recognised on acquisition nz 12 46 53 M 228
Exchange differences (304 (11) (03) (08) 22) (326)
At 30 April 2011 3549 134 60 151 345 3894
Amortisation
At 1 May 2009 - 126 06 71 203 203
Charge for the period - o 02 22 25 25
Exchange differences - (04) - [(})] (05) {05)
At 30 April 2010 - 123 08 92 223 223
Charge for the percd - 02 04 11 17 17
Exchange differences - (10) - (08) (18) (18)
At 30 April 2011 - 15 12 95 222 222
Net book value
At 30 April 2011 3549 19 4.8 56 123 3672
At 30 Apnl 2010 3736 10 09 14 33 3769

Goodwill acquired in a business combination was allocated, at acqusition, to the reporting units that benefited from that business combination,
as follows

201 2010

£m £m

Sunbelt 3406 3593
A-Plant 143 143
3549 3736

For the purposes of determining potential goodwill impairment, recoverable amounts are determined from value in use catculations using cash flow
projections based on financial plans covenng a three year period which were adopted and approved by the Board in April 2011 The growth rate
assumptions used in the plans reflect management's expectations of market developments and take account of past performance The valuation uses an
annual growth rate to determine the cash flows beyond the three year period of 2%, which does not exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant markets, and a terminal value reflective of market multiples The pre-tax rate used to discount the projected cash flows 15 9 5% (2010 90%)

The impairment review Is sensitive to a change in key assumptions used, most notably the discount rate and the annuity growth rates A sensitivity
analysis has been undertaken by changing the key assumptions used for both Sunbett and A-Plant Based on this sensitivity analysis, no reasonably
possible change in the assumptions resulted in the carrying value of the goodwill in Sunbelt being reduced to the recoverable amount A-Plant has
headroom of £18m at the reporting date An increase in the discount rate of 9 5% by 09% or a decrease in the annuity growth rate of 2% by 11%
would eradicate the headroom

14 Trade and other payables

201 2010

£m Em

Trade payables 811 487
Other taxes and social security 130 126
Accruals and deferred income 805 693
1746 1306

Trade and other payables include amounts relating to the purchase of fixed assets of £577m (2010 £276m) The fair values of trade and other payables
are not matenally different from the carrying values presented
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

15 Borrowings

200 2010
£m £m
Current
Finance lease obligations 17 31
Non-current
First prionity semior secured bank debt 4671 3675
Finance lease obhigations 13 04
8 625% secand pnonity senior secured notes, due 2015 - 1602
9% second prionity senior secured notes, due 2016 324 4 3526
792.8 8807

The senior secured bank debt and the senior secured notes are secured by way of, respectively, first and second prionity fixed and floating charges over

substantialty all the Group's property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade recevables

First priority senior secured credit facility

During the year, the first prionity asset-based senior secured loan facility {ABL facility’) was renewed and now consists solely of a $1 4bn revolving credit
faciity committed until March 2076 The ABL facility 1s secured by a first prionty interest in substantsally all of the Group's assets Pricing for the
revolving credit facility 1s based on the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA before exceptional items according to a grid which varies, depending on leverage,

from LIBOR plus 200bp to LIBOR plus 250bp At 30 April 2011 the Group's borrowing rate was LIBOR plus 225bp

The ABL facility includes a springing covenant package under which quarterly financial performance covenants are tested only if available lquidity 15 less
than $168m Available hquidity at 30 Apnl 2011 was £287m ($479m) reflecting drawings under the facility at that date together with outstanding letters
of credit of £16m ($27m) As the ABL facility 1s asset-based, the maximum amount available to be borrowed (which includes drawings in the form of
standby letters of credit) depends on asset values (receivables, inventery, rental equipment and real estate) which are subject to periodic Independent

apprasal The maximum amount which could be drawn at 30 April 2011 was £765m ($1,276m)

9% second prionity senior secured notes due 2016 having a nominal value of $550m

©n 15 August 2006 the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Ashtead Capital, Inc, 1ssued $550m of 9% second priority sentor secured notes
due 15 August 2016 The notes are secured by second prionity interests over substantially the same assets as the ABL facllity and are also guaranteed

by Ashtead Group plc

Under the terms of the 9% notes the Group is, subject to important exceptions, restricted in its ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends, make

investments, sell assets, enter into sale and leaseback transactions and merge or consolidate with another company

The effective rates of interest at the balance sheet dates were as follows

201 2010

First prionty senior secured bank debt - revotving advances in dollars 28% 30%
—term loan advances in dollars - 21%

Secured notes — $550m nominal value 9.0% 90%
Finance leases 78% 70%

16 Obligations under finance leases

Minmum Present value of
lease payments msmimum lease payments
20m 2010 2om 2010
Em Em £m fm
Amounts payable under finance leases

Less than one year 18 32 16 3
Later than one year but not more than five 15 04 14 04
i3 36 30 35

Future finance charges 03) 01

30 35

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's nghts over the leased assets disclosed in note 12
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17 Provisions
Selt Vacant
Insurance property Total
£m im im
At 1 May 2010 222 192 414
Exchange differences (17) {07) (24)
Utilised {165) {66) (231)
Charged in the year 134 22 156
Amortisation of discount 14 - 14
At 30 April 2011 18.8 141 329
zom 2010
Em £m
Included in current liabilittes 96 120
Included in non-current liabilities 233 294
329 414
Self-insurance provisions relate to the discounted estimated hability in respect of claims excesses to be incurred under the Group’s insurance
programmes for events occurnng up to the year end and are expected to be utilised over a penod of approximately eight years The provision 1
established based on advice received from independent actuaries of the estimated total cost of the self-insured retained nsk based on historical
claims experience The amount charged in the year s stated net of a £4 Tm adjustment to reduce the provision held at 1 May 2010
The majonity of the provision for vacant property costs Is expected to be utilised over a period of up to four years
18 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences Total
£m im im
At 1 May 2010 - 78 78
Offset against deferred tax liability at 1 May 2010 462 419 881
Gross deferred tax assets at 1 May 2010 462 497 959
Exchange differences (72) (28) (100)
Credit/{charge) to income statement 552 (121) 431
Charge to equity - (18) (18)
Acquisition of Erpire Scaffold - (24) 4
Less affset against deferred tax liability (94 2) (295) {1237)
At 30 Aprit 2011 - 11 11
Deferred tax habilities
Other
Accelerated tax temporary
depreciation differences Tetal
£m Em im
Net deferred tax hability at 1 May 2010 1685 419 1266
Deferred tax assets offset at 1 May 2010 462 419 881
Gross deferred tax liabiity at 1 May 2010 2147 - 2147
Exchange differences (203} - (203)
Charge to incomne statement 408 - 408
Acquisitron of Empire Scaffold 12 - 12
236 4 - 2364
Less offset of deferred tax assets
- benefit of tax losses (94 2)
— other temporary differences (295)
At 30 April 2011 127

The Group has an unrecogmised UK deferred tax asset of £15m (2010 £16m) in respect of losses i a non-trading UK company, as it 15 not cansidered
probable this deferred tax asset will be utilised

At the balance sheet date, no temporary differences associated with undistibuted earnings of subsidiaries are considered to exist as UK tax legislation
largely exempts overseas dvidends receved from UK tax The Group ts in a pasition to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and 1t 15 probable that such differences would not reverse in the foreseeable future
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19 Called up share capital

2011 2010 2om 2010
Number Number £m Em

Ordinary shares of 10p each

Authorised 900,000,000 900,000,000 900 900

Issued and fully paid

At 1 May and 30 April 553,325,554 553,325,554 553 553

There were no movements in shares authonsed or allotted during the penod At 30 Apnl 2011, 50m shares were held by the Company, acquired at an
average cost of 67p and a further 5 6m shares were held by the Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust

20 Share-based payments

The Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) facihtates the provision of shares under certain of the Group's share-based remuneration plans It holds
a beneficial mterest in 5,630,628 ordinary shares of the Company acquired at an average cost of 118 9p per share The shares had a market value of
£114m at 30 April 2011 The ESOT has waived the right to receive dividends on the shares it holds The costs of operating the ESOT are borne by the
Group but are not significant

Performance Share Plan

Details of the Performance Share Plan {'PSP’) are given on pages 47 and 48 The costs of this scheme are charged to the income statement over the
vesting period, based on the fair value of the award at the grant date and the likelihood of allocations vesting under the scheme In 2011, there was
a net charge in respect of the PSP of £16m (2010 £0 5m) After deferred tax, the totat charge was £10m (2010 £0 2m}

The fair value of awards granted during the year 1s estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions share price
at grant date of 98 5p, nil exercise price, a dividend yield of 2 94%, volatibity of 49 38%, a risk-free rate of 1 21% and an expected life of three years

Expected volatility was deterrmined by calculating the historical volatility over the previous three years The expected life used in the model 15 based
on the terms of the plan

Discretionary share option schemes
Details of the discretionary share option schemes are given on page 47 In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS 2, Share-based payments,
the Group has not recognised any expense for these schemes as they were all granted prior to 7 November 2002

Discretionary schemes SAYE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise PSP
Number price (p) Number pnice (p) Number
2009/10
Qutstanding at 1 May 2009 1,936,052 998 483,384 1153 10,159,351
Granted - - - - 6454947
Forfeited - - (17.749) 1221 -
Exercised (303,057) 862 - - -
Expired (262,721) 976  (465,635) 150 (1,754,002)
Qutstanding at 30 Apnl 2010 1,370,274 1033 - ~ 14,850,296
Exerasable at 30 Apnl 2010 1,370,274 1033 - - -
2010/
Outstanding at 1 May 2010 1,370,274 1033 - — 14,850,296
Granted - - - - 4947703
Forfeited - - - - -
Exercised (1,164,668) 1106 - - -
Expired (77.506) m2 - - (3.454,574)
Outstanding at 30 April 2011 128,100 383 - ~ 16,343,425
Exercisable at 30 Apnl 2011 128,100 383 - - -
Options outstanding at 30 April 2011 under discretionary schemes
Weighted
average Lazest
exercise Number exercise
Year of grant price (p) of shares date
2001/2 383 128,100 26Feb 12

The weighted average exercise price during the period for options exercised durtng the year was 110 6p (2010 86 2p) for discretionary schemes
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21 Operating leases

Mintmurn annual commitments under existing operating leases may be analysed by date of expiry of the lease as follows

201

2010

£m £m
Land and buildings
Expiring in one year 21 41
Expinng between two and five years 169 146
Expiring in more than five years 140 168
330 355
Other
Expiring in one year o8 04
Expiring between two and five years 01 09
09 13
Total 339 368
Total mirimurm commitments under existing operating teases at 30 Apnl 2011 through to the earbiest date at which the lease may be exited without
penalty by year are as follows
Land and
burdings Other Tatal
fm Em £m
Financial year
2012 330 09 339
2013 287 - 287
2014 243 - 243
2015 199 - 199
2016 154 - 154
Thereafter 616 - 616
1829 09 183 8

£9 7m of the total minimum operating lease commitments of £182 9m relating to vacant properties has been provided within the financial staternents

and included within provisions in the balance sheet

22 Pensions

The Group operates pension plans for the benefit of qualifying employees The major plans for new employees throughout the Group are all defined
contribution plans following the introduction of the stakeholder pension plan for UK employees in May 2002 Pension <osts for defined contribution

plans were £16m (2070 £10m)

The Group also has a defined benefit plan for UK employees which was closed to new members in 2001 This plan 1s a funded defined benefit plan
with trustee administered assets held separately from those of the Group A full actuanal valuation was carried out as at 30 Apnl 2010 and updated
to 30 April 2011 by a qualified independent actuary The actuary is engaged by the Company to perform a valuation in accordance with IAS 19 The

principal assumptions made by the actuary were as follows

20m

2010

Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
Discount rate
inflation assumption — RP
-CPl
Weighted average expected return on plan assets

4 4%
32%
53%
34%
2.7%
6 5%

46%
36%
55%
36%

nfa
66%

Pensioner Life expectancy assumed in the 30 April 2011 update 1s based on the 'S1PxA CMI 2010° projection model mortality tables adjusted so as to
apply a mimimum annual rate of improvement of 10% a year Samples of the ages to which pensioners are assumed to live are as follows

Male Fernale
Pensioner aged 65 in 2011 869 894
Pensioner aged 65 in 2031 883 S08
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22 Pensions continued
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

2011

2010

£m £m
Current service cost 06 03
Interest cost 35 30
Expected return on plan assets (37) (32)
Total cost 04 01
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows
20m 2010
£m fm
Fair value of plan assets 63.6 559
Present value of defined benefit obligation (575) (636)
Net asset/{labibty) recogrised in the balance sheet 61 (77)
Movermnents in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows
2om 2010
£m im
At 1 May 636 437
Current service cost 0.6 03
Interest cost 35 30
National Insurance rebates receved 02 04
Contnibutions from members 03 03
Actuanial {gain)/loss
— expenence gan (24) (24)
— change n assumptions {64) 201
Benefits paid {19) (18)
At 30 Apnl 575 636
The actuarial gan in the year ended 30 April 2011 includes the effect of a change in the provision for inflation increases in pensions for deferred
members which 1s now linked to CPI rather than RPI
Movements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows
2m 2010
£m fm
At 1 May 559 440
Expected return on plan assets 37 32
Actual return on plan assets above expected return 3.9 85
Contnbutions from sponsoring companies 15 13
National Insurance rebates receved 02 04
Contnbutions from members 03 03
Benefits paid (19 (18
At 30 April 636 559
The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date was as follows
Expected return Faur value
2om 2010 zom 2010
% % £m £fm
Equity instruments 73 75 388 326
Bonds 48 50 199 187
Property 73 75 48 44
Cash - - 01 02
65 66 636 559

The overall expected return on assets 1s calculated as the weighted average of the expected returns on each individual asset class The expected return
on equities is the sum of inflation, the dividend yreld and economic growth net of investment expenses The return on gilts and bonds 1s the current

market yield on long-term gilts and bonds
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The history of experience adjustments 15 as follows

20m 2010 2009 2008 2007
£m tm fm £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 636 559 440 553 576
Present value of defined benefit obligations (575) {63 6} (437) (495) (52 4)
Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme 61 77 03 58 52
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities
Gain/{loss) (£m) 24 24 02 22 02
Percentage of closing scheme liabilities 4% 4% - 5% -
Experience adjustments on scherme assets
Gain/{toss) (Em) 39 85 (16 7) (72) 09
Percentage of closing scheme assets 6% 15% (38%) (13%) 2%

The cumulative actuarial losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income since the adoption of IFRS are £5 3m

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid by the Company to the plan during the current financial year 15 £14m

23 Financial risk management

The Group's trading and financing activities expose 1t to various financial nisks that, if left unmanaged, could adversely impact on current or future
earnings Although not necessarily mutually exclusive, these financial risks are categorised separately according to their different generic nisk
charactenstics and include market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity nisk

It 15 the role of the Group treasury function to rmanage and monitor the Group’s financial nsks and internal and external funding requirements in support
of the Group’s corporate objectives Treasury activities are governed by policies and procedures approved by the Board and monitored by the Finance
and Administration Commuttee In particular, the Board of directors or, through delegated authority, the Finance and Administration Committee,
approves any derivative transactions Derivative transactions are only undertaken for the purposes of managing interest rate risk and currency nisk The
Group does not trade i financial nstruments The Group maintains treasury control systems and procedures to monitor hiquidity, currency, credit and
financial nsks The Group reports and pays dividends in pounds sterling

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to interest rate and currency risk Interest rate risk 1s monitored on a continuous basis and managed, where
appropriate, through the use of interest rate swaps whereas, the use of forward foreign exchange contracts to manage currency risk 1s considered on
an individual non-trading transaction basis The Group 1s not exposed to commodity price nisk or equity price risk as defined in IFRS 7

Interest rate risk

Management of fixed and variable rate debt

The Group has fixed and vanable rate debt in 1ssue with 41% of the drawn debt at a fixed rate as at 30 April 2011 The Group’s accounting policy reguires
all borrowings to be held at amortised cost As a result the carrying value of fixed rate debt 15 unaffected by changes in credit conditions in the debt
markets and there 15 therefore no exposure to fair value interest rate nsk The Group’s debt that bears interest at a varable rate comprises all
outstanding borrowings under the senior secured credit facility The interest rates currently applicable to this variable rate debt are LIBOR as applicable
to the currency borrowed (US dollars or pounds sterling) plus 225bp The Group periodically utilises interest rate swap agreements to manage and
mitigate its exposure to changes in interest rates However, dunng the year ended and as at 30 April 2011, the Group had no such swap agreements
outstanding The Group alse may at times hold cash and cash equivalents which earn interest at a vanable rate

Net vanable rate debt sensitivity

At 30 April 2011, based upon the amount of variable rate debt outstanding, the Group's pre-tax profits would change by approximately £5m for each
one percentage pomt change in interest rates applicable to the variable rate debt and, after tax effects, equity would change by approximately £3m The
amount of the Group's vanable rate debt may fluctuate as a result of changes in the amount of debt outstanding under the senior secured credit facility

Currency exchange risk

Currency exchange nisk 1s imited to translation risk as there are no transactions in the ordinary course of business that take place between foreign
entities The Group's reporting currency 15 the pound sterling However, a majonty of our assets, habilities, revenue and costs 15 denorminated in US
dollars The Group has arranged its financing such that, at 30 April 2011, virtually all of its debt was denominated tn US dollars so that there 1s a natural
partial offset between its dollar-denominated net assets and earnings and its dollar-denominated debt and interest expense

The Group's exposure to exchange rate movements on trading transactions is relatively imited All Group companies invoice revenue in therr respective
local currency and generally incur expense and purchase assets in their local currency Consequently, the Group does not routinely hedge erther forecast
foreign exchange exposures or the impact of exchange rate movements on the translation of overseas profits into pounds sterling. Where the Group
does hedge, it maintains appropriate hedging documentation Foreign exchange risk on significant non-trading transactions (e g acquisitions) 15
considered on an indvidual basis
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23 Financial risk management continued

Resultant impacts of reasonably possible changes to foreign exchange rates

Based upon the level of US operations and of the US dollar-denorminated debt balance and US interest rates at 30 April 2011, a 1% change in the

US dollar-pound exchange rate would have impacted our pre-tax profits by approximately £04m and equity by approximately £3m At 30 Apnl 2011,
the Group had no outstanding foreign exchange contracts

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables The Group's credit risk 1s pnmarily attributable to

its trade recervables The amounts presented m the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables The credit risk on iquid funds and
dervative financial instruments 1s limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies
The Group's maximum expasure to credit nisk 15 presented in the following table

2011 2010
£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 188 548
Trade and other receivables 1553 1347
1741 1895

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents at 30 April 2011 are deposited with one large UK-based financial institution which s not
expected to fall

The Group has a large number of unrelated customers, serving over 500,000 dunng the financial year, and does not have any significant credit expesure
to any particular customer Each business segment manages 1ts own exposure to credit nisk according to the economic circumstances and charactenstics
of the markets they serve The Group believes that management of credit risk on a devolved basis enables it to assess and manage credit nsk more
effectively However, broad principles of credit risk management practice are observed across the Group, such as the use of credit reference agencies
and the maintenance of credit control functions

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group could experience difficulties 1n meeting its commitments to creditors as financial habilities fall due for payment

The Group generates significant free cash flow (defined as cash flow from operations less replacement capital expenditure net of proceeds of asset
disposals, nterest paid and tax paid) This free cash flow 1s available to the Group to invest in growth capital expenditure, acquisitions and dividend
payrments or to reduce debt

In addition to the strong free cash flow from normal trading activities, additional liquidity 1s available through the Group's ABL faality At 30 Apnil 2011,
avallability under this facility was $479m (£287m)

Contractual maturity analysis
Trade receivables, the principal class of non-dervative financial asset held by the Group, are settled gross by customers

The following table presents the Group’s outstanding contractual maturity profide for its non-derivative financial Liabilities, excluding trade and other
payables which fall due within one year The analysis presented i1s based on the undiscounted contractual matunties of the Group's financial liabilities,
including any interest that will accrue, except where the Group 15 entitled and intends to repay a financial bability, or part of a financial hability, before
its contractual maturity

At 30 Apnl 201
Undiscounted cash flows — year to 30 April
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
Em £m im £fm £m fm £Em
Bank and other debt - - - - 4742 - 474 2
Finance leases 17 10 03 - - - 30
9 0% senior secured notes - - - — - 3297 3207
17 10 03 - 474 2 3297 8069
Interest payments 416 433 451 474 496 99 2369
433 443 454 474 5238 3396 10438

Letters of credit of £16 1m (2010 £19 Im) are provided and guaranteed under the ABL facility which expires in March 2016

At 30 Apnl 2010
Undiscounted cash flows — year to 30 April

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total
fm im £fm £m £im im £m

Bank and other debt - - - 3848 - - 3848
Finance leases 31 04 - - - - 35
8 625% senior secured notes - - - - - 1633 1633
9 0% semor secured notes - - — ~ - 3593 3593
EY] 04 - 3848 - 5226 9109

Interest payments 641 661 636 557 46 4 453 3412
672 665 636 4405 46 4 5679 1,2521
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Fair value of financial instruments
Net fair values of derivative financial instruments

At 30 Apnl 2011, the Group's embedded prepayment options included within its secured loan notes had a farr value of £nil (2010 £5 7m) At 30 Apn!

2011, the Group had no other denivative financial instruments

fair value of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The table below provides a companson by category of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group’s non-derivative financial assets and
liabtlities at 30 April 2011 Farr value 15 the amount at which a finanuial instrument could be exchanged in an arm'’s length transaction between informed
and willing parties and includes accrued interest Where available, market values have been used to deterrmine fair values of financial assets and
liabilities Where market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been calculated by discounting expected future cash

flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates

At 30 April 2011 At 30 Apnil 2010
Book vatue Fair value Book value Fasr value
£m £m £m £m
Fair value of non-current borrowings
Long-term borrowings
Fair value determined based on market value
~ first priority senior secured bank debt 474 2 474 2 3848 3833
—8 625% senior secured notes - - 1633 164 6
—9% sentor secured notes 3297 3479 3593 3692
8039 8221 9074 9171
Fawr value determined based on observable market inputs
- finance lease obligations 13 14 04 04
Total long-term borrowings 8052 8235 078 9175
Deferred costs of raising finance (12 4) - (271} —
7928 8235 8807 9175
Far value of other financial instruments held or 1ssued to finance the Group's operations
Fair value determined based on market value
Finance lease obligations due within one year 17 18 3 31
Trade and other payables 1746 174 6 1306 1306
Trade and other recevables {155 3) {155 3) (1347) (1347)
Cash at bank and 1n hand (18 8) (18 8) (54 8) {54 8)
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24 Notes to the cash flow statement
a} Cash flow from operating activities

20m 2010
£Em £m
Operating profit before exceptional items and amortisation 988 685
Depreciation 1850 1866
EBITDA before exceptional items 283.8 2551
Profit on disposal of rental equipment (56) (20)
Profit on disposal of other property, plant and equipment {0 8) o1
(Increase)/decrease in inventories {2 6} 02
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables (212) 108
Increase in trade and other payables 247 10
Exchange differences (02) 01
QOther non-cash movements 1.6 05
Cash generated from operations before exceptional itermns and changes in rental equipment 2797 2656
b}Reconciliation to net debt
Decrease/{increase) in cash in the period 359 (531)
Decrease in debt through cash flow (397) {124 4)
Change in net debt from cash flows {38) (1775)
Exchange differences {731) (369)
Non-cash movements
— deferred costs of debt raising 210 73
— capital element of new finance leases 26 02
Reduction in net debt in the penod (53 3) {206 9)
Net debt at 1 May 8290 10359
Net debt at 30 April 7757 8290
<) Analysis of net debt
1 May Exchange Cash Non cash 30 Apnl
2010 movement flow movements 201
£m £m £m fm £m
Cash and cash equivalents (54 8) 01 359 - (18 8)
Debt due within one year 31 {01 (30) 17 17
Debt due after one year 8807 (731) {367) 219 7928
Total net debt 8290 (731) 38) 236 7757
Non-cash movements relate to the write-off and amortisation of prepaid fees relating to the refinancing of debt facilities and the addition of new
finance leases i the year
d) Acquisitions
20m 2010
£m Em
Cash consideration paid 348 02

25 Acquisitions

£35m was spent on acquisitions 1 the year with the mam transaction being Sunbelt’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Empire Scaffold

LLC (‘'Empire’) on 10 January 2011

Empire

Empire was acqured for $39m (£25m) with an additional deferred cash consideration of $1 5m (£1 Om) payable depending on Empire’s profits
in the year to 31 August 2011 Empire 1s a specialist provider of scaffold rental, erection and dismantlement services pnincipally to the Gulf Coast

petrochermcal industry This acquisitien has enabled us to expand our specialty scaffolding services frorn the US eastern seaboard into new markets

along the Gulf Coast
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The net assets acquired and the prowisional goodwill anising on the acquisition are as follows
Acquirees Al provisonal

book value fawr value
fm £m
Net assets acquired
Trade and other recevables 66 64
Cash and cash equivalents 03 03
Property, plant and equipment
— rental equipment e 64
— other assets 04 04
Goodwill 44 -
Intangible assets (brand name, customer contracts and relationships) - 64
Trade and other payables (20) (20)
Deferred tax liabilities (28) (36)
185 143
Consideration
— cash paid and payable 250
— deferred consideration to be satisfied in cash 10
260
CGoodwill nz

The goodwill ansing can be attributed to the key management personnel, workforce and safety record of the acquired business and the benefits the
Group expects to denve from the acquisition This goodwall 15 not deductible for tax purposes

Trade recevables at acquisition were £5 Om at fair value, net of £0 4m prowvision for debts which may not be collected, and had a gross face value of
£5 4m Other recevables include prepaid expenses and accrued revenue

Emprre’s revenue and operating profit in the penod from the date of acquisition to 30 April 2011 were £12 3m ($19 3m) and £1 2m ($1 9m) respectively
Had the acquisition taken place on 1 May 2010, Group reported revenue and operating profit for the year ended 30 Aprit 2011 would have been higher
by £19 2m ($30 0m) and £2 4m ($3 8m) respectively

Other
In addition £10rm was paid in the year to acquire £5 3m of tangible and £4 7m of intangible fixed assets

26 Contingent liabilities

Group

The Group is subject to peniodic legal claims in the ordinary course of its business, none of which 15 expected to have a sigruficant impact on the Group's
financial position

In Spring 2011, following audits of the tax returns of the Group's US subsidiaries for the four years ended 30 April 2009, the US Internai Revenue Service
('IRS’) 1ssued revised assessments and associated notices of interest and penalties anising from its reclassification of certain US intercompany debt in
those years from debt to equity and its consequent recharactensation of US interest payments to the UK as equity-like distnbutions The revised
assessments would result in additional net tax payments due of $32rm together with interest and penalties of $13m Detailed protest letters setting

out the reasons why we disagree with these assessments and believe that no adjustment is warranted were ssued to the IRS on 29 March 2011

If, contrary te our view, the IRS prevailed in its arguments the Group has been advised that application to the UK tax authonties under the Competent
Authonty procedure should enable a corresponding adjustment reducing UK intercompany interest recewable and hence UK tax to be agreed Taking
account of this UK offset, the estimated impact of the IRS's proposed adjustments at 30 April 2011 would be to increase current tax payable by £27m,
current tax recewvable by £7m, deferred tax iabilities by £59m and deferred tax assets by £43m while shareholders’ equity would reduce by
approximately £28m

Having taken external professional adwice, the directors consider that the adjustments proposed by the IRS audit team have no ment and intend to
defend this position wigorously Whilst the procedures that have to be followed to resotve this sort of tax 1ssue make it likely that it will be some years
before the eventual outcome i1s known, the Board does not anticipate this matter having any material tmpact on the Group's results or financial positton

Company

The Company has guaranteed the borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings under the Group's senior secured credit and overdraft facilities At 30 April
2011 the amount borrowed under these facilities was £474 2m (2010 £384 8m) Subsidiary undertakings are also able to obtan letters of credit under
these facilities and, at 30 Apnl 2011, letters of credit ssued under these arrangements totalled £16 1m (526 8m} (2010 £191m or $29 3m) In addition,
the Company has guaranteed the 9% second prionty senior secured notes with a par value of $550m (£330m), issued by Ashtead Capital, Inc

The Company has guaranteed operating and finance lease commitments of subsidiary undertakings where the minimum lease commitment at 30 April
201 totalled £59 5m (2010 £715m) in respect of land and buildings of which £6 9m 1s payable by subsidiary undertakings in the year ending 30 April
2012 The muimimum lease commitment at 30 April 2011 n respect of other lease rentals was £nil (2010 £2 1m)

The Company has guaranteed the performance by subsidianes of certain other obligations up to £0 7m (2010 £0 8m)
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27 Capital commitments
At 30 April 2011 capital commitments in respect of purchases of rental and other equipment totalled £173 1m (2010 £24 6m), all of which had been
ordered There were no other material capital commitments at the year end

28 Related party transactions
The Group's key management comprise the Company's executive and non-executive directors Details of their remuneration together with their share
interests and share option awards are given in the Directors” Remuneration Report and form part of these financial statements

29 Employees
The average number of employees, including directors, during the year was as follows
20m 2010
£m £m
North America 5,600 5675
United Kingdom 1,921 1,976
7,521 7,651

30 New accounting standards
The Group has not adopted early the following pronouncements, which have been issued by the IASB or the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee ('IFRIC), but have not yet been endorsed for use in the EU

IFRS 9 — Financial nstruments was 1ssued on 12 November 2009 and 15 effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoptron permitted The IASB has issued this standard as the first step in its project to replace 1AS 39 - Finanaial instruments recognition and
measurement IFRS 9 has two measurement categories being amortised cost and fair vatue All equity and debt instruments are to be measured at fair
value with the exception of a debt instrument being measured at amortised cost of it 1s being held by the entity to collect contractual cash flows and the
cash flows represent principal and interest The requirement to separate embedded derwatives from financial assets within hybrid contracts has been
removed with them being classified in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value Two of the existing three fair value option criteria being 'loans
and recevables’ and *held-to-maturity investments’ measured at amortised cost will become obsolete under this farr value-driven business model The
EU has currently postponed its endorsement of this standard as its IFRS technical adwisory bady, the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group
(‘EFRAG') has decided that more time should be taken to consider the output from the entire package of standards that are expected to replace IAS 39
— Financial nstruments The Group does not believe the adoption of this standard will have a matenal effect on the Group's results and financial position
on adoption

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Financial instruments disclosures was 1ssued on 7 October 2010 and 1s effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
1 July 2017 The Group does not believe the adoption of this pronouncement will have a matenal impact on the Group's results or financial position

Amendments to IFRS 1 - Severe hypennflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters was 1ssued on 20 December 2010 and 1s effective for
annual peniods beginning on or after 7 july 2011 The Group does not believe the adoption of this pronouncement will have a matenal impact on the
Group's results or financial position

Amendments ta [AS 12 — Deferred tax recovery of underlying assets was 1ssued on 20 December 2010 and 1s effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012 The Group does not believe the adoption of this pronouncement will have a material impact on the Group's results or
finanaial position

The remaining pronouncements were all 1ssued on 12 May 2011 and are effective for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoption permitted The Group is currently assessing the impact and expected timing of adoption of these standards on the Group's results and
financial position

IFRS 10 — Consolidated financial statements, which replaces parts of 'JAS 27 — Consolidated and separate financial statements’ and all of 'SIC-12

- Consolidation — special purpose entities', builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an
entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company As a consequence of the issuance of IFRS 10, IAS 27 has
been amended and now contains requirements relating only to separate financial staterments

IFRS 11 - Joint arrangements which replaces 'IAS 37 — Interests i joint ventures’ and 'SIC-13 - Jointly controlled entities — non-monetary contnibutions
by venturers', requires a single method, known as the equity method, to account for interests in jointly controlled entities ‘JIAS 28 - Investments in
associates and joint ventures’, has been amended as a consequence of the issuance of IFRS 11 In addition to prescribing the accounting for investrment
In associates, It now sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for joint ventures

IFRS 12 - Disclosure of interest in other entities, 1s a new standard on disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles The standard includes disclosure requirements for entities
covered under IFRS 10 and IFRS 11

IFRS 13 — Fair value measurement, provides guidance on how fair value should be applied where its use 15 already required or permitted by other
standards within [FRS, including a precise defimition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across IFRS
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31 Parent company information
a) Balance sheet of the Company

o

2010

Notes £m £m
Current assets
Prepayments and accrued income 01 02
Non-current assets
Investments in Group companies () 3637 3637
Deferred tax asset 07 02

3644 3639

Total assets 3645 3641
Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 3} 959 827
Accruals and deferred income 32 31
Total liabilities 931 B58
Equity
Share capital (b} 553 553
Share premium account (b} 36 36
Capital redemption reserve (b) 09 09
Non-distributable reserve (b 907 807
Own shares held by the Company {5} {331) (331)
Own shares held through the ESOT (b} (6.7) (63}
Retained reserves (b} 1547 1672
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 2654 2783
Total liabilities and equrty 3645 3641

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 15 June 2011

2 AN

Geoff Drabble lan Robson
Chief executive Finance director
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notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

31 Parent company information continued
b) Statement of changes in equity of the Company

Share Capnat Non Own shares sh(irv::
Share prermum redemption  distributable held by the held by Retamed
capital account reserve reserve Company the ESOT reserves Total
£m £fm Em £m £m Em fm Em
At 1 May 2009 553 36 09 %07 (331) 63) 1795 2906
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid - - - - - - (12 8) (128)
Share-based payments - - - - - - 05 05
At 30 Apnl 2010 553 36 09 507 (331) 63) 1672 2783
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 01 01
Dwidends patd - - - - - - {14 6) (146)
Own shares purchased by the ESOT - - - - - (04) - o4
Share-based payments - - - - - - 16 16
Tax on share-based payments - - - - - - 04 04
At 30 April 2011 553 36 09 907 (331) (6.7) 1547 265.4
c} Cash flow statement of the Company
20m 2010
Note £m fm
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 0} 212 142
Financmg costs pard — commitment fee {6 2} {14)
Net cash from operating activities 150 128
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of own shares by the ESOT {0 4) -
Dividends paid {14 6) (128)
Net cash used in financing activities {15 0} (12 8)

Change in cash and cash equivalents - -

d) Accounting policies
The Company financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out in note 1 above, supplemented by the policy on
investments set out below

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any necessary provision for impairment in the parent company balance sheet Where an
investment in a subsidiary 1s transferred to another subsidiary, any uplift in the value at which it 1s transferred over its carrying value s treated as a
revaluation of the mvestment prior to the transfer and 1s credited to the revaluation reserve

e) Income statement

Ashtead Group plc has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The amount of the profit
for the financial year dealt with in the accounts of Ashtead Group plc1s £0 1m (2010 £nil) There were no other amounts of comprehensive ncome
the financial year

f) Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings

201y 2010
£m £m

Due within one year
Ashtead Holdings PLC 901 827
Ashtead Plant Hire Company Limited 58 -
959 827
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g) Investments
Shares in Croup comparnies
20m 2010
£m Em
At 30 April 2010 and 2011 3637 3637

The Company's principal subsidiaries are
Principal country in which

Name Country of incarporation  subsidiary undertaking operates
Ashtead Holdings PLC England and Wales United Kingdom
Sunbelt Rentals, Inc USA USA
Empire Scaffold LLC USA USA
Ashtead Plant Hire Company Limited England and Wales Urited Kingdom
Ashtead Capital, Inc USA USA
Ashtead Financing Limited England and Wales Uruted Kingdom

The 1ssued share capital (all of which cornprises ordinary shares) of subsidraries 1s 100% owned by the Company or by subsidiary undertakings and al
subsidiaries are consolidated The principal activity of Ashtead Holdings PLC 1s an investment helding company The principal activities of Sunbelt
Rentals, Inc, Empire Scaffeld LLC and Ashtead Plant Hire Company Limited are equipment rental and related services while Ashitead Capital, In¢ and
Ashtead Financing Limited are finance compamies Ashtead Group plc owns all the tssued share capital of Ashtead Holdings PLC which in turn holds all of
the other subsidiaries listed above except for Sunbelt Rentals, tnc, Empire Scaffold LLC and Ashtead Capital, Inc which are owned indirectly by Ashtead
Holdings PLC through another subsidiary undertaking

h) Financial instruments
The book value and farr value of the Company’s financial instruments are not matenally different

1) Notes to the Company cash flow statement
Cash flow from operating activities

2m 2010
£Em £m
Operating profit - -
Depreciation 01 01
EBITDA 01 01
Decrease/(increase) in recervables 01 (07)
Increase n payables 18 02
Increase in intercompany payable 176 135
Other non-cash movement 16 05
Net cash inftow from operations before exceptional items 212 142
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ten year history

IFRS UK GAAP
201 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

In £m
Income statement
Revenue* 948 5 8368 10735 10478 8961 6380 5237 5003 5395 5837
Operating costs* (6647) (5817) (7174) (6841) (5858) (4133) (3542) (3533) (3894) (3986)
EBITDA* 2838 2551 3561 3637 3103 2247 1695 1470 1501 1851
Depreciation® (18500 (1866) (2011) (1766) (1598) (1136) (1024) (1028) (1M0)  (1178)
Operating profit* 98 8 685 1550 1871 1505 111 671 442 391 673
Interest* (67.8) {635) (676) {74 8) (697) {436) (447) (366) {409) (491)
Pre-tax profit/{loss)* 310 50 874 1123 814 675 224 76 (18) 182
Operating profit a7 660 684 1845 1011 1245 671 162 06 725
Pre-tax profit/(loss) 17 48 o8 1097 (365) 817 322 {331) {422) (155)
Cash flow
Cash flow from operations before

exceptional items and changes

in rental fleet 2787 2656 3736 3564 3193 2152 1648 1400 1573 1942
Total cash generated before

exceptional costs and M&A 656 1992 1660 148 203 (52} 587 566 389 (294)
Balance sheet
Capntal expenditure 2248 634 2383 3310 2902 2202 1384 723 855 1138
Book cost of rental equipment 1,6216 17013 17982 15284 14341 9219 8002 8139 9458 9719
Shareholders’ funds 4814 5003 5260 4403 3967 258 3 1099 1318 159 4 1929
In pence
Dividend per share 30p 2% 2575 25p 165p 150p Nit Nil Nil 350p
Earnings per share 02p Odp 12 Sp 142p 08p 135p 52p {9 9p) {95p) 11p
Underlying earnings per share 40p 02p 119p 14 8p 103p 113p 32p {0 7p) (04p} 137p
In percent
EBITDA margin® 29 9% 305% 332% 347% 34 6% 352% 32 4% 29 4% 278% 317%
Operating profit margin® 10 4% 82% 14 4% 179% 16 8% 174% 129% 88% 72% 15%
Pre-tax profit/{loss) margin* 02% 06% 81% 107% 91% 106% 48% 15% (0 3%) 31%
Return on investment* 70% 46% 97% 14 0% 12 9% 147% 10% 6 9% 49% 85%
People
Employees at year end 8,163 7218 8162 9594 10,077 6,465 5.935 5,833 6,078 6,545
Locations
Stores at year end 462 498 520 635 659 413 12 428 449 463

The figures for the years ended 30 Apal 2005 and later are reported in accordance with IFRS Figuras for 2004 and pnor are reported under UK GAAP and have not been restated in accoedance with IFRS
+ Before exceptional items amortisation and fair value remeasurements EBITDA operating profit and pre-tax profit/(loss) are stated before exceptional items but have been adjusted to allocate the
wmpact of the US accounting 1ssues and the change in self-insurance estimation method reported in 2003 to the years towhich they relate and to reflect the BET USA lease adjustrent reported in

2002 1n 2007 The directors believe these adjustments improve comparability between penods.

* Shareholders funds for the years up to 30 April 2003 were restated in 2003/4 to reflect shares held by the Employee Share Ownerstup Trust as a deduction from shareholders funds in accordance

with UITF 38
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